Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (STRATEGY AND RESOURCES)
Meeting to be held remotely in Zoom on
Monday, 12th October, 2020 at 10.30 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 10.00 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
G Almass -

Beeston and Holbeck;

P Carlill -

Calverley and Farsley;

D Chapman S Firth M Harland (Chair) -

Rothwell;
Harewood;
Kippax and Methley;

H Hayden -

Temple Newsam;

D Jenkins -

Killingbeck and Seacroft;

J McKenna M Midgley M Robinson S Seary -

Armley;
Kippax and Methley;
Harewood;
Pudsey;

Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the
link below. This will take you to the Leeds City Council’s YouTube channel, and the
meeting can be viewed live from there:
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1041&MId=10110

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Rob Clayton
Tel: 37 88790
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting).

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3
If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:
No exempt items have been identified.

B

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES
To receive any apologies for absence and
notification of substitutes.

6

MINUTES - 7 SEPTEMBER 2020

7 - 12

To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting held on 7 September 2020.
7

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW, REVENUE
BUDGET UPDATE 2021/22 AND BUDGET
SAVINGS PROPOSALS
To receive a report from the Head of Democratic
Services presenting details of two reports that were
considered by the Executive Board at its meeting
on 24 September 2020. These were the Capital
Programme Review and Revenue Budget Update
and Savings Proposals for 2021/22.

C

13 138

Item
No
8

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO THE REDUCTION OF
ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN COUNCIL
BUILDINGS – FORMAL RESPONSE TO
RECOMMENDATIONS

139 162

To receive a report from the Head of Democratic
Services presenting the formal response to the
recommendations arising from the Scrutiny Board’s
Inquiry into energy consumption in Council
buildings.
9

SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF VOID
PROPERTIES IN COUNCIL OWNERSHIP RECOMMENDATION TRACKING UPDATE

163 172

To receive a report from the Head of Democratic
Services presenting the progress made in
responding to the recommendations arising from
the Scrutiny Board’s 2018/19 inquiry into Void
Properties.
10

WORK SCHEDULE 2020/21
To consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for
the 2020/21 municipal year.

11

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 16 November 2020 at 10.30 am (Premeeting for all Board Members at 10.00 am)

D

173 196

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
THIRD PARTY RECORDING
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those
not present to see or hear the proceedings either as
they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of
those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is
available from the contacts on the front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of practice
a) Any published recording should be
accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context
of the discussion that took place, and a clear
identification of the main speakers and their
role or title.
b) Those making recordings must not edit the
recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at
any point but the material between those
points must be complete.

E

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (STRATEGY AND RESOURCES)
MONDAY, 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor M Harland in the Chair
Councillors G Almass, K Brooks, P Carlill,
D Chapman, S Firth, H Hayden, D Jenkins,
J McKenna, M Robinson and S Seary

CHAIRS OPENING COMMENTS
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting which was held remotely.

28

The Chair on behalf of the Scrutiny Board praised the work of all the staff who
had kept the Council’s services going throughout the pandemic.
Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents

29

There were no appeals against refusal of inspection of documents.
Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public

30

There were exempt items.
Late Items

31

There were no late items of business.
Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

32

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.
Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes

33

Apologises for absence were received from Cllr L Cunningham. Cllr. K Brooks
attended the meeting as her substitute.
Minutes - 22 July 2020

34

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd July 2020 be
approved as a correct record.
Matters arising
In relation to Minute 23 – Financial Performance Outturn Financial Year
Ended 31st March 2020 the Board were advised that an agreement had been
made for officers to view the accounts of Welcome to Yorkshire. However, at
the time of this meeting no confirmation had been received that the Council
had seen the accounts.
It was noted that this issue was included within the work schedule as an item
to be brought back to the Board at a later date. In the interim this would
checked and details provided to Board Members
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 7

35

The Board had requested that a letter be sent to Government in relation to
long term funding solutions to the Adult Social Care Services from Cllr
Harland as Chair of Scrutiny Board-Strategy and Resources and Cllr Hayden
as Chair of Scrutiny Board-Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles. Members
were advised that this letter had been progressed and would be sent to them
via email.
Annual Corporate Risk Management Report
The report of the Head of Democratic Services provided the Board Members
with details of the Council’s Annual Corporate Risk Management Report. This
annual report provided an update on the Council’s most significant corporate
risks and the arrangements both in place and further activity planned during
2020-21 to manage them.
In attendance for this item were:
 Cllr J Lewis – Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member for
Resources
 Tim Rollett - Intelligence & Policy Manager
The Board was informed of the following points:
 The Annual Corporate Risk Report had been presented to both
Executive Board in July 2020, and the Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee;
 The report focused on the main risks of the Council both internally and
externally;
 Members were provided with a brief explanation of risk criteria;
 Some risks had seen an increase due to Covid-19 these were listed as
Leeds Economic Growth lag, Council Budget position and there is a
specific risk in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic;
 There is a new standard risk on Climate Change and this focuses on
how to mitigate climate change;
 The process of risk management is ongoing to identify, assess and
report on them.
Responding to a Member’s question the Scrutiny Board were informed that
the Council has two risks on finance one is the current in year budget and the
other is the medium term budget. Members were informed that prior to the
Covid-19 pandemic the Council’s in year budget was under pressure and
subject to regular monitoring through Executive Board the impact of
Coronavirus has increased pressure both in year and on the 2021/22 budget.
Finance are in the process of producing a five year finance plan. However,
with the ongoing threat of Covid-19 this is having to change rapidly to adapt to
increased financial challenges. Members were advised that prior to the
pandemic these risks would have remained high. However, with the pandemic
both of these risks have been pushed even higher and there is a particular
focus on the five year plan.
Responding to a question on a recent major incident which had occurred in
Birmingham. Members were advised that the Council has a ‘major incidents in
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 8

the city’ risk which is rated as high. Incidents such as stabbings, terrorist
attacks, floods, prolonged, or adverse weather conditions would fall under this
risk area. There is also a risk on Community Cohesion which would offset any
issues or tensions within local communities.
The Board were informed that addressing risks in relation to Covid-19 Risk
Management had realised how interlinked many of the risks are. Going
forward Risk Management would be taking best practice and lessons learned
over the past few months to address other risk areas.
Members had noted that ICT failure was mid-range on the Councils risks and
asked if it should be higher. Members were advised that this risk was on the
radar especially with more people working from home and communicating in a
variety of formats. The Board was informed that an update on this was due to
be reported to the Corporate Leadership Team in November.
RESOLVED – To note the content of the report.

36

Business continuity planning during COVID 19
The report of the Director of Resources and Housing informed Board
Members on how the Council’s Business Continuity Plans performed and
supported the council’s critical services during the initial days of the COVID 19
outbreak and how the outbreak would inform business continuity going
forward.
In attendance for this item were:
 Cllr. J Lewis – Deputy Leader of the Council, and Executive Members
for Resources
 Marianna Pexton – Chief Officer for Strategy and Resources
 Nigel Street - Principal Officer Resilience and Emergencies
The Board was informed of the following key points:
 Prior to the pandemic all Heads of Service had been requested to
review their business continuity plans as part of dealing with a ‘no deal’
EU exit, particularly in relation to loss of staff, and loss of key suppliers
and supplies;
 On 5th March an email was sent to managers and officers responsible
for LCC’s critical services requesting them to review their business
continuity plans in readiness for the potential impact of COVID 19.
Again paying particular attention to loss of staff, loss of workplace, loss
of key suppliers and loss of supplies;
 As the cases of COVID 19 increased a major incident was declared,
with Managers having to activate their business continuity plans.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 9







However, after 7-10 days special measures were required due to the
global scale of the pandemic with rapid emergency support through
new ways of working and service prioritisation;
An Essential Service Planning Framework was developed to determine
essential and non-essential services. Three overarching principles
were established
o The protection of customers particularly the vulnerable;
o Protection of the health and safety of all staff;
o Ensuring compliance with Public Health and Government advice
and guidance.
A COVID 19 Silver Working Group was established, chaired by the
Director of Resources and Housing supported by Chief Officers. The
Silver Working Group continue to meet to explore how services which
continued during the outbreak can be maintained and built upon in
terms of their effectiveness and to oversee the resumption of services.
The group are also preparing for a potential second wave;
The Annual Business Continuity Report to the Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee is due in December 2020, it will provide
assurances that the arrangements are fit for purpose, are
communicated effectively and are monitored.

Member’s discussions included the following:
 The use of a two tier approach when considering future pandemics;
 Service prioritisation and movement of staff to critical services;
 Looking at lessons learned to make the plans more resilient and
robust;
 The need to move the digital agenda on to ensure staff are equipped to
continue providing services;
 Staff survey and the wellbeing of staff;
 Getting staff back into the workplace, and the work continuing around
social distancing;
 Air quality in the city centre;
 Social gatherings and movement of young people around the city.
The Board requested that a future meeting have an item to discuss agile
working, to include policy and the impact on staff and services.
RESOLVED – To note the content of the report.
37

Scrutiny review of resilience and emergency planning - recommendation
tracking update
The report of the Head of Democratic Services set out the progress made in
responding to the recommendations arising from the previous Scrutiny review
around resilience and emergency planning.
In attendance for this item were:
 Cllr. J Lewis – Deputy Leader of the Council, and Executive Member
for Resources
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 10




Marianna Pexton – Chief Officer of Strategy and Resources
Nigel Street - Principal Officer Resilience and Emergencies

Appendix 2 of the report had provided Board Members with an update on
progress of the recommendations set out by the Scrutiny Board.
Members were provided with highlights of progress as follows;
Recommendation 1
 A ‘Top tips’ on the reverse of the Leaders message of the Council Tax
bill which would be distributed to 350,000 domestic properties;
 Incidents such as the recent storms and the current coronavirus
outbreak had helped to establish and test communication
arrangements with citizens and communities. This included
signposting to where further information and advice could be
accessed;
 The Spontaneous Volunteers Toolkit had been developed to draft
status. The planned exercises for this had to be postponed due to
Covid 19 outbreak. Formal release of the toolkit is dependent on
exercises to ensure that the toolkit is fit for purpose.
Recommendation 2
 During the flooding Councillors were provided with a confidential 24
hour one number call-out and contact telephone number for use by
professional partners, Councillors, and council staff;
 Social Media has been utilised to provide and signpost to information;
 Copies of the Emergency Management Plan ‘Quick Guide’ is to be reissued to councillors;
 Briefings have been provided to the 10 Community Committee Chairs
about the local approach to Prevent and Counter Extremism;
 An Elected Members Support email box has been created to deal with
Covid-19 related queries from councillors during the pandemic.
Recommendation 3
 Work to procure an app based communication solution to address lone
working is still ongoing. Members have been consulted and this is due
to be considered by Member Management Committee but has been
curtailed due to the Coronavirus outbreak.
Board Members had briefly discussed the paper and the position updates
during their pre-meeting.
RESOLVED – To:
 Recommendation 1 – Categorise as a 3 as unable to continue due to
the current situation and continue monitoring;
 Recommendation 2 – Categorise as 2 having achieved;
 Recommendation 3 – Categorise as 4 and to continue monitoring.
38

Work Schedule
The report of the Head of Democratic Services requested Board Members to
consider the work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 11

The draft work schedule was attached at Appendix 1.
The Principal Scrutiny Adviser to the Board informed the Members of the
following points:
 The November Meeting will include items in relation to Welcome to
Yorkshire, Council Tax and Business Rates recovery;
 The October Meeting will focus on Budget Savings.
Members requested an item also be brought to the November meeting on the
impact on homeworking and staff during the pandemic which will also include
initial consideration of the agile working scrutiny request from earlier in the
meeting.
RESOLVED – To note the submitted report.

39

The meeting concluded at 11:50
Date and Time of Next Meeting
The next meeting of the Scrutiny Board, Strategy and Resources will be on
Monday 12th October 2020, at 10:30am. There will be a pre-meeting for all
Board Members at 10:00am.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 12th October, 2020

Page 12

Agenda Item 7
Report author: Rob Clayton
Tel: 3788790

Report of Head of Democratic Services
Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
Date: 12 October 2020
Subject: Capital Programme Review, Revenue Budget Update 2021/22 and Budget
Savings Proposals
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Board Members with an update on the
budget position for 2021/22 and consider both the Revenue Budget Update and
Savings Proposals and Capital Programme Review reports approved by Executive
Board on 24 September 2020.

2.

Background information

2.1

At its July meeting the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board considered the initial
impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s budget position both in terms of the current
year and the projected impact on financial year 2021/22. Since that time Executive
Board considered a further budget update and savings proposals for 2021/22 at its
meeting on 24 September 2020.

2.2

As part of wider consultation with Scrutiny Boards on the budget challenge faced by
the Council and agreed with Scrutiny Board chairs a Strategy & Resources Scrutiny
Board Working Group session considered the budget saving proposals relevant to
the remit of the Board on 25 September 2020. Other Scrutiny Boards have been
carrying out similar sessions in relation to their respective remits.

Page 13

3.

Main issues

3.1

The budget gap for 20/21/22 stands at £118.8m of which £59.7m is due to
pressures identified prior to the impact of COVID-19 with the balance of £59.1m
resulting from the ongoing financial impact of COVID-19.

3.2

Executive Board considered an initial tranche of proposals on how the budget gap
can be addressed at its meeting on 24 September. A series of Financial Challenge
Reviews have so far identified savings of £32.3m with a further £0.3m of savings
identified through the Capital Programme Review. The Financial Challenge Reviews
have focussed on two categories of savings; Business as Usual proposals which
can be implemented within the council’s delegated decision-making framework and
without consultation, and ‘Service Reviews’ which will require meaningful
consultation with relevant stakeholders prior to any decisions being taken.


BAU proposals are those that do not require consultation to implement: for
example, they relate to improving the efficiency of the service, are cost reduction
measures with no impact on service users or, where there are budgeted staffing
reductions, these are anticipated to be met through deletion of vacant posts or
voluntary means, as has been collectively agreed. Where voluntary measures
have a modest and/or residual impact on the workforce, local / BAU consultation
would be expected.



Service Review proposals (some cross-council, some service-specific) are those
requiring consultation: for example, the way in which a service is delivered or the
level of service provided is impacted and so meaningful consultation with service
users is needed; and/or the proposal relates to a significant internal restructure,
requiring consultation with trade unions and staff.

3.3

Of the £32.3m identified through the Financial Challenge Programme £24.2m
relates to Business as Usual and £8.2m relate to Service Review measures. In
respect of the Board’s remit the Resources and Housing Directorate (in which the
majority of the services covered by the Board’s remit sit) has identified £5.01m of
Business as Usual savings and £6.33m that relate to service reviews that will
require further consultation.

3.4

A strategic approach with regard to the level of savings which can be achieved in
2021/22 is also currently being considered with further alternative measures being
explored that will take into account this autumn’s Comprehensive Spending Review
and subsequent local government provisional financial settlement in December.

3.5

The budget savings proposals are now being submitted to Scrutiny for
consideration, review and comment; and the Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
is asked to consider matters and proposals relating to service areas that fall within
its remit. Other Scrutiny Boards will be considering elements of the budget savings
proposals relevant to their terms of reference. Full details of the Revenue budget
update and budget saving proposals are provided at Appendix 1 for members’
consideration.

3.6

In addition the Executive Board also approved a report on the Capital Programme
Review at its meeting on 24 September 2020. In recognising the financial
challenges that the Council is facing measures have been taken to restrict further
capital spending whilst the capital programme is reviewed. The exception to these
Page 14

restrictions include essential health and safety work, Covid19 related spend and
schemes where the Council has received external income/grants.
3.7

The Capital Programme Review report is attached as Appendix 2 and provides
members with full details of the work undertaken. This has primarily focussed on
schemes with a borrowing element to them:


Uncommitted schemes LCC borrowing - the Council has not entered into a
contractual commitment; and



Committed schemes LCC Borrowing - where there remains an element of the
scheme that the Council is not contractually committed to but does not impact
on the completion of a scheme/project.

3.7

The review has resulted in £131.5m of proposals that are forecast to deliver £8.6m
of revenue savings by 2024/25. The proposals still allow for schemes to come
forward that demonstrate through robust business cases that additional debt costs
will be paid for by additional income or reduction in costs.

4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 Senior officers and elected members have been engaged in developing the savings
proposals set out in the Executive Board reports. Trade unions have also been
informed in headline terms of the emerging savings proposals. Where required,
further consultation and engagement will be carried out with staff, trade unions,
service users and the public as appropriate on the Service Review proposals set
out at Appendix 2 within the Executive Board’s report.
4.1.2 All Scrutiny Boards will be considering the budget savings proposals, as relevant to
their remits, during their October meeting cycle, as well as holding additional
working group meetings to further engage in the development of the budget savings
proposals.
4.1.3 Relevant Executive Members and senior officers have contributed to the Scrutiny
Board’s working group meeting held on 25th September 2020 as well as attending
today’s meeting to discuss the attached reports and address any issues raised by
the Scrutiny Board.
4.1.4 The attached report explains that the outcomes of any consultation will inform the
council’s decision-making and be incorporated into the 2021/22 to 2023/24 Budget
Report timetabled for initial consideration by the Executive Board at its December
meeting.
4.1.5 Linked to this, any comments and recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board
(Strategy and Resources) during this consultation process are to be captured within
a composite report from Scrutiny to be submitted to the Executive Board in
December.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

Page 15

4.2.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity. The law
requires that the duty to pay “due regard” be demonstrated in the decision making
process. Assessing the potential equality impact of proposed changes to policies,
procedures and practices is one of the key ways in which public authorities can
show “due regard”.
4.2.2 Equality impact screenings have been carried out on the service review savings
proposals and included with those proposals at Appendix 2 of the attached
Executive Board report. It is also acknowledged that, where appropriate, equality
impact assessments will be carried out as part of the decision-making process.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 This report comments on revenue budget savings proposals for 2021/22 and the
ongoing Capital Programme Review both support the Best Council ambition of
offering value for money through being an efficient and enterprising organisation.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 These are factual reports detailing with the Council’s budgetary position for 2021/22
and the Capital Programme Review. In terms of specific impacts one of the service
reviews within the Resources and Housing directorate focuses on the Sustainable
Energy and Air Quality Team. The proposals will see a reduction of three FTEs
through voluntary means to save £150K and a target of increasing grant income by
£100K which if secured would enable more investment in measures to improve air
quality in the city through specific projects.
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 All resources, procurement and value for money implications are detailed in the
main body of the attached Executive Board reports.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 All associated legal and access to information implications are detailed in the main
body of the attached Executive Board reports.
4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 All associated risk management issues are detailed in the main body of the
attached Executive Board reports.
5.

Conclusions

5.1.1 The attached reports, as considered by the Executive Board at its meeting on 24th
September 2020, present the latest revenue budget update for 2021/22 and budget
savings proposals and details of the ongoing Capital Programme Review. All
Scrutiny Boards will be considering the budget savings proposals, as relevant to
their remits, during their October meeting cycle, as well as holding additional
Page 16

working group meetings to further consider the option appraisal process linked to
the development of the budget savings proposals at this stage.
5.1.2 Any comments and recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board (Strategy and
Resources) during this consultation process are to be captured within a composite
report from Scrutiny to be submitted to the Executive Board.
6.

Recommendation

6.1.1 The Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources) is asked to consider the attached
reports and review and comment on matters and proposals relating to service areas
that fall within the Scrutiny Board’s remit.
7.

Background documents1

7.1

None.

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Report author: Victoria Bradshaw
Tel: 88540
Report of the Chief Officer – Financial Services
Report to Executive Board
Date: 24th September 2020
Subject: Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues
•

The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 - 2025/26 which is included elsewhere
on this agenda reports an estimated budget gap of £166.3m for the period of the
strategy, of which £118.8m relates to 2021/22. Of this £118.8m, £59.7m is due to
pressures identified prior to the impact of COVID-19 with the balance of £59.1m
resulting from the ongoing financial impact of COVID-19, £66.1m, offset by a £7m net
reduction in other identified pressures.

•

In response to this financial position, the council has carried out a review of its capital
programme and established a ‘Financial Challenge’ programme of service reviews to
identify savings that will contribute towards closing the estimated budget gap and
enable the authority to present a robust, balanced budget position in 2021/22. These
aim to protect services that support the most vulnerable whilst ensuring that the council
becomes more financially resilient and sustainable for the future.

•

The capital programme review is projected to realise a revenue saving of £0.3m in
2021/22 (the ‘Capital Programme Review’ report is elsewhere on this agenda for
further information).

•

The Financial Challenge reviews have so far identified £32.3m potential savings with
an anticipated reduction in the workforce of 478.4 full-time equivalent (FTE) budgeted
posts. All efforts will be made to avoid compulsory redundancies. The saving
proposals resulting from these reviews are categorised as either ‘Business as Usual’
proposals which can be implemented within the council’s delegated decision-making
Page 19

framework and without consultation, or ‘Service Reviews’ which will require meaningful
consultation with relevant stakeholders prior to any decisions being taken. The results
of any such consultation with staff, trade unions, service users and the public will be
used to inform the final decision.
•

In respect of the Housing Revenue Account there is an estimated budget gap of
£16.2m for the period covered by the Medium Term Financial Strategy with £3.6m
relating to 2021/22. Budget savings options of £3.2m have been identified which will
contribute towards the determination of a balanced budget position for 2021/22 and
also reduce the cumulative five year budget gap to £2.3m. The estimated reduction in
budgeted posts is 50 FTEs.

•

If approved, the saving proposals identified so far (£32.3m) and from the capital
programme review (£0.3m) totalling £32.6m, will reduce the estimated budget gap for
2021/22 to £86.2m. Further reports will be brought to this Board in October and
November in order to identify proposals to further close the budget gap to enable a
balanced budget in 2021/22. The updated position, including any further Government
announcements, will be reported to this Board in December.

2. Best Council Plan Implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan)
•

The Best Council Plan is the council’s strategic plan which sets out its ambitions,
outcomes and priorities for the city and the authority. These can only be delivered
through a sound understanding of the organisation’s longer-term financial sustainability
which enables decisions to be made that balance the resource implications of the
council’s policies against financial constraints. This is the primary purpose of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy which then provides the framework for the
determination of the authority’s annual revenue budgets.

3. Resource Implications
•

The savings proposals presented in this report will impact upon all the council’s
resources, including its staff, assets and finances. The financial implications are
detailed in the report.

Recommendations
•

Executive Board is requested to:
a)

Note the financial position for 2021/22 outlined in this report and that further
savings are required to deliver a balanced budget position;

b)

Note the ‘Business as Usual’ savings and that decisions to give effect to them
shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions);

c)

Agree that consultation commences with regard to the ‘Service Review’
proposals and note that decisions to give effect to them shall be taken by the
relevant Chief Officer, following the consultation period, in accordance with the
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions); and

d)

Note the savings proposals in respect of the Housing Revenue Account.

Page 20

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1 This report details the actions underway and proposed to address the financial gap
for 2021/22 which is currently estimated at £118.76m. The report presents a series
of savings proposals to contribute to the council achieving a balanced budget for
2021/22 Budget and, where appropriate, seeks agreement to begin meaningful
consultation with staff, trade unions, service users and the public as required. The
report also outlines the budget savings proposals that will contribute towards the
Housing Revenue Account delivering a balanced budget position for 2021/22.
2.

Background information

2.1 A report received at this Board in June detailed the impact that the COVID-19
pandemic is having upon the council’s financial position in 2020/21 and 2021/22. It
also outlined the financial support provided by Government for 2020/21; the actions
the authority is taking to reduce the level of projected overspend in both years; and
that the Council Leader had written to Government on behalf of Leeds City Council
requesting financial assistance to enable the authority to fulfil its requirement to
deliver services to Leeds’ residents.
2.2 The financial position in 2020/21 is the subject of monthly financial reporting to this
Board. The latest Financial Health report is included on today’s agenda and now
projects an overspend in this financial year of £52.5m at Month 4.
3.

Main issues
Revenue Budget 2021/22: Service reviews

3.1 A ‘Financial Challenge’ programme of service reviews has been established to
identify savings that will contribute towards closing the estimated revenue budget gap
and enable the authority to present a balanced budget position in 2021/22. These
comprise several cross-council reviews and others that relate to individual services; a
small number of more complex reviews have received external, independent support.
•

The cross-council reviews include those relating to activities that the council has
been pursuing for some time, such as a review of business administration, mail
and print expenditure reduction and changing the workplace. More recently
identified reviews include reducing the wage bill, estate rationalisation (building
on the long-standing changing the workplace programme), procurement,
customer contact and workforce development.

•

In addition to the cross-council reviews, directorates have also carried out
reviews of all services, working towards an indicative target saving of 10% of
gross expenditure or 20% of net expenditure for each directorate.

3.2 The Financial Challenge programme is being carried out across all services with a
cross-council ‘Silver’ group set up to provide support and ensure a co-ordinated,
consistent approach. Directors have also carried out peer reviews of each other’s
emerging proposals to provide additional high support and high challenge.
3.3 The outcome from the reviews has led to a set of savings proposals which are
categorised as either ‘Business as Usual’ (BAU) or ‘Service Review’ proposals:
•

BAU proposals are those that do not require consultation to implement: for
example, they relate to improving the efficiency of the service, are cost
Page 21

reduction measures with no impact on service users or, where there are
budgeted staffing reductions, these are anticipated to be met through deletion of
vacant posts or voluntary means, as has been collectively agreed. Where
voluntary measures have a modest and/or residual impact on the workforce,
local / BAU consultation would be expected.
•

Service Review proposals (some cross-council, some service-specific) are
those requiring consultation: for example, the way in which a service is
delivered or the level of service provided is impacted and so meaningful
consultation with service users is needed; and/or the proposal relates to a
significant internal restructure, requiring consultation with trade unions and staff.

3.4 A summary of the BAU proposals is provided at Appendix 1. The total value of these
proposals is £24.2m.
3.5 The Service Review proposals are summarised at Appendix 2 with a total value of
£8.2m. Executive summaries and equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
screening documents for each Service Review proposal are also provided at
Appendix 2.
3.6 Any new savings identified from the cross-council reviews have been captured within
the BAU and Service Review proposals, though, given the scale and impact of the
reducing the wage bill and estate rationalisation reviews, additional detail will be
brought to this Board in October.
3.7 The combined value of the BAU and Service Review proposals is £32.3m (rounded)
which would bring the estimated gap for 2021/22 down from £118.8m to £86.5m.
3.8 Further savings proposals to address the remaining estimated budget gap will be
brought to this Board in October and November.
3.9 In additional, a strategic approach with regard to the level of savings which can be
achieved in 2021/22 is currently being considered with further alternative measures
being explored that will take into account this autumn’s Comprehensive Spending
Review and subsequent local government provisional financial settlement in
December.
Revenue Budget 2021/22: capital programme review
3.10 A review of the capital programme has been carried out to identify where schemes
may be stopped or delayed in order to deliver revenue savings. Whilst this review is
underway, all non-essential capital spend has been placed on hold with the exception
for essential health and safety works, Covid-19 related spend and externally / part(where funding agreements are in place) funded schemes. Where the outcome of the
review results in revenue savings, such as a reduction in the council’s cost of
borrowing, these contribute towards reducing the estimated budget gaps contained
within the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. The capital programme review
is projected to realise a revenue saving of £0.3m in 2021/22 (the ‘Capital Programme
Review’ report is elsewhere on this agenda for further information).
General Fund: Revenue Budget 2021/22 - total savings proposed
3.11 Table 1 shows the overall impact of the savings identified so far through the Financial
Challenge programme of service reviews and review of the capital programme on the
council’s 2021/22 revenue budget.

Page 22

Business as Usual

Directorate
Adults & Health
Children & Families
City Development
Communities & Environment
Resources & Housing

Service reviews

Total

2021/22
savings /
£'000s

FTE
budgeted
posts

2021/22
savings /
£'000s

FTE
budgeted
posts

2021/22
savings /
£'000s

FTE
budgeted
posts

8,116
4,254
3,550
3,219
5,016

-1.0
-27.0
-16.2
-38.1
-105.3

0
0
1,830
0
6,337

0.0
0.0
-29.0
0.0
-261.8

8,116
4,254
5,380
3,219
11,353

-1.0
-27.0
-45.2
-38.1
-367.1

24,155

-187.6

8,167

-290.8

32,322

-478.4

Table 1: Summary of Revenue Budget Savings Proposals – General Fund

Budget savings proposals to address the 2021/22 estimated budget gap in the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
3.12 As detailed in the Medium Term Financial Strategy on this agenda, there is an
estimated budget gap of £16.2m within the Housing Revenue Account for the period
2021/22 - 2025/26. Of this, £3.6m relates to 2021/22. Whilst this is a substantial
sum, it is equivalent to 1.4% of the budget. In order to address this budget gap for
2021/22 a number of budget savings options have been identified.
•

Staffing has underspent over a number of years from vacant posts and churn.
Whilst overall stock has reduced by approximately 1% each year through Right
to Buy sales, budgeted staffing levels have remained largely constant.
Reflecting the trend over the past years could produce budgeted savings of
around £1m. The plan also assumes an additional £500k of staff savings target
from reconfiguration of services to reflect both predicted future stock losses and
benefits to be gained from new ways of working, including the implementation of
Civica. The estimated reduction in budgeted posts is 50 FTEs.

•

A Sheltered Accommodation support charge for self-payers i.e. those residents
not in receipts of Housing Benefits was introduced in the first year of the Rent
Reduction Policy (2016/17) and it has increased to the current £10/week in £2
increments each year. The full cost used in 20/21 is £14.71/wk. Members have
previously approved the intention to eliminate this subsidy with a stepped
increase in the weekly charge. A further £2/wk increase would realise income of
approximately £115k.

•

Approximately 72% of those in Sheltered Accommodation receive Housing
Benefit to cover the charge. The full cost recovery is now expected to be
£15.51, taking into account expected future pay awards and reviewing each
element of the charge. If adopted, this would provide approximately £130k
additional income.

•

Internal charges receivable by the HRA cover a variety of services and in total
amount to £43m. A target of £0.9m reduction has been identified as efficiencies
made in the General Fund are proportionately applied to the HRA. £0.9m would
equate to around a 2% reduction.

•

£650k of other expenditure is to be targeted as a reduction from examining all
other budget areas, including the implications of staff embracing new ways of
working.
Page 23

•

Work is ongoing to identify solutions to the gap that remains to be found.

3.13 Table 2 summarises the HRA savings proposals for 2021/22
HRA 21/22

£'000s

Estimated Budget Gap

3,556

Less
Staffing - Review of posts
Internal Charges
Other areas of targeted savings
Sheltered Support Charge – Self Payers
Sheltered Support Charge – Non-Self Payers
Sum of all other minor variations
Balance to find

(1,500)
(900)
(650)
(115)
(130)
78
339

Table 2: Summary of HRA 21/22 Savings Proposals

Staffing implications
3.14 The implications of the savings proposals project a potential reduction of 528.4 FTE
budgeted posts (including 50 HRA-funded FTE posts). The council issued a Section
188 Notice to the trade unions in June 2020 confirming our duty to consult and to
avoid, reduce and mitigate against the risk of compulsory redundancies. Pursuant to
the council’s Managing Staff Reductions Policy, a range of voluntary measures are
now being progressed, including early retirement, flexible retirement, severance and
other voluntary changes to working patterns. The expressions of interest in these
voluntary options has been very high and the scheme will close at the end of
September, with decision-making taking place over October and November. A
collectively agreed framework has been established to ensure meaningful and
frequent consultation with trade unions and staff.
4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 Senior officers and elected members have been engaged in developing the savings
proposals set out in today’s report. Trade unions have also been informed in
headline terms of the emerging proposals. Where required, further consultation and
engagement will be carried out with staff, trade unions, service users and the public
as appropriate on the Service Review proposals set out at Appendix 2. Scrutiny
Boards will also be considering the proposals as relevant to their remits through
their October meetings. The outcomes of any consultation will inform the council’s
decision-making and be incorporated into the 2021/22 to 2023/24 Budget Report
timetabled for initial consideration at December’s Executive Board.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity. The law
Page 24

requires that the duty to pay “due regard” be demonstrated in the decision making
process. Assessing the potential equality impact of proposed changes to policies,
procedures and practices is one of the key ways in which public authorities can
show due regard.
4.2.2 The council is fully committed to ensuring that equality and diversity are given
proper consideration when we develop policies and make decisions. In order to
achieve this, the council has an agreed process in place and has particularly
promoted the importance of the process when taking forward key policy or
budgetary changes. Equality impact assessments also ensure that we make well
informed decisions based on robust evidence.
4.2.3 Equality impact screenings have been carried out on the service review savings
proposals and included with those proposals at Appendix 2. Where appropriate,
equality impact assessments will be carried out as part of the decision-making
process.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The Best Council Plan sets out the council’s ambitions, outcomes and priorities.
The current plan is therefore aligned with both the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy and its annual budget. To help mitigate the pressures on the financial
sustainability of the council – significantly exacerbated by the impacts of COVID-19
- it is imperative that the proposals contained in this report are considered in order
that the council’s strategic priorities can be delivered within a robust financial
framework.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 There are no specific implications for the climate emergency resulting from this
report.
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 All resources, procurement and value for money implications are considered in the
summary and main body of the report.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 Decisions giving effect to the Business as Usual proposals included in this report
can be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the Officer
Scheme of delegation (Executive functions) and will be subject to the Executive and
decision – making procedure rules. Notice of any decision which is “Key” will be
published on the list of forthcoming decision not less than 28 clear calendar days in
advance of the date of the proposed decision.
4.5.2 Decisions giving effect to the Service Reviews will be made following the outcome
of consultation having regard to representations made. Decisions will be taken by
the relevant Director or Chief Officer following the procedure set out in paragraph
4.5.1 above, save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or
the Director considers that the matter should be referred to Executive Board for
consideration.
4.5.3 As a decision of Executive Board, the recommendations in this report are eligible for
call-in.
Page 25

4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 As detailed in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, the financial projections for
2021/22 contain a number of inherent risks even without taking account of the
impact of COVID-19. These include risks associated with budgets which are
subject to fluctuating demand and demographic pressures and key income budgets
that rely upon the number of users of a service. In addition the approved Budget
makes assumptions in respect of the level of resources that are receivable through
council tax, business rates and government grants.
4.6.2 Factoring in the impact of COVID-19, the financial position for 2021/22 makes a
number of assumptions around income, expenditure and collection rates for both
Business Rates and Council Tax – the pandemic will continue to affect the levels
that can be collected. Any variations from these assumptions has implications for
the level of resources available to the council to fund services.
4.6.3 There also remain uncertainties around the impacts of the Government’s postponed
Comprehensive Spending Review (due to be outlined alongside the Chancellor’s
autumn Budget speech), business rates reform and Fair Funding Review and
Government’s intentions for the future funding of social care.
4.6.4 These risks and assumptions will be subject to review as more information
becomes available and through the council’s financial management, monitoring and
reporting processes.
4.6.5 This report contains several budget saving proposals that will be subject to
consultation. There remains a risk that there is slippage in the implementation of
these proposals or that the assumptions contained in these proposals change as a
result of the consultation exercises. This could lead to a variation to the assumed
level of savings and the council’s ability to set a balanced budget for 2021/22.
5.

Conclusions

5.1

The council faces an unprecedented financial challenge with an estimated budget
gap for 2021/22 of £118.76m. In response, the authority has carried out a review of
its capital programme and established a ‘Financial Challenge’ programme of service
reviews to identify savings that will contribute towards closing the estimated budget
gap and enable the authority to present a robust, balanced budget position in
2021/22. These aim to protect services that support the most vulnerable whilst
ensuring that the organisation becomes more financially resilient and sustainable for
the future.

5.2

Thus far, £32.3m of savings have been identified through the service reviews and
£0.3m from the capital programme review. The £32.6m combined would reduce the
estimated gap for next year to £86.2m. Work continues to identify further savings
with proposals to come to this Board in October and November.

5.3

Meaningful consultation will be carried out with staff, trade unions, service users
and the public on proposals as required with the results used to inform the decisions
taken in respect of Service Reviews.

6.

Recommendations

6.1

Executive Board is requested to:
a) Note the financial position for 2021/22 outlined in this report and that further
savings are required to deliver a balanced budget position;
Page 26

b) Note the ‘Business as Usual’ savings and that decisions to give effect to them
shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions);
c) Agree that consultation commences with regard to the ‘Service Review’
proposals and note that decisions to give effect to them shall be taken by the
relevant Chief Officer, following the consultation period, in accordance with the
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions); and
d) Note the savings proposals in respect of the Housing Revenue Account.
7.

Background documents 1
None.

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.

Page 27

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Appendix 1: ‘Business as Usual’ 2021/22 savings
Table 1: Adults & Health Directorate
Proposal

Page 28

Balance of savings to the overall council strategy by switching funding from the funding of other council services to
meet Public Health strategy pressures and removal of Public Health net revenue charge; procurement savings and
deletion of vacant posts
Health Partnerships: reductions in general running costs
Commissioned Services for working age adults: remodelling of day opportunities provision
Commissioned Services for working age adults: seek additional funding towards cost of care packages
Commissioned Services for working age adults: social work value for money reviews, reassessments and demand
management
Review of care packages: efficiencies in homecare delivery and mental health and forensic services
Reduced contribution to Adults Safeguarding Board
Recovery of payments for care not delivered
Reduced inflation on non-pay elements of demand contracts (reduction in non-pay inflation allowance included in the
financial strategy to reflect lower CPI, saving £538k)
Deletion of electronic monitoring budget
Reassessment of individual care requirements for people with a learning disability based upon a strengths-based
approach
Income from client contributions

Total ‘BAU’ Adults & Health 2021/22 savings

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

663

-2.0

69
430
2,600

-1.0
0.0
0.0

1,250

0.0

500
75
489

0.0
0.0
2.0

0

0.0

40

0.0

1,000

0.0

1,000

0.0

8,116

-1.0

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Table 2: Children & Families Directorate
Proposal

Page 29

Increased level of income received to support Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children
Partnerships & Health: staffing savings through voluntary means, use of grant funding and further rollout of personal
transport allowances
Reduced contribution to One Adoption West Yorkshire
Increase in income from Adel Beck Placement charges
Proposal to cease Children and Families funding for 2 posts within West Yorkshire Police
Savings to schools and further education premature retirement costs that fall to the council
Efficiencies through automation of back office ordering and payment for services traded with schools
Resources & Strategy: Learning Systems - staffing savings through voluntary ELI (Early Leavers' Initiative) scheme
Learning Improvement: staffing savings through deletion of vacant posts, introduction of flexible payment contracts
and use of contracted council staff instead of external contractors (leading to net increase in council staff of 0.7 FTE)
Learning Inclusion: staffing savings through deletion of vacant post and removal of management post via voluntary
means through team reconfiguration
Deletion of a number of vacant posts across the Children & Families Directorate
Staffing savings through realignment of management posts in the Children Looked After Service

Total ‘BAU’ Children & Families 2021/22 savings

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s
1,000

FTE budgeted
posts
0.0

769

-6.2

740
250
106
250
70
155

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-3.0

130

0.7

100

-2.0

580
104

-15.0
-1.5

4,254

-27.0

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s
236

FTE budgeted
posts
0.0

700

-7.7

350

0.0

200

-1.5

Table 3: City Development Directorate
Proposal
Savings from a reduction in the council's core office base
Asset Management and Regeneration: Staffing savings through voluntary means and expenditure savings through
reductions in direct property costs and service revenue budgets
Reductions in general expenditure budgets (e.g. consumables and training) and increased capitalisation of staff costs
Markets & City Centre Service: staffing reductions through deletion of vacant posts and voluntary ELI means, general
expenditure budget reductions and increased income

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Table 3: City Development Directorate
Proposal
Employment & Skills: staffing reductions through deletion of vacant JNC post and reduction in research and evaluation
budget
Planning & Sustainable Development: staffing reductions through voluntary means, increased income and general
expenditure budget reductions
Highways & Transportation: use of balances arising from development agreements and review of charging
Museums & Galleries collection insurance
Efficiencies across venues: Leeds Town Hall, Carriageworks Theatre and Pudsey Civic Hall
Reduction in budgets for major events

Total ‘BAU’ City Development 2021/22 savings

Page 30

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

100

-1.0

350

-6.0

900
60
254
400

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

3,550

-16.2

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

635

-13.2

100
70
75
148
330
100
100
50
100
220
65

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

Table 4: Communities and Environment Directorate
Proposal
Environmental Services: non-operational staffing savings by realigning different sections within the overall service and
streamlining management and supervisory arrangements
Additional income from disposal of trade waste
Increased charge to developers for replacement bins
Cleaner Neighbourhood Teams: general expenditure budget savings
Electoral & Regulatory Services: general expenditure and income budget savings
Individual Electoral Registration Grant: use of carried forward grant income (one-off saving)
Woodhouse Lane Car Park: increased commuter tariff of 50p to a daily rate of £9
Additional income from on-street parking tariffs
Additional income from bus lane enforcement
Car Parking: general expenditure budget savings
Bereavement services price rise
General Fund grounds maintenance contract: reduction in grass cutting frequencies

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Table 4: Communities and Environment Directorate
Proposal

Page 31

Public Rights of Way Service: reduction in operational budgets including staff reductions through redeployment and
increased income
Temple Newsam Cycle Trails and Road Safety Park
Reduced contribution to Third Sector Infrastructure Fund budget
Review of overhead costs charged to Migration Yorkshire
Communities: general expenditure budget savings
Savings from Safer Leeds net managed budget
Reduced contribution to Leeds City Credit Union
Use of European Structural Investment Fund (ESIF) funding for existing senior customer services staffing costs
Staffing reductions in Directorate Improvement Team through voluntary means
Contact Centre: channel shift savings and increased productivity (total saving £420k, £350k of which already included in
the financial strategy)
Welfare & Benefits: increased New Burdens grant funding
Welfare & Benefits: general expenditure budget savings

Total ‘BAU’ Communities & Environment 2021/22 savings

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

100

-2.0

31
36
40
25
171
63
429
35

2.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-5.0
0.0
0.0
-1.0

70

-18.9

100
126

0.0
0.0

3,219

-38.1

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

708

-11.0

300
125

-10.0
0.0

380

-22.0

Table 5: Resources & Housing Directorate
Proposal
Human Resources: staffing reductions via voluntary means, reduced development budget and reduced graduate
recruitment in Sep 2021
Revenues, Benefits & Council Tax: process efficiencies
Chief Executive's: general expenditure budget savings
Business Support Centre: staffing reductions via voluntary means and non-resumption of envopak service (delivery of
mail to and from schools)

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Table 5: Resources & Housing Directorate
Proposal

Page 32

Legal Services: staffing reductions via voluntary means and deletion of vacant posts, small reduction in supplies and
services budget
Civic Enterprise Leeds: staffing savings through voluntary means and increased productivity / smarter working via
technology
Civic Enterprise Leeds: insourcing contracts
Civic Enterprise Leeds: additional income through increased commercialisation across cleaning and facilities
management and PRESTO (help at home services) expanded offer
Civic Enterprise Leeds: staffing reductions through voluntary means based on closing office accommodation and
redesigning facilities management services
Civic Enterprise Leeds: procurement savings on cleaning and catering contracts
Civic Enterprise Leeds: review and rationalisation of running costs
Procurement & Commercial Services: restructure (consultation has already taken place)
Housing General Fund: use of reserve
Leeds Building Services: additional turnover from the capital programme

Total ‘BAU’ Resources & Housing 2021/22 savings
Table 6: Total ‘BAU’ 2021/22 savings
2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

Adults and Health

8,116

-1.0

Children & Families

4,254

-27.0

City Development

3,550

-16.2

Communities & Environment

3,219

-38.1

Resources & Housing

5,016

-105.3

24,155

-187.6

Directorate

Total

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

216

-5.3

996

-42.0

550

0.0

243

0.0

320

-11.0

196
163
223
120
476

0.0
-1.0
-3.0
0.0
0.0

5,016

-105.3

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Appendix 2: Service Review Proposals
Summary of service review reports presented
Proposal

Page 33

City Development Directorate
Economic Development proposals:
- staffing reductions through voluntary means - if not delivered, restructure of the Economic Policy Team.
- cease membership of BITC (Business in the Community)
- stop / reduce attendance at MIPIM
- reduce travel and number of staff attending events
Strategic Planning: proposals to further develop options arising from completion of service review
Highways & Transportation: proposals to review staffing and operations across the service and generate additional
income and/or savings
Total City Development 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation
Resources & Housing Directorate
Business Administration Service: Proposal to create a fully integrated and centralised administration model with
efficiencies through modernisation
Digital Information Service (DIS): Proposal to modernise the structure of the service to deliver savings and secure
additional income. Through voluntary measures as far as possible but may require realignment of roles and
responsibilities and post deletion, through trade union and staff consultation.
Information Management and Governance (part of the wider DIS service): Proposal to modernise the structure to
meet the needs of a modern and agile council and deliver savings. Through voluntary measures as far as possible but
may require compulsory measures through trade union and staff consultation.
Financial Services: Proposed restructure of Financial Management within Financial Services with trade union and staff
consultation
Sustainable Energy & Air Quality: Proposal to increase income through securing additional grant funding. Also staff
savings through voluntary measures but if this is not possible, may require a restructure with trade union and staff
consultation.
Intelligence & Policy Service: Proposed restructure of Intelligence and Policy Service within the Resources and Housing
Directorate with trade union and staff consultation

2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

110

-1.0

100

-2.0

1,620

-26.0

1,830

-29.0

2,000

-100.0

2,434

-58.0

N/A – part of DIS proposal above
1,000

-22.0

250

-3.0

173

-7.8

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board September 2020

Summary of service review reports presented
2021/22 saving
/ £‘000s

FTE budgeted
posts

0

-70.0

480

-1.0

Total Resources & Housing 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation

6,337

-261.8

Total 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation

8,167

-290.8

Proposal
Leeds Building Services: Proposed suite of activities across Leeds Building Services to reduce costs, including
overheads, productivity improvements, new IT system and additional income. Largest element through staffing
reductions with full restructure anticipated with staff and trade union consultation. Savings proposal: £1.54m which
contributes to offsetting an existing budget pressure.
Fleet Services: Proposal to review working practices and delivery models and develop commercial income. Full
restructure of Fleet Services required with trade union and staff consultation.

Page 34

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Eve Roodhouse
Report of: Martin Farrington, Director of City Development
Portfolio: Inclusive Growth and Culture
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Economic Development

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 110K

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
Economic Development deliver functions and services that enable the development of a strong
economy in Leeds, essential for the health of future council budgets. Economic Development delivers
support to businesses in Leeds and for some programmes within the city region; promotes Leeds and
the wider city region internationally as a great place to live, learn, work, visit; provides an economic
intelligence, Key Account Management, an economic policy service; and is central to the delivery of
the Inclusive Growth Strategy one of the three strategies that underpin the Best Council Plan.
The Economic Development Function has seen significant reduction in recent years. For instance, over
the last 10 years it is estimated that LCC resources deployed in supporting businesses has reduced
from £1.2M in 2007/8 to £244,190 in FY18/19. The Covid 19 Emergency in 2020 has served to highlight
how important it is to retain this function rather than to seek to reduce it further with staff deployed
on the administration of the business grant schemes as well as seeing an increased demand in existing
services.
The International Relations function reduced from 11 FTE in 2008 to 2 FTE today. In the context of
both the economic impact of Covid and BREXIT, the next 12-24 months will be a critical time for Leeds
to position itself internationally as an outward looking city, building its reputation as a leading city for
digital, creative and financial and professional services.
The Inward Investment function is an incredibly lean team comprised of 1 FTE. The function pulls on
design resource in the Visit Team and considerable time is also committed by the Head of Service and
Chief Officer due to the nature of the work. In the context of economic recovery it is vital that we
retain this capability. Opportunities still exist for inward investment and Leeds is well placed to
continue to secure external investment.

Page 35

The small Economic Policy and Programmes team provides excellent value through the multiple
services it delivers. The team develop and enable the delivery of LCC Economic Policy and Strategy.
This includes leading the implementation of the Inclusive Growth Strategy; Significant time is spent
by the team working with partners to deliver projects in support of the Leeds economy. The team
lead on business engagement through the Key Account Management Team. The team are currently
developing the economic response to Covid 19.
This proposal outlines an option to save up to £110,000 per year from the Economic Development
service. This will be for a combination of pay and none pay savings.
•
•
•
•

Ceasing membership of ‘Business in the Community’.
Stopping or reducing attendance at MIPIM:
Restructuring the Economic Policy team.
Reducing travel and a reduction in the number of staff attending events

Impacts of proposal
•
•

•

•

Ceasing membership of ‘Business in the Community’.
o The negative impact on the Council of ceasing membership of BITC is limited.
Stopping or reducing attendance at MIPIM
o This presents a risk that Leeds is perceived as not being on an equal footing to other
UK Cities such as Manchester that do attend, reducing our attractiveness as an
inward investment destination.
Restructuring the Economic Policy team.
o There would need to be a restructure under LCC processes. Any restructuring
exercise will involve disruption to the current service while this is ongoing. The
service will not be able to take on any additional work and some current work will
be reduced.
Reducing travel and a reduction in the number of staff attending events
o The savings will be made possible as a result of reduced travel, a reduction in the
number of staff attending events, thereby working more efficiently. Promotion and
advertising budgets are already low, but these cuts will be made possible through a
reduction in paper based advertising, moving towards proactive PR and Social
media.

Recommendation(s)
It is recommended that more in-depth appraisals are conducted for the following areas:
If the proposed staffing savings are not delivered through voluntary means then the Economic
Policy Team be restructured to deliver the savings. Process and procedures to be applied with
follow the advice of Human Resources.
It is recommended that the following proposals are accepted:
Ceasing membership of BITC
Stopping or reducing attendance at MIPIM*
Reducing travel and a reduction in the number of staff attending events

Page 36

Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration screening –
organisational change impacting on the workforce
As a public authority we need to ensure that all organisational change arrangements
impacting on the workforce have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration.
Equality and diversity will always have relevancy to organisational changes which impact on
a diverse workforce. If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact
on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration then you have already carried out an impact
assessment.
A screening process is a short, sharp exercise, which completed at the earliest opportunity
will help to determine:
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has already
been considered, and therefore
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate:City Development

Service area: Economic Development

Lead person:
Fiona Bolam

Contact number:
01135351882

1. Please provide a brief description of the organisational change arrangements that
you are screening

I am proposing to undertake a restructure of the economic policy team. This will
involve stopping a small amount of work in the economic information area and
restructuring around key functions that the team performs.

1

Use from October 2015

Page 37

2. Consideration of equality, diversity, cohesion and integration checklist
Questions
Have you already considered equality and diversity within your
current and future planning?
Where you have made consideration does this relate to the
range of equality characteristics
Have you considered positive and negative impacts for
different equality characteristics
Have you considered any potential barriers for different groups
Have you used equality information and consultation where
appropriate to develop your proposals
Is there a clear plan of how equality areas identified for
improvement will be addressed

Yes
Yes

No

Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No

If you’ve answered no to the questions above, there may be gaps in your equality and
diversity considerations and you should complete an equality and diversity, cohesion and
integration impact assessment (organisational change). Please go to section 4.
If you’ve answered yes to the questions above and believe you’ve already considered the
impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to
section 3.

2

Use from October 2015

Page 38

3. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate that you’ve considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected.

Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality characteristics,
potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, potential to bring
groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception that the proposal
could benefit one group at the expense of another).

Actions
(think about how you’ll promote positive impact and remove or reduce negative impact)

3

Use from October 2015

Page 39

4. If you’re not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you’ll need to carry out an impact assessment
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

14/9/2020

Date to complete your impact assessment

30/9/2020

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

Fiona Bolam, Head of Economic
Policy

5. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name

Job title

Date

Date screening completed

6. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to executive board, full council, key delegated decisions or a
significant operational decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision making
report:
•
•
•

governance services will publish those relating to executive board and full council
the appropriate directorate will publish those relating to delegated decisions and
significant operational decisions
a copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening was
sent
For executive board or full council – sent to governance
services

Date sent:

For delegated decisions or significant operational
decisions – sent to appropriate directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to the equality team

Date sent:

4

Use from October 2015

Page 40

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Martin Elliot (Head of Strategic Planning)
Report of: David Feeney (Chief Planning Officer)
Portfolio: Planning and Sustainable Development
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Strategic Planning

2021/22 savings from proposal

£100k (circa)

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
The Council’s Strategic Planning Group is at the forefront of shaping the character, development and
prosperity of the City. It does this through the delivery of statutory requirements for plan-making and
environmental stewardship as well as through supporting and leading the delivery of corporate priorities
(usually as projects). It is highly embedded within the wider Council and has an excellent and highly visible
working relationship with councillors.

Impacts of proposal
An Efficiency Review was undertaken which considered how the Council could deliver a statutory and nonstatutory policy framework at a reduced base cost. Given the nature of the service (with over 700 individual
work items) it was not possible within the 4 week period of the Efficiency Review for absolute
recommendations to be made; instead a series of 22 options were set out on (a) reducing the amount of work
in progress, (b) reducing the time spent on things, by making processes lighter and (c) opportunities to sell
professional services, to monetise the skills and expertise in the Group through improved consultancy
disciplines.
The Efficiency Review concludes that there are options for expenditure cost savings as follows:• initial estimated £30-40k p.a. from reduced spend on plan-making (e.g. fewer, reduced scope or joint
plans (inc. SPDs) resulting in savings on examination and/or consultation costs)
• initial estimated £10k p.a. saving from taking a reduced approach to consultation (e.g. digital focussed
as a preference)
But note these are not to be considered as base budget savings as these costs are part of Local Plan
expenditure which is a budget that has overspent in previous years so these savings will help keep spend
within the budget in future years.

Page 41

As part of overall operational efficiencies, it is noted that the Strategic Planning Group needs to create a new
culture and a business model that is more agile, collaborative and commercially aware, including:
• an improved ‘portfolio management’ approach to help better programme work (for which a further
“invest to save” business case is to be made est. £10k)
• a more ‘consultancy-based’ culture to avoid over-delivering
• to better articulate its value, especially the levels of income that it helps generate for the Council
These headline outputs apply to plan-making, consultations for Development Management (e.g. producing
standing advice) and Corporate projects and involve streamlining (e.g. preparation of the Local Plan),
prioritising, stopping or suspending work (e.g. the Leeds Architecture Awards which whilst cost neutral require
significant staff resource and could be administered by another body or partnership). It is also noted that
customer centre traffic to the Group is very high and self-serve advice will help make efficiencies.
Should these operational efficiencies happen it will enable reduced staffing costs to be achieved as follows:• initially circa £100k from targeted vacancy management and acceptance of a contribution from ELIs
as part of a wider service re-structure in line with the Efficiency Review
There is significant interest for the ELI package within the Group. As a result there is a need for further
ongoing work to develop these Efficiency Review options as part of a wider staffing restructure, once the
extent of the ELI posts are known. This will be in consultation with Planning and Sustainable Development
SMT, service colleagues and the Executive Member. It is also noted that the Government have just released
significant proposals for the Planning System which potentially will bring about proposes significant changes to
the organisation of local planning authorities with an emphasis on Local Plans, design and place making,
community participation and digital/GIS processes to enable better engagement.
The Efficiency Review also concludes that there are additional income generation opportunities (e.g. for
Geographical Information Systems), which at this stage remain to be considered in more detail with a
recognised need for external support in marketing services externally and understanding what their year on
year targets may be.

Recommendation(s)
To note progress made in the completion of the Service Review (by external provider) and the contribution to
overall service savings of initially £100k for the Strategic Planning Group.
To note the need for further ongoing work to develop these options. This will be in consultation with Planning
and Sustainable Development SMT, service colleagues and the Executive Member.

Page 42

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate:
City Development
Lead person:
Martin Elliot

Service area:
Planning and Sustainable Development
Contact number:
0113 37 87634

1. Title:
Service review report
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

x

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
This screening considers equality implications in terms of an efficiency review for the
Council’s Strategic Planning Group (as part of wider budgetary savings to be
considered as part of an Executive Board paper for 24th September), in particular
staffing issues, customers and end users, policy and practises. Progress to date in
making initial proposals for savings is considered in relation to equality impact. The
Strategic Planning Group is at the forefront of shaping the character, development and
prosperity of the City. It does this through the delivery of statutory requirements for planmaking and environmental stewardship as well as through supporting and leading the
delivery of corporate priorities (usually as projects). It is highly embedded within the
wider Council and has an excellent and highly visible working relationship with
councillors.
EDCI Screening
Template updated January 2014
1
Page 43

An external Efficiency Review was undertaken which considered how the Council could
deliver a statutory and non-statutory policy framework at a reduced base cost. Given
the nature of the service (with over 700 individual work items) it was not possible within
the 4 week period of the Efficiency Review for absolute recommendations to be made;
instead a series of 22 options were set out on (a) reducing the amount of work in
progress, (b) reducing the time spent on things, by making processes lighter and (c)
opportunities to sell professional services, to monetise the skills and expertise in the
Group through improved consultancy disciplines. These will enable the Group to make
savings through managing vacancies and accepting ELI requests. It is envisaged that
this will implemented through a staffing restructure in due course once ELI requests are
known and will be in line with the Efficiency Review.

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
EDCI Screening

Yes
x
x
x
x
x

Template updated January 2014

Page 44

No

2

•
•

Advancing equality of opportunity
Fostering good relations

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
These issues have been raised as part of the Efficiency Review and the initial proposition
for the Review explicitly captured them as follows:
How can Leeds City Council deliver a statutory and non-statutory policy framework
at a reduced base cost, ensuring that citizen, developer and members views are
considered as part of that process?
However, the Efficiency Review did not arrive at firm recommendations, instead it set out
a series of options which the service will need to implement and address. These issues
will be considered further as the Efficiency Review is implemented and with further
consultation which was not possible due to the speed at which the Review was carried
out. From a staffing perspective this will be done in part through a staffing restructure,
which is dependent on the interest within the service on the Council’s ELI package. From
a user perspective any changes to the service will need to be amended through further
EDCI Screening
Template updated January 2014
3
Page 45

consultation work e.g. the Efficiency Review proposes an option of reducing the Groups
consultation burden. This would need to be formally done through a Statement of
Community Involvement which would require public consultation.
• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another).
There are a number of recommendations for savings set out in the review which are at
early stages. Equality considerations have been integral to this review, and given the
early stage of the proposals will continue to be considered and mitigated.
Savings option(s)
An Efficiency Review was undertaken which considered how the Council could deliver a
statutory and non-statutory strategic planning framework at a reduced base cost. Given
the nature of the service (with over 700 individual work items) it was not possible within
the 4 week period of the Efficiency Review for absolute recommendations to be made;
however, a series of 22 options for efficiency savings were set out on (a) reducing the
amount of work in progress, (b) reducing the time spent on things, by making processes
lighter and (c) opportunities to sell professional services, to monetise the skills and
expertise in the Group through improved consultancy disciplines.
Expenditure Costs Savings.
The Efficiency Review concludes that there are some initial limited options for
expenditure cost savings. The savings are:
•
initial estimated £30-40k p.a. from reduced spend on plan-making (e.g. fewer,
reduced scope or joint plans (inc. Supplementary Planning Documents) resulting in
savings on examination and/or consultation costs)
•
initial estimated £10k p.a. saving from taking a reduced approach to consultation
(e.g. digital focussed as a preference)
Operational Efficiencies
There is potential for savings through overall operational efficiencies. The Efficiency
Review noted that the Strategic Planning Group needs to create a new culture and a
business model that is more agile, collaborative and commercially aware, including:
•
an improved ‘portfolio management’ approach to help better programme work
Portfolio Management disciplines will help keep a better handle on the work being done,
allow for a more informed discussion about whether/ when to take more work on (e.g.
slow down), and will enable more evidence- based decisions around stopping work that
doesn’t directly contribute to strategic priorities. It is estimated that this approach will be
especially relevant to the Local Plan work programme, which is currently oversubscribed.
In terms of wider equality considerations there are positive impacts, however customers
are used to having a responsive service to their queries. The protected characteristics are
wide ranging and local plan policies have been responsive to date, for example the
‘nationally described space standards’ policy was adopted as part of the Core Strategy
Selective Review as well as an accessible housing policy. Both policies have had a
positive impact in particular for those with mobility issues, younger people and women in
but also have more widely benefitted all protected characteristics. It is important that the
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 46

4

local plan scope continues to consider any equality considerations to ensure that policies
have a positive impact for end users.
•
a more ‘consultancy-based’ culture to avoid over-delivering. The Review
concludes that the Group have a reputation for over-delivering on their work and thus
incurring additional costs; doing more work than is required or requested by their clients
and a consultancy approach with clearer/defined Project Briefs, Acceptance Criteria,
deadlines and quality management processes. A consultancy based approach will have a
positive impact on service delivery and equality considerations. Any proposals would
further need to identify and work closely with staff to ensure that equality considerations
and impact on staff is considered. It is noted that this could reduce the depth of analysis
performed by the team in many cases and reduce the expected level of service which will
need managing.
•
to better articulate its value. The team help Leeds City Council generate a
significant level of income; value which is often unseen and underplayed. Being clearer
about what people deliver, and sharing success measures openly, can help people hold
themselves and their colleagues accountable. It also enables teams to collaborate, meet
their objectives and achieve more meaningful job satisfaction. Recognition of value can
be a positive driver for staff and morale, and provide a better fit with organisational value.
The Efficiency Review also highlighted 19 further specific options around plan-making,
consultations for Development Management and Corporate projects. They involve:
•
streamlining work (e.g. reducing the scope/speed of the Local Plan and the
resources put into public consultation (e.g. by more on-line options) and preparing more
standing advice for planning applications/queries). Impact on staff is important along with
a realistic expectation of the local plan scope. This would mitigate any organisational
impact and support staff in relation to volume of work and resource available. There is a
community expectation around Local Plans and support may be reduced, however this
can be mitigated by setting out clear briefs.
•
stopping or suspending work (e.g. the Leeds Architecture Awards, which whilst
cost neutral requires significant staff resource and could be administered by another body
or partnership). Whilst a saving can be made, the impact of this on Leeds reputation as a
professional organisation can be affected, however it terms of equality impact this is
minimal.
•
income generation potential (e.g. for Geographical Information Systems or for
service over and above the minimum), which at this stage remain to be considered in
more detail with a recognised need for external support in marketing services externally
and understanding what their year on year targets may be. This provides an opportunity
to further increase income but also to share resource organisational, and will have a
positive impact.
Customer Traffic
E-mail customer traffic to the Group is very high and issues in the Efficiency Review, such
as improving self-serve advice will help make efficiencies in this area (e.g. through eforms and web-site improvements (e.g. chat-bots for FAQs)). Further work and alignment
with Customer Access will be required. In terms of the impact on staffing this can be
useful in reducing workload, however wider equality considerations in terms of the impact
on customers will need to be mitigated in particular in terms of the protected
characteristics. Accessible documents and how reasonable adjustments will be made are
important considerations particularly for customers with disabilities. The different
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 47

5

protected characteristics may rely more heavily on customer service with officers,
mitigation should be considered to include access to documentation.
Digital Planning Strategy
Whilst the Efficiency Review recognises that the service is reliant on a handling a large
amount of data/information and managing a large number of digital processes (in
common with Development Management), where there is opportunity for greater
efficiency and savings. It was acknowledged that an in-house Digital Strategy for
Planning is already underway and the Review (given its tight timescales) did not focus on
this aspect. Work with DIS will continue on this aspect and in particular the role of GIS
(e.g. as part of self-serve). Resourcing and training for staff to ensure that the digital
strategy can be implemented effectively is important in ensuring that digital planning is
incorporated effectively. Accessibility of information and IT resources, for example
disabled people may have an economic disadvantage and there is a need to consider
mitigation to include reasonable adjustment.
Staffing Savings
Should the operational efficiencies outlined happen, it is considered that this will lead to
more efficient use of officer time, create additional capacity and result in the Strategic
Planning Group’s ability to not fill vacant posts and facilitate consideration of ELI
requests. This will be in consultation with Planning and Sustainable Development SMT,
HR, service colleagues and the Executive Member. In terms of the impact on staffing
structures whilst the response to the ELI packages is positive, the impact of loss of
expertise and knowledge is inevitable and it is important to look at mitigation, in terms of
more efficient use of officer time, creation of additional capacity, training and support as
needed and a wider consideration of impact on organisational service delivery. Any
proposals will need to continue to demonstrate due regard has been given. The impact of
reduction of staff will mean a narrower remit of service, which may have an impact on end
users and customers, the impact of this will need to be mitigated and monitored.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
These outputs will need further detailed discussions and consultation (including with
staff and customers, who for reasons of speed, were not fully included in the rapid 4week review). Staff have been involved in early dialogue, and will need to be
consulted and involved as these initial proposals are further developed. There will be
a need to ensure that the efficiencies and their implications are aligned with
Development Management service in particular (and internal clients). It is noted that
Government have recently released a White Paper which proposes significant
changes to the organisation of local planning authorities with an emphasis on Local
Plans, design and place making, community participation and digital/GIS processes to
enable better engagement. Equality training and support for officers and members is
important to ensure that due regard is given to all changes. Given the importance of
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 48

6

digital planning in national policy, any proposals need to continue to consider
accessibility of not only documents/plans but service to end customers.

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Date screening completed
7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
EDCI Screening
Template updated January 2014
7
Page 49

•

A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent:
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 50

8

Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration screening –
organisational change impacting on the workforce
As a public authority we need to ensure that all organisational change arrangements
impacting on the workforce have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration.
Equality and diversity will always have relevancy to organisational changes which impact on
a diverse workforce. If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact
on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration then you have already carried out an impact
assessment.
A screening process is a short, sharp exercise, which completed at the earliest opportunity
will help to determine:
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has already
been considered, and therefore
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate:
City Development
Lead person:
Martin Elliot

Service area:
Planning and Sustainable Development
Contact number:
0113 37 87634

1. Please provide a brief description of the organisational change arrangements that
you are screening
This screening considers equality implications in terms of organisational change for an
efficiency review for the Council’s Strategic Planning Group, in particular by considering
impacts on staffing structures and, policies and plans. The Strategic Planning Group is at
the forefront of shaping the character, development and prosperity of the City. It does this
through the delivery of statutory requirements for plan-making and environmental
stewardship as well as through supporting and leading the delivery of corporate priorities
(usually as projects). It is highly embedded within the wider Council and has an excellent
and highly visible working relationship with councillors.
An Efficiency Review was undertaken which considered how the Council could deliver a
statutory and non-statutory policy framework at a reduced base cost. Given the nature of
the service (with over 700 individual work items) it was not possible within the 4 week
period of the Efficiency Review for absolute recommendations to be made; instead a series
of 22 options were set out on (a) reducing the amount of work in progress, (b) reducing the
time spent on things, by making processes lighter and (c) opportunities to sell professional
services, to monetise the skills and expertise in the Group through improved consultancy
disciplines.
1

Use from October 2015

Page 51

2. Consideration of equality, diversity, cohesion and integration checklist
Questions
Have you already considered equality and diversity within your
current and future planning?
Where you have made consideration does this relate to the
range of equality characteristics
Have you considered positive and negative impacts for
different equality characteristics
Have you considered any potential barriers for different groups

Yes
x

Have you used equality information and consultation where
appropriate to develop your proposals
Is there a clear plan of how equality areas identified for
improvement will be addressed

x

No

x
x
x

x

If you’ve answered no to the questions above, there may be gaps in your equality and
diversity considerations and you should complete an equality and diversity, cohesion and
integration impact assessment (organisational change). Please go to section 4.
If you’ve answered yes to the questions above and believe you’ve already considered the
impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to
section 3.

2

Use from October 2015

Page 52

3. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate that you’ve considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected.

Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality characteristics,
potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, potential to bring
groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception that the proposal
could benefit one group at the expense of another).
There are a number of recommendations for savings set out in the review. This screening
considers equality implications in terms of organisational impact. Throughout the process
there has been transparency in terms of staff briefings from an early stage. A number of
saving options are considered and set out;
Savings option(s)
An Efficiency Review was undertaken which considered how the Council could deliver a
statutory and non-statutory strategic planning framework at a reduced base cost. Given the
nature of the service (with over 700 individual work items) it was not possible within the 4
3

Use from October 2015

Page 53

week period of the Efficiency Review for absolute recommendations to be made; however, a
series of 22 options for efficiency savings were set out on (a) reducing the amount of work in
progress, (b) reducing the time spent on things, by making processes lighter and (c)
opportunities to sell professional services, to monetise the skills and expertise in the Group
through improved consultancy disciplines.
Expenditure Costs Savings.
The Efficiency Review concludes that there are some initial limited options for expenditure
cost savings. The savings are:
•
initial estimated £30-40k p.a. from reduced spend on plan-making (e.g. fewer,
reduced scope or joint plans (inc. Supplementary Planning Documents) resulting in savings
on examination and/or consultation costs)
•
initial estimated £10k p.a. saving from taking a reduced approach to consultation (e.g.
digital focussed as a preference)
Operational Efficiencies
There is potential for savings through overall operational efficiencies. The Efficiency Review
noted that the Strategic Planning Group needs to create a new culture and a business
model that is more agile, collaborative and commercially aware, including:
•
an improved ‘portfolio management’ approach to help better programme work
Portfolio Management disciplines will help keep a better handle on the work being done,
allow for a more informed discussion about whether/ when to take more work on (e.g. slow
down), and will enable more evidence- based decisions around stopping work that doesn’t
directly contribute to strategic priorities. It is estimated that this approach will be especially
relevant to the Local Plan work programme, which is currently oversubscribed.
In terms of equality considerations in relation to organisational impact, a portfolio
management approach will have a positive impact on service delivery and equality
considerations that align with the Best Council Plan. Staff training is important to ensure that
positive changes and support are given to staff of all protected characteristics at key stages.
•
a more ‘consultancy-based’ culture to avoid over-delivering. The Review concludes
that the Group have a reputation for over-delivering on their work and thus incurring
additional costs; doing more work than is required or requested by their clients and a
consultancy approach with clearer/defined Project Briefs, Acceptance Criteria, deadlines
and quality management processes (amongst other things). A consultancy based approach
will have a positive impact on service delivery, this could reduce the depth of analysis
performed by the team in many cases and reduce the expected level of service.
•
to better articulate its value. The team help Leeds City Council generate a significant
level of income; value which is often unseen and underplayed. Being clearer about what
people deliver, and sharing success measures openly, can help people hold themselves and
their colleagues accountable. It also enables teams to collaborate, meet their objectives and
achieve more meaningful job satisfaction. Recognition of value can be a positive driver for
staff and morale, and provide a better fit with organisational value.
The Efficiency Review also highlighted 19 further specific options around plan-making,
consultations for Development Management and Corporate projects. They involve:
•
streamlining work (e.g. reducing the scope/speed of the Local Plan and the resources
put into public consultation (e.g. by more on-line options) and preparing more standing
advice for planning applications/queries). In terms of equality consideration the impact on
staff is important in relation to a realistic expectation of the local plan scope. This would
4

Use from October 2015

Page 54

mitigate any organisational impact by ensuring that the volume of work needs to relate to
level of resource available.
•
stopping or suspending work (e.g. the Leeds Architecture Awards, which whilst cost
neutral requires significant staff resource and could be administered by another body or
partnership). Whilst a saving can be made, the impact of this on Leeds reputation as a
professional organisation can be affected, however it terms of equality impact this is
minimal.
•
income generation potential (e.g. for Geographical Information Systems or for service
over and above the minimum), which at this stage remain to be considered in more detail
with a recognised need for external support in marketing services externally and
understanding what their year on year targets may be. This provides an opportunity to
further increase income but also to share resource organisationally to provide a wider
benefit for all groups.
Customer Traffic
E-mail customer traffic to the Group is very high and issues in the Efficiency Review such as
improving self-serve advice will help make efficiencies in this area (e.g. through e-forms and
web-site improvements (e.g. chat-bots for FAQs)). Further work and alignment with
Customer Access will be required. In terms of the impact on staffing structures this can be
useful in reducing workload, however wider equality considerations in terms of the impact on
customers will need to be mitigated in particular in terms of the protected characteristics
such as those with a disability and on lower incomes who may need a more support.
Digital Planning Strategy
Whilst the Efficiency Review recognises that the service is reliant on a handling a large
amount of data/information and managing a large number of digital processes (in common
with Development Management) where there is opportunity for greater efficiency and
savings, it was acknowledged that an in-house Digital Strategy for Planning is already
underway and the Review (given its tight timescales) did not focus on this aspect. Work
with DIS will continue on this aspect and in particular the role of GIS (e.g. as part of selfserve). Resourcing and training for staff to ensure that the digital strategy can be
implemented effectively is important. Accessibility of information for all, for example disabled
people may have an economic disadvantage and reasonable adjustments will need to be
considered.
Staffing Savings
Should the operational efficiencies outlined happen, it is considered that this will lead to
more efficient use of officer time, create additional capacity and result in the Strategic
Planning Group’s ability to not fill vacant posts and facilitate consideration of ELI requests.
This will be in consultation with Planning and Sustainable Development SMT, HR, service
colleagues and the Executive Member. In terms of the impact on staffing structures whilst
the response to the ELI packages is positive, the impact of loss of expertise and knowledge
is inevitable and it is important to look at mitigation. More efficient use of officer time,
creation of additional capacity, training and support as needed and a wider consideration of
impact on organisational service delivery.

5

Use from October 2015

Page 55

Actions
(think about how you’ll promote positive impact and remove or reduce negative impact)
These outputs will need further detailed discussions and consultation (including with staff
and customers, who for reasons of speed, were not fully included in the rapid 4-week
review). Staff have been involved in early dialogue, and will need to be consulted and
involved as these initial proposals are further developed. There will be a need to ensure that
the efficiencies and their implications are aligned with Development Management service in
particular (and internal clients). It is noted that Government have recently released a White
Paper which proposes significant changes to the organisation of local planning authorities
with an emphasis on Local Plans, design and place making, community participation and
digital/GIS processes to enable better engagement. Equality training and support for
officers and members is important to ensure that due regard is given to all changes. Given
the importance of digital planning in national policy, any proposals need to continue to
consider accessibility of not only documents/plans but service to end customers.

4. If you’re not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you’ll need to carry out an impact assessment
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
5. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name

Job title

Date

Date screening completed

6

Use from October 2015

Page 56

6. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to executive board, full council, key delegated decisions or a
significant operational decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision making
report:
•
•
•

governance services will publish those relating to executive board and full council
the appropriate directorate will publish those relating to delegated decisions and
significant operational decisions
a copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening was
sent
For executive board or full council – sent to governance
services

Date sent:

For delegated decisions or significant operational
decisions – sent to appropriate directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to the equality team

Date sent:

7

Use from October 2015

Page 57

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Gary Bartlett, Chief Officer for Highways and Transportation
Report of: Director of City Development
Portfolio: Climate Change, Transport and Sustainable Development
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Highways & Transportation proposals: review of staffing and freezing of
vacancies

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 1,620k

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

No
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview

Highways and Transportation Service comprises 3 service areas which carry out the Council’s
role as Highway Authority, Traffic Authority and lead Local Flood Authority.
Because of the nature of the Service’s work, the statutory elements, the Service’s structure
(its size and technical centre of excellence status) and its modus operandi, previous reviews
have culminated in proposals to review how we operate and are structured, review charges
and fees, review the level of works carried out by third parties and to pursue one-off
opportunities as and when they arise, for example via effective procurement and contract
management processes; in other words, to look to increase turnover and to diversify in order
to generate further work and income for the Service. These proposals follow this model which
has served the Service, the Directorate and Council well over the last 10-15 years, and are
seen as achievable.
The proposals comprise a number of elements:
No. Proposal

Saving £

1
2
3
4

270,000
1,240,000
70,000
40,000
1,620,000

Review of staffing
Freezing of vacancies
Reduction in sign and road markings budget
Review of supplies and services
Total:

Page 58

For the purposes of this exercise, proposals (1) and (2) have been reviewed together.
Proposals 3 and 4 will be progressed / managed by the Service throughout the financial year.
Review of staffing and freezing of vacancies: because of the scale of the work across the whole
Service, a number of structures have been undertaken and are planned to match resources
with heavy workloads. Given the circumstances, it seems appropriate at this stage to review
these restructures and any other potential for restructuring to improve overall service
performance and the number of budgeted vacancies across the whole service whilst being
mindful not to adversely impact the delivery of programmes or schemes, income generation
or savings efficiency potential. The freezing of posts could be delivered in a relatively short
timescale after careful review but any restructuring proposals will take many months to
deliver because of the level of consultations to be undertaken and processes to follow.
Impacts of proposal

The impact of the review of staffing and freezing of vacancies proposals will be felt most
keenly in one part of the service namely Highways Infrastructure. For various staffing
reasons, the restructure has not progressed as quickly as in the other two service areas
causing some frustration because some longstanding issues have not yet been addressed.
Any further general restructuring proposals will cause a level of uncertainty depending on
the level of change that might be involved. Detailed discussions with all staff involved and
the trade unions will be undertaken.
Recommendation(s)

Executive Board is requested to:
AGREE to a review of staffing and operations across Highways and Transportation Service,
including the potential freezing of budgeted posts, to generate income and/or savings in
order to reduce the net managed H+T budget by circa £1.5m per annum.

Page 59

Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration screening –
organisational change impacting on the workforce
As a public authority we need to ensure that all organisational change arrangements
impacting on the workforce have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration.
Equality and diversity will always have relevancy to organisational changes which impact on
a diverse workforce. If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact
on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration then you have already carried out an impact
assessment.
A screening process is a short, sharp exercise, which completed at the earliest opportunity
will help to determine:
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has already
been considered, and therefore
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate: City Development

Service area: Highways and Transportation

Lead person: Gary Bartlett

Contact number:

1. Please provide a brief description of the organisational change arrangements that
you are screening
Review of staffing and freezing of vacancies: because of the scale of the work across the
whole Service, a number of structures have been undertaken and are planned to match
resources with heavy workloads. Given the circumstances, it seems appropriate at this
stage to review these restructures and any other potential for restructuring to improve
overall service performance and the number of budgeted vacancies across the whole
service whilst being mindful not to adversely impact the delivery of programmes or schemes,
income generation or savings efficiency potential. The freezing of posts could be delivered
in a relatively short timescale after careful review but any restructuring proposals will take
many months to deliver because of the level of consultations to be undertaken and
processes to follow.
Work on this is still at a very early stage and will be influenced by the response to the recent
ELI offer with staff being asked to express interest by the end of September 2020.

1

Use from October 2015

Page 60

2. Consideration of equality, diversity, cohesion and integration checklist
Questions
Have you already considered equality and diversity within your
current and future planning?
Where you have made consideration does this relate to the
range of equality characteristics
Have you considered positive and negative impacts for
different equality characteristics
Have you considered any potential barriers for different groups
Have you used equality information and consultation where
appropriate to develop your proposals
Is there a clear plan of how equality areas identified for
improvement will be addressed

Yes

No
x
x
x
x
x
x

If you’ve answered no to the questions above, there may be gaps in your equality and
diversity considerations and you should complete an equality and diversity, cohesion and
integration impact assessment (organisational change). Please go to section 4.
If you’ve answered yes to the questions above and believe you’ve already considered the
impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to
section 3.

2

Use from October 2015

Page 61

3. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate that you’ve considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected.

Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality characteristics,
potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, potential to bring
groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception that the proposal
could benefit one group at the expense of another).

Actions
(think about how you’ll promote positive impact and remove or reduce negative impact)

3

Use from October 2015

Page 62

4. If you’re not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you’ll need to carry out an impact assessment
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

Autumn post 25th September

Date to complete your impact assessment

Autumn 2020

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways
and Transportation

5. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Gary Bartlett
Date screening completed

Job title
Chief Officer Highways and
Transportation

Date
19th August 2020
19th August 2020

6. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to executive board, full council, key delegated decisions or a
significant operational decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision making
report:
•
•
•

governance services will publish those relating to executive board and full council
the appropriate directorate will publish those relating to delegated decisions and
significant operational decisions
a copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening was
sent
For executive board or full council – sent to governance
services

Date sent:19th August 2020

For delegated decisions or significant operational
decisions – sent to appropriate directorate

Date sent:19th August 2020

All other decisions – sent to the equality team

Date sent:

4

Use from October 2015

Page 63

Service review report

Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author: Louise Snowden, Head of Business Administration
Report of: Director of Resources and Housing
Portfolio: Councillor J Lewis: Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Resources
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Remodel of the Business Administration Service

2021/22 savings from proposal

£2.0m *Est

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

No
Yes
Yes – service areas in the Council and partner
agency, Health
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
Background
The Business Administration Service (BAS) was created as part of the Better Business Management
(BBM) review in 2015, under the umbrella of Shared Services with the Business Support Centre. By
bringing administration teams together under the BAS the intention was to review how
administration teams were working and how they could work smarter and more efficiently making
best use of available resources and digitalisation opportunities.
The vision and the objectives of BAS are:
VISION - To develop a professional Business Administrative Service that meets Service needs and
supports the delivery of the Best Council Plan outcomes ensuring the efficient use of resources,
capacity and technology
• We will … Work in partnership with services and business partners to realise an effective
Business Administration Service.
• We will … Optimise opportunities for efficiency; further embedding the ‘simplify, standardise
and share, automate and stop’ approach, maximising technology and delivering process
improvements.
• We will … Deliver modern, professional and cost effective administrative support to the
Council and all our customers.
• We will …. Cultivate skills, empower, engage and motivating our workforce, realising and
recognising their full potential.
The service has staff working in all directorates of the council. Staff are co-located with the services
and there is a combination of direct line management within the BAS and matrix management
within other directorates. There is no single fixed line management model across the whole of the

Page 64

service but all staff (where there are matrix management arrangements) have a named contact
within BAS.
BAS comprises of approximately 750 staff across over 130 sites and has a budget of approximately
£17 million. To date, since its inception, the BAS has already delivered in excess of £4m savings from
centralisation.
The current financial challenge and growing demand on services means there is an urgent need to
progress the aims and objectives of the service at a pace building on a review of the learning and
experience of the service since its inception. This is to ensure that we can provide support services
that meet business need, enable delivery of service outputs and outcomes that uses our limited
resources more efficiently and effectively.
Proposed Option – Fully Integrated Model
• Expected to achieve the greatest efficiencies
• Maximises opportunities for resilience, consistency and modernisation
• Least complex management structure
This is a “blank sheet of paper” approach adopted by some authorities which sites all non-customer
facing administration within a function based service alongside a single service menu/offer and
quality framework.
Review - Scope and Methodology
The scope of the service review is the current management structure, all administrative support
including matrix managed areas and consideration of all functions to identify immediate areas of
efficiency and further areas to be developed subject to interdependencies with broader service
review developments and constraints.
The design principles used to underpin this cross cutting review are:
• To further develop the fully integrated model with the focus on moving to a function based
service provision to build resilience and consistency across administrative support based on
learning to date including the recent lockdown.
• In partnership with all stakeholders to ensure the most efficient and effective allocation of
resource, capacity and skill level to meet differentiated business need and enable service
areas to achieve their business outputs and outcomes.
• To apply the principles of Standardise, Simplify, Share, Automate and Stop to all areas of
administrative activity. BAS will develop a single service offer and stop support where there
is no perceived value to the authority
• That the identified savings will be delivered in phases with initial savings in2021/2022 (Phase
1) in areas that are directly line managed by BAS and (Phase 2) where there are
opportunities for potential additional efficiencies as matrix managed areas are absorbed and
reviewed as part of the mobilisation of the proposal and broader organisation
developments.
• All future reviews and developments will form an ongoing work programme over the next
2/3 years with the aim of achieving additional efficiencies whilst responding to the evolving
organisation and

Page 65

•
•

•

That BAS will retain administrative groupings where an impact can be achieved, and remove
matrix management arrangements.
BAS will work with service areas to consider the most appropriate line management
arrangements where it is identified that there are no additional benefits or improvements
that can be achieved by remaining part of this new structure for either the service or for
BAS. BAS would still provide professional administrative leadership, advice, guidance and
support for these staff and their services rather than direct line management support.
The project and improvement area of BAS is out of scope.

Conclusion
As at the date of this report estimated savings of £2.0m (in a full year from implementation) have
been identified from the proposed option based on the above parameters. This is a gross saving and
includes the £200k saving already assumed for the review of meeting support.
Impacts of proposal
•
•
•

•

•
•
•

•

Efficiencies - Potential for the highest level of efficiencies to be achieved which will have minimal
impact on front facing services to the public.
Future proofing & resilience - This model can be the most resilient and responsive to changing
priorities enabling the application of the most modernised practice as the workforce will be
multi skilled and efficient.
Modernisation - Maximises the opportunities to fully realise the benefits of modern technology
and new ways of working with very little disruption to service areas – key link and delivery arm
of the core systems review and Changing the Workplace. This also supports the development of
council wide usable data and intelligence to enhance and exploit our data science capabilities.
Technological efficiency - Dedicated expertise to standardise systems and processes ensure
optimised efficient and effective use of available resources by working in conjunction with the
Digital Information Service (DIS)/Finance. Scope to automate high volume, transactional work
and repetitive processing subject to implementing the right technology and exploiting
digitisation opportunities.
Consistent professional management arrangements - For all admin staff with the potential to
further improve performance, attendance and productivity with consistent role expectations
and grading.
Benefits to workforce - Improved opportunities for admin workforce development, multi-skilling
and career progression.
Managing change - Need to consider alternative/innovative approaches, digital opportunities
and national/international examples of best practice rather than transpose or replicate existing
systems if they are not an efficient or effective use of resources. Will require strong change
management support for, and engagement with, areas to review their business needs and
systems.
Scope - Need to ensure we have captured all identified admin staff who are currently not part of
the BAS.

Consultation
• Design and implementation of this proposal will require extensive consultation, engagement
and collaboration with all service areas, partners, BAS staff and Trades Unions involving
support from Human Resources, DIS and Finance.

Page 66

•
•

•
•
•

The focus of consultations will be on two key areas based on the design principles outlined
above – delivery model/structure and single service offer.
An initial consultation programme with staff and service areas/partners (September 2020 to
December 2020) will be timetabled subject to approval of this option. It is anticipated that
these will continue as a rolling programme as the service develops, to facilitate flex and
response to the changing demands of the Council and further developments arising from
service reviews and continuous improvement.
Regular engagement with Trades Union through existing consultation arrangements.
BAS management attendance at Senior Management Teams and Senior Leadership Teams in
service areas as required.
Reporting to the financial challenge governance arrangements to ensure alignment with,
and support for, interdependent service reviews across the council.

To date the service review has included consultation with:
• Initial communication sent out to all BAS colleagues on 14th July 2020 to update everyone on
activity, requesting suggestions and ideas.
• BAS colleagues in various teams included in review to identify current activity and potential
options.
• Trades Union briefing/initial consultation meeting 5th August 2020.
Impact on the Public
As this is a back office function there are no potential negative impacts on the public as long as the
functions provided enable service areas to continue to deliver their outputs and outcomes. The new
model reduces duplication and standardises/streamlines processes as officers work together to
collectively problem solve and modernise. This should ensure an improved consistency and standard
of service which could positively impact on customer experience.
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration
The completed Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration Screening document is attached –
Appendix 4.
Recommendation(s)
• Members are requested to consider the option to further develop the current Business
Administration Service to create a fully integrated administration model;
• This will enable the service to maximise opportunities to deliver efficiencies through modernisation
and effective use of available resource to better support business need whilst not adversely affecting
service users;
• Also to approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s medium-term
financial strategy and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget;
• And that the Director of Resources and Housing will be responsible for implementation.

Page 67

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate:
Resources and Housing
Lead person:
Louise Snowden

Service area:
Business Administration Service
Contact number:
07891 278030

1. Title:
Service Review of Business Administration Service
Is this a:
X Strategy / Policy

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
Following a series of ongoing conversations and consultation with BCDT it has been agreed that
we need to review the delivery model for the BAS to ensure an effective structure and focus in
order to achieve the aims – below:
• We will … Work in partnership with Services and Business Partners to realise an effective Business
Administration Service.
• We will … Optimise opportunities for efficiency; further embedding the ‘simplify, standardise and
share, automate and stop’ approach, maximinsing technology and delivering process
improvements.
• We will … Deliver modern, professional and cost effective Administrative Support to the Council
and all our customers.
• We will …. Cultivate skills, empower, engage and motivating our workforce, realising and
recognising their full potential.
Initially three preferred options were identified to explore in greater detail. However, in response
to the current financial challenge, and as part of the council wide service review activity, it has
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 68

1

been agreed with BCDT and the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) Core Group to focus
on developing a fully integrated and centralised model to enable the service to achieve our aims
and maximise the benefits/efficiencies of the service at a pace.
Fully Integrated and Centralised Model
• Expected to achieve the greatest efficiencies
• Greatest resilience, consistency and modernisation
• Least complex management structure
This is a “blank sheet of paper” approach adopted by some authorities which sites all noncustomer facing administration within a function based central service alongside a service
menu/offer. Additional administration support will need to be factored into existing capacity and
requested via a centralised process with new requests subject to additional funding where the
work cannot be absorbed.
The scope of the cross cutting review is the current management structure, all administrative
support including matrix managed areas and consideration of all functions to identify immediate
areas of efficiency and further areas to be developed subject to interdependencies with broader
service review developments and constraints.
The design principles used in the considerations of how this proposal can be achieved so far are:
• To further develop a more “central, streamlined, fully integrated” model with the focus on moving
to a function based service provision to build resilience and consistency across administrative
support based on learning to date including lockdown.
• That BAS will retain administrative groupings where an impact can be achieved, and remove
matrix management arrangements. BAS will return staff/services where the Department should
have the burden of risk or it is inappropriate for BAS to hold responsibility.
• In partnership with all stakeholders to ensure the most efficient and effective allocation of
resource, capacity and skill level to meet differentiated business need and enable service areas to
achieve their business outputs and outcomes.
• To apply the principles of Standardise, Simplify, Share, Digitise and Stop to all areas of
administrative activity. BAS will develop a single service offer and stop support where there is no
perceived value to the authority
• That BAS will apply administrative groupings where an impact can be achieved to ensure robust
and proportionate management structures and to streamline line management arrangements.
• That the identified savings will be delivered in phases with initial savings in2021/2022 (Phase 1) in
areas that are directly line managed by BAS and (Phase 2) where there are opportunities for
potential additional efficiencies as matrix managed areas are absorbed and reviewed as part of
the mobilisation of the proposal and broader organisation developments.
• All future reviews and developments will form an ongoing work programme over the next 2/3
years with the aim of achieving additional efficiencies whilst responding to the evolving
organisation and
• That BAS will work with service areas to consider the most appropriate line management
arrangements where it is identified that there are no additional benefits or improvements that can
be achieved by remaining part of this new structure for either the service or for BAS. BAS would
still provide professional administrative leadership, advice, guidance and support for these staff
and their services rather than direct line management support.
• The project and improvement area of BAS is out of scope.
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 69

2

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

Yes
X

No
X

X
X
X

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 70

3

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
•

There are likely to be impacts in changes of roles and skill base on existing staff cohort. A number
of existing staff were employed when admin functions included relatively routine, simplistic and
repetitive actions. The increased focus on technology and digitisation means these functions
(scanning, filing etc) are becoming increasingly scarce and the financial need to make systems as
efficient and effective as possible leaves a number of staff with a skill gap which may or may not
be able to be supported subject to their individual requirements and/or needs.

•

The proposal will actively support more flexible and remote working which will offer more choice
and benefits for staff on lower grades and those with caring responsibilities. This will further
support work life balance, ease travelling and the cost of working and a predominantly female
workforce who are often the ones who have the caring roles.

•

As administration is often a route into the Council for a career (eg at the start of working or as
part of a career change) there is a need to ensure that staff benefit from ongoing professional
development to build skills and enable them to achieve their potential. There is also a need to
ensure staff do not become silo’ed from other career and development opportunities in the
Council.

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
•

•

Supporting Inclusion – the change to administrative functions to maximise the opportunities for
effective and efficient use of resources may adversely impact a proportion of our workforce who
have traditionally undertaken more routine and repetitive activities. Support for upskilling or
flexible redeployment will need to take into account the needs of all staff who may require this
help.
Remote working – the experience of and feedback from lockdown has evidenced that the majority
of BAS colleagues are keen to continue to work from home wherever possible. Benefits that have
been cited include reduced travel costs (which can be disproportionate given the average levels of
grade in BAS), increased flexibility for caring responsibilities, increased capacity due to the use of
technical solutions and work rounds and improved work life/balance. The service will continue to
support office based working where this has been necessary to support the health and wellbeing
of an individual.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 71

4

•

Workforce Development - the proposed model will build on the existing workforce development
activity and offer to enable flexible deployment and multi-skilling. This will support staff to
develop skills in different areas and providing a clear pathway to more senior roles should this be
their ambition. This will also need to interface with broader organisational/workforce
development and career pathways across the disciplines in the Council. The model will also
facilitate dedicated team arrangements to maximise peer and team support and increase
opportunities for quality collaborative time/social interaction.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
•
•

•
•
•
•

Support for upskilling or flexible redeployment as part of the change management/mobilisation
will need to take into account the needs of all staff who may require this help.
Making use of internal expertise and external links with key partners – assessments, links to
employment retraining opportunities, eg adult social care, SEND learning expertise such as
education psychologists and post 16 advice, employment and skills, inclusive growth strategy and
connections with business partners
Maximise application of technology to enable inclusion eg user friendly ordering/catalogue
processes as is being explored by the core systems review.
Ensure all organisational/workforce development and pathway planning aligns with professional
development of administrative staff alongside multi-skilling and rotation of roles in line with
individual staff career ambitions.
Build quality team/collaboration time and opportunities for social interaction into business as
usual timetable.
The assessment will be regularly reviewed and updated and the impact of change on protected
characteristics will be monitored to ensure no disproportionate impact on specific groups.

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

September 2020

Date to complete your impact assessment

October 2020

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

Lorna Jones
Project Manager

6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Gemma Taskas
Deputy Chief Officer HR
3rd August 2020
Date screening completed

31st July 2020

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 72

5

7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent:
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 73

6

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Bev Fisher, Interim CDIO and Jo Miklo, Head of Digital Efficiencies/Interim Business Manager
Report of: Neil Evans, Director of Resources and Housing
Portfolio: Resources
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

DIS – Modernise the structure of the service to deliver savings and
secure additional income

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 2,434k

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
The Digital Information Service (DIS) currently supports over 12,000 council employees in carrying out their
day to day work activity along with providing support to other bodies such as Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG), Aspire, Schools and West Yorkshire Joint Services.
The service provides a full range of services from the exploitation and delivery of IT solutions to modernise
how we work, through to keeping the council network resilient and secure. The service currently has 507 FTE
staff in post. With a gross budget of £32m, of which £22m relates to staffing and a net budget of £21m, with
£6m of the £10m income coming from charges to capital schemes.
The proposals put forward are predominantly staffing based as this area of spend equates to 72% of the
services gross expenditure budget. This proposal also links to the proposal: Information Governance Service Modernise the structure to meet the needs of a modern and agile Council and deliver savings.
The successful implementation of these proposals are dependent upon each area of the council engaging with
the DIS to create prioritised digital roadmaps, linked to the Best Council Plan, so that work is proactive and
well planned and can be carried out in a timely manner, at the same time ensuring legal responsibilities are
met. The service will limit the amount of in house development of solutions and will maximise external
expertise, utilising frameworks which have been established and are in place until 2023.
New contracts will be put in place to reduce the reliance on contractor (agency) resource, particularly within
the project management area, which will enable the service to flex up to meet demand with experts in the
field for the implementation of technical digital projects.
Over the last few years staff have been moved into the DIS from business directorates to ensure that the
technical support for council systems is professionally led. This has created a number of disparate teams and
roles which will be reviewed to ensure no single points of failure, teams of a size and structure which meet the

Page 74

councils design principles and the ability to provide the appropriate levels of support for council systems.
Services provided from the technology teams will need to move towards introducing industry standard
practices and tools and techniques to ensure the service is working in the most effective way possible.
The information governance service (subject to a separate review) will be reshaped to ensure best use is made
of the roles within the team and there will be a drive to make more council data (of a none sensitive nature)
open thus enabling those who are able to, to access data themselves directly.

Impacts of proposal
There will be an impact on staff within the services as the proposals put forward reduce the workforce by 58
FTE. Whilst the service hope to be able achieve a significant proportion of this through voluntary measures, in
some service areas it will necessary to realign roles and responsibilities, and potentially the deletion of posts
which may result in a redundancy situation.
Best endeavours will be made to minimise the disruption to the delivery of services to the rest of the council
and partner organisations as the proposals in this report are implemented. The service will be streamlining
processes and procedures and skilling up existing staff through knowledge transfer as work activities required
change, and automating or removing work activities that do not add value to the council. However it should be
noted that during the time of change there may be issues experienced whilst plans are implemented.
Additionally these proposals rely on council services being willing to engage with the DIS in developing digital
roadmaps and prioritising requirements to ensure they meet the objectives of the best council plan.

Recommendation(s)
Members are requested to approve the proposals put forward in this report which will realign resources,
change ways of working and reduce staff numbers and will be delivered by the Director of Resources and
Housing between Autumn 2020 and Spring 2021.
Members are requested to approve that the Director of Resources and Housing can commence staff
consultation on the proposals in this report.

Page 75

E

lit

As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate: Resources & Housing

Service area: DIS

Lead person: Bev Fisher

Contact number: 0113 -3784447

1. Title: RH SR 1 DIS Service Review and RH SR 2 IMG Service Specific review
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

X

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
Modernisation of the DIS service to deliver savings and secure additional income.
There will be a reduction in headcount achieved in part through voluntary means but with the
potential of compulsory redundancies.
Changes will be required to structures, job roles and processes to enable the service to operate
effectively with a reduced workforce.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 76

1

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

Yes

No
X
X

X
X
X

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 77

2

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 78

3

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

23/09/20

Date to complete your impact assessment

30/09/20

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

Bev Fisher
Interim Chief Digital and
Information Officer

6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
tbc
Date screening completed

tbc

7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent:
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 79

4

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Louise Whitworth, Head of Information Management and Governance
Report of: Neil Evans, Director of Resources and Housing
Portfolio: Resources
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Information Governance Service - Modernise the structure to meet the
needs of a modern and agile Council and deliver savings

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ This is referenced in the DIS proposal

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes – joint with DIS proposal (RH SR 1)

Executive Summary
Overview
Information Management and Governance (IM&G) forms part of the Digital and Information Service (DIS),
which is in the process of going through a review to develop and implement a new target operating model. As
part of the review of DIS, BJSS were asked to support the IM&G team (a team within DIS) with a review of their
organisation design and operating model to drive cost saving efficiencies.
The IM&G team is responsible for the delivery of the following statutory and non-statutory functions:
•
Data protection legislation
•
Freedom of information legislations
•
Cyber security
•
Records management
•
Compliance with national standards and frameworks
•
Data Protection Officer accountabilities
The IM&G team has circa 42 staff that deliver the information management and governance service to the
council and the citizens of Leeds. The team has very few other overheads that could be reduced to achieve the
required savings. BJSS was therefore asked to consider an organisation restructure as the primary method to
deliver these cost savings.
To gain a detailed understanding of as-is (current) ways of working, processes, and org structure the BJSS team
completed over 30 interviews and workshops with a range of stakeholders across the council, as well as
comprehensive review and analysis of documentation. From this research the team were able to gather over
114 pain points relating to as-is ways of working and 146 opportunities for the to-be recommendation. These
findings were clustered into themes and shared with the Head of Information Management and Governance.
From the research completed a number of options were developed and shared with the Head of Information
Management and Governance. Collaboratively the options were refined to identify one option that will deliver

Page 80

the cost savings required alongside new ways of working. This option will result in a shift from a complex
matrix staffing model to focus on an agile delivery model with strategic channel management supported by
enhanced operational activity.
In order to achieve the proposed savings and implement the proposed improvements to ways of working, a
restructure would be required. A reduction in staff numbers would be required, including staff at JNC level.
The proposal is dependent on the restructure and the implementation of the new ways of working in order to
balance the reduction in staffing numbers.
The proposed savings form part of the wider DIS submission: DIS – Modernise the structure of the service to
deliver savings and secure additional income.

Impacts of proposal
There will be an impact on staff within the service as the proposals put forward reduce the workforce. Whilst
the service hope to be able achieve a significant proportion of this through voluntary measures, if this is not
possible it may result in a compulsory redundancy situation.
Best endeavours will be made to minimise the disruption to the delivery of service to the rest of the council
and partner organisations as the proposals in this report are implemented. The service will be streamlining
processes and procedures and skilling up existing staff through knowledge transfer as work activities required
change, and automating or removing work activities that do not add value to the council. However it should be
noted that during the time of change there may be issues experienced whilst plans are implemented.

Recommendation(s)
Members are requested to approve the proposals put forward in this report which will realign resources,
change ways of working and reduce staff numbers and will be delivered by the Director of Resources and
Housing between Autumn 2020 and Spring 2021.
Members are requested to approve that the Director of Resources and Housing can commence staff
consultation on the proposals in this report.

Page 81

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): John Bywater
Report of: Chief Officer – Financial Services
Portfolio: Resources
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Financial Services Review

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 1,000K

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
This review centres on the financial management function within Financial Services and how the
service proposes to deliver target savings of c£1M (12.7% of the service’s 2020/21 gross budget;
17% of the service’s 2020/21 net managed budget of £5,875k).
The current operating model for financial management has served the Council well for many years,
however, in order to deliver savings of this magnitude over such a challenging time-scale, it is
imperative that the service transforms in order to contribute to the Council’s savings target and
support new ways of working.
The key aims of this service review are:
•
•
•
•

To deliver savings in financial management staffing of £1.00M in 2021/22 (equivalent to
circa 25fte’s)
To shift financial management capacity from routine budget monitoring to more valueadded tasks, supporting improved service performance/value for money and enabling
council-wide transformation
To improve workforce flexibility/ agility, enabling the financial management service to better
manage peaks in workloads
To ensure the financial management service is as prepared as possible for the
implementation of new ERP technology

A number of high priority work-packages involving significant business change have been identified
as follows:
•

Business Intelligence (BI) - exploit the capabilities of Power BI to automate and standardise
the production of financial dashboards and visualisations of data that will support the
Council’s journey towards greater self-sufficiency amongst budget managers

Page 82

•
•
•

•
•

Budget Accountability Framework - review, update and implement changes to the Council’s
Budget Accountability Framework, including the role of Financial Management and
directorate-based Chief Officers (Accountable Chief Officers) and budget-holders.
Risk-based Approach – develop and adopt a risk-based approach to budget management,
ensuring financial and non-financial resources deployed on the monitoring and control of
budgets are commensurate with risk
Process Rationalisation - identify low value-added planning and budgeting processes that
may be stopped and conversely value-added budget monitoring processes that can be
improved, for example by using dashboards generated using Power BI and/or agreeing a
standard, good practice approach
Service Offer - redefine and reset the core financial management offer to the wider
Authority, transitioning from a parent-child, resource intensive service to a more
collaborative/self-service model
Operating Model – Identify and implement a new Service Delivery Model and associated
organisational structure for Financial Management

These work packages will enable the service to free up significant capacity, releasing staff resources
from routine budget monitoring tasks, bringing the Council’s mantra of simplify, standardise and
share to life and supporting the journey to an improved manager self-service experience.
Completion of these work packages is therefore of the highest priority and must be finalised by
March 2021 in order to facilitate the transition to a new operating model and Financial
Management structure from 2021/22.
Design of the new operating model for Financial Management will be based on the principle of ‘form
follows function’, ensuring that the new shape and structure of the service is aligned with the
Council’s Finance Strategy (driving improved value for money and financial sustainability).
Impacts of proposal
The proposal primarily impacts upon financial management staff and service users. Significant and
initially rapid business change will be required to deliver the target savings (staff savings) for
2021/22 during a period when Covid-19 is already having a significant impact on ways of working
and potentially staff morale. Ultimately, employees and service users should benefit from more
efficient and effective processes and use of technology.
The review will have significant implications for staff and service users and extensive consultation
will be undertaken with staff and their Trade Unions in September/October 2020. All financial
management staff will be consulted about the proposals and emailed with a copy of the consultation
documents. This will signal the start of a consultation period of no less than 30 days.
Additionally, those officers directly affected by proposals will be offered a 1:1 consultation meeting
with either the Chief Officer Financial Services, Deputy Chief Officer Financial Services or appropriate
Head of Finance.
If the proposals are amended as an outcome of the consultation process and this has a potential
impact on other posts not currently materially impacted, employees affected will be notified and will
have the right to be consulted about those proposals.
Recommendation(s)
Members are requested to approve the proposal to deliver £1m savings in financial management
staffing going out to consultation as part of the preparation for setting the Council’s 2021/22 budget
and that the Director of Resources & Housing will be responsible.

Page 83

Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration screening –
organisational change impacting on the workforce
As a public authority we need to ensure that all organisational change arrangements
impacting on the workforce have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration.
Equality and diversity will always have relevancy to organisational changes which impact on
a diverse workforce. If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact
on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration then you have already carried out an impact
assessment.
A screening process is a short, sharp exercise, which completed at the earliest opportunity
will help to determine:
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has already
been considered, and therefore
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate: Resources and Housing

Service area: Resources

Lead person: Carol Gill/Jessica
Dolphin/John Bywater

Contact number: 07891 279340

1. Please provide a brief description of the organisational change arrangements that
you are screening
The current operating model and staffing structure for financial management is being
reviewed in order to develop a sustainable financial management service that is well
equipped to support delivery of the Council’s Finance Strategy 2020 – 2025 and the
outcomes of the Best Council Plan.
The review outlines plans to deliver successful business change involving a number of workpackages that are intended to automate, standardise and streamline core finance business
processes, re-design the financial services ‘Delivery Offer’ and reconfigure the financial
management service and associated roles and responsibilities.
The proposal primarily impacts upon financial management staff and service users and is
part of the proposal to achieve £1.0m savings within the service for the 2021/22 budget and
beyond. Significant and initially rapid business change will be required to deliver the target
savings in 2021/22 during a period when Covid-19 is already having a significant impact on
ways of working and potentially staff morale. Ultimately, employees and service users
should benefit from more efficient and effective processes and use of technology.
1

Use from October 2015

Page 84

2. Consideration of equality, diversity, cohesion and integration checklist
Questions
Have you already considered equality and diversity within your
current and future planning?
Where you have made consideration does this relate to the
range of equality characteristics
Have you considered positive and negative impacts for
different equality characteristics
Have you considered any potential barriers for different groups

Yes
X

Have you used equality information and consultation where
appropriate to develop your proposals

X further
analysis to
come
completed
following EIA
on Corp ELI
and
Voluntary
Measures
X through
further
assessment
of proposals
as they
development
following
consultation

Is there a clear plan of how equality areas identified for
improvement will be addressed

No

X
X
X

If you’ve answered no to the questions above, there may be gaps in your equality and
diversity considerations and you should complete an equality and diversity, cohesion and
integration impact assessment (organisational change). Please go to section 4.
If you’ve answered yes to the questions above and believe you’ve already considered the
impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to
section 3.

2

Use from October 2015

Page 85

3. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate that you’ve considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected.
The review will affect all those staff within financial management as the service is being
reconsidered to be fit for purpose to support the organisation in the future.
A breakdown of equality information by grade has been obtained and will be fully considered
as these proposals move forward. The review could provide for the potential for multiple
changes including:
-

reduction of headcount at some grades

-

increase of headcount at some grades

-

creation of new roles to sit within the structure

Any potential positive or negative impacts on staff will be considered and options assessed
to pay due regard to equality, to ensure the service is efficient and effective but also is a
diverse service maximising on the talents of individuals.
There is currently a corporate programme of the Early Leavers Initiative (ELI) and other
voluntary measures which staff within the service may have applied for. It is important to
note that as this is a corporate scheme, a separate equality impact assessment is being
conducted to consider the impact on equality of the scheme across the council. The impact
of those within financial management is unknown until they reaffirm their interest at the end
of September 2020. At the point of considering requests the management team will balance
the financial savings required alongside any impact on the diversity of the team.
Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality characteristics,
potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, potential to bring
groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception that the proposal
3

Use from October 2015

Page 86

could benefit one group at the expense of another).
We know that in particular the implementation of a the new financial management model
has the potential to affect
• all employees within the financial management service, so all equality characteristics
will be relevant and considered throughout the process
• the interaction of the ‘customer’ of other council services in how they interact with the
financial management service in particular optimisation of the use of technology

Actions
(think about how you’ll promote positive impact and remove or reduce negative impact)
We will ensure all aspects of the review continue to give due regard to equality to inform
decision making and appropriate records are maintained and ensure a meaningful and
transparent consultation process takes place on the proposals that have been developed

4. If you’re not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you’ll need to carry out an impact assessment
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

Continually review the assessment
throughout the review process
Heads of Business Change

5. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name

Job title

Date

Date screening completed

6. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to executive board, full council, key delegated decisions or a
significant operational decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision making
4

Use from October 2015

Page 87

report:
•
•
•

governance services will publish those relating to executive board and full council
the appropriate directorate will publish those relating to delegated decisions and
significant operational decisions
a copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening was
sent
For executive board or full council – sent to governance
services

Date sent: as report on EB
report

For delegated decisions or significant operational
decisions – sent to appropriate directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to the equality team

Date sent:

5

Use from October 2015

Page 88

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Polly Cook
Report of: Director of Resources and Housing
Portfolio: Climate Change, Transport and Sustainable Development
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Sustainable Energy & Air Quality team savings proposal

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 250,000

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

No
Yes
N/A
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
The team work across a broad range of environmentally focused projects, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

district heating network,
clean air zone,
electric van scheme for businesses,
housing retrofit schemes,
fuel poverty schemes,
renewables.

Over the last two years the team have successfully secured £50 million of grant funding to support the above
projects. The team have also undertaken numerous consultation exercises on clean air measures as well as
holding the climate conversation across the city to promote the climate agenda.
The team also manage the council’s energy contract of circa £16 million, including processing the bills and
forward buying energy.
The overall net budget of the service is £1.046 million –this is composed primarily of staff costs with a small
expenditure budget and one external contract, supporting a third sector provider to deliver support to those in
work with the fuel poor across the city.
The savings proposal has two strands:
•
•

Staff reduction
Increase in income

Page 89

Impacts of proposal
The service is looking to reduce its staffing budget by £150k, which will equate to 3 FTEs. As much of this as
possible will be achieved through voluntary measures such as ELI but ultimately a restructure would have to be
undertaken if sufficient savings were not achieved through the voluntary options.
The service is also looking to secure additional external income of £100K. The external income would be
provided as grant funding and would be to deliver specific projects. There are a number of potential sources
that are being explored to secure this funding.

Recommendation(s)
Members are requested to:
•
•
•

Approve the proposed reduction in headcount of circa 3 FTE, equating to £150,000 saving
Approve the start of consultation with all impacted staff from the sustainable energy and air quality
service led by Director of Resources and Housing
Note that the service will increase its income through securing additional grant funding of at least
£100k

Page 90

Equality, Diversity,
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate: Resources and Housing

Service area: Sustainable Energy & Air Quality

Lead person: Polly Cook

Contact number: 0113 37 85845

team

1. Title: Sustainable Energy & Air Quality team savings proposal
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

Service / Function

x

Other

If other, please specify: Savings Proposal
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
The impact on staff of the savings proposal: The service is looking to reduce its staffing
budget by £150k, which will equate to 3 FTEs. As much of this as possible will be achieved through
voluntary measures such as ELI but ultimately a restructure would have to be undertaken if sufficient
savings were not achieved through the voluntary options.
The service is also looking to secure additional external income of £100K. The external income would be
provided as grant funding and would be to deliver specific projects. There are a number of potential
sources that are being explored to secure this funding.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 91

1

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

Yes

No
x
x

x
x
x

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 92

2

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
The savings proposal will impact on council staff as there could ultimately be compulsory redundancies. It
will also impact on the capacity of the team which will mean the work programme will have to be prioritised
based on the staffing available. Work that secures grant funding or can be charged to a capital scheme will
have to be prioritised.
All staff have been advised that as a service we are looking to reduce our headcount by circa three people
and that as many of these will be secured by voluntary means i.e. ELI, changes in working patterns etc. but
ultimately a restructure may be required to deliver the headcount reduction required. If this was required,
we would have to undergo formal consultation with both the staff and trade unions. Consultations will
commence after Executive Board.
The savings proposals have been discussed with the Executive Member.

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
The impact of the proposal on equality characteristics within the team (and to a lesser extent within service
users) will become clearer once the opportunities for voluntary means have become clearer. If a restructure
is required we would have to undergo formal consultation with both the staff and trade unions.
Consultations will commence after Executive Board.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
The implementation of any restructuring proposals will be done in line with Council values and
procedures

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 93

3

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

n/a

Date to complete your impact assessment

n/a

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

n/a

6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Head of Sustainable
24 August 2020
Tom Knowland
Energy & Climate Change
Date screening completed
24 August 2020
7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent: 24 August 2020
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent: n/a

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent: n/a

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 94

4

Intelligence and Policy Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Simon Foy (Head of Intelligence and Policy) & Coral Main (Head of Business Planning & Risk)
Report of: Neil Evans, Director of Resources and Housing
Portfolio: Resources
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Restructure of Intelligence and Policy Service within Resources and
Housing Directorate

2021/22 savings from proposal

£173k (this represents 26% of the service’s total net budget for 2020/21 of £676k)

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
Though there are other teams elsewhere in the council that provide intelligence and policy functions, this
review focusses solely on the corporate Intelligence and Policy Service (IPS), based in the Resources and
Housing Directorate.
IPS provides a range of services including: corporate business planning and policy development (Best Council
Plan, Policy Network etc.); corporate performance and service improvement, data analysis and benchmarking;
risk management; consultation and engagement; and spatial analysis and socio-economic analysis (e.g. Index
of Multiple Deprivation, Leeds Observatory, Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) in support of service
development.
In summary, the option presented is for a smaller Intelligence and Policy Service, with a reduction in NJC posts
accompanied by a comprehensive restructure of the team and a review of the breadth and depth of services
provided. If the proposal is approved, consultation would then take place with staff impacted and trade
unions in line with the council’s Managing Staff Reductions policy and procedures. One option is presented,
rather than a series of options as we believe this to be the optimum balance between maximum savings and
core service retention.

Financial summary
•
•
•
•
•

The service has an NJC staffing budget of 23.8 FTE with an approved budget of £857k. The approved
budget includes an historical efficiency target of £239k.
The savings option proposed is based on reducing the NJC staffing FTE by 30% to 16 FTE with a
reduction in the staffing budget (assuming a 5% vacancy factor) of £133k to £725k for all NJC posts.
The proposal is designed to address the £239k efficiency savings built into the base and in fact deliver
beyond this with a further £133k of staff savings.
The current staffing budget recovers £424k of income from the HRA. This will be reduced by £124k to
£300k from 2021/22 to reflect the staffing reduction proposed.
An additional £40k of savings can be delivered through reductions in non-staffing costs.

Page 95

•
•

Taking this all into account, the overall saving proposed from this review for 2021/22 is £173k.
£173k represents 26% of the service’s total net budget for 2020/21 of £676k.

Impacts of proposal
Ultimately, the review would result in a reduction of 7.8 FTE NJC posts from a team of 23.8 FTE NJC (NB: 2.8 of
these posts are currently vacant), together with a consolidation of grades / job descriptions.
ELIs and other voluntary measures will be explored as the first option, understanding that the corporate
‘managing staff reductions’ process may need to be followed to fully initiate the review if endorsed by
Executive Board.
There will be an impact on the depth and level of service provision provided. It is likely that the level and
regularity of performance analysis provided to the wide range of current recipients will need to be reduced
e.g. CLT, various Boards including Scrutiny. However, our response to Covid-19 has shown that often more
minimalist, targeted analysis can prove valuable in identifying key issues. We would seek to build on these
lessons in shaping a revised service. We would also need to review and further prioritise the range of socioeconomic analytical products and services provided.
Although we will pursue ELI and other voluntary measures, it is possible that compulsory measures will be
required. This will clearly impact on the timescales for delivery and ultimately the costs incurred.

Recommendation(s)
1.

Members are requested to consider the option for a smaller Intelligence and Policy Service, providing
a net saving of £173k. This will result in a reduction of 7.8 FTE NJC posts from a team of 23.8 FTE NJC
(NB: 2.8 of these posts are currently vacant), together with a consolidation of grades / job
descriptions. Whilst there will be an impact on the level and depth of service provision provided, we
will work to minimise the negative impact of the loss of capacity by prioritising activity and continuing
to increase collaborative working across the council and the city, working with partners.

2.

Members are asked to approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s
medium-term financial strategy and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget. Neil Evans, Director
of Resources and Housing will be the lead Director.

Page 96

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening –
Organisational change impacting
On the workforce

As a public authority we need to ensure that all organisational change arrangements
impacting on the workforce have given proper consideration to equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration.
Equality and diversity will always have relevancy to organisational changes which
impact on a diverse workforce. If you can demonstrate you have considered how
your proposals impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration then you have
already carried out an impact assessment.
A screening process is a short, sharp exercise, which completed at the earliest
opportunity will help to determine:
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has
already been considered, and therefore
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate: Resources and Housing

Service area: Intelligence and Policy

Lead person: Simon Foy

Contact number: 07891 271801

1. Please provide a brief description of the organisational change
arrangements that you are screening
Proposed savings options for the Intelligence and Policy Service to be considered by
Executive Board in September 2020. These options are for smaller service, with a
reduction in NJC posts accompanied by a comprehensive restructure of the team.
All NJC posts will be in scope.
Ultimately, the review may result in a reduction of NJC posts from a team of circa
23.8 FTEs to 16, together with a consolidation of grades/job descriptions.
ELIs and other voluntary measures will be explored as the desired option,
understanding that the corporate ‘managing staff reductions’ process may need to be
followed to fully initiate the review if endorsed by Executive Board.
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 97

1

2. Consideration of equality, diversity, cohesion and integration checklist
Questions
Have you already considered equality and diversity within your
current and future planning
Where you have made consideration does this relate to the
range of equality characteristics
Have you considered positive and negative impacts for
different equality characteristics
Have you considered any potential barriers for different groups

Yes
Yes

Have you used equality information and consultation where
appropriate to develop your proposals
Is there a clear plan of how equality areas identified for
improvement will be addressed

Yes

No

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

If you have answered no to the questions above:
• there may be gaps in your equality and diversity considerations and you
should complete an equality and diversity, cohesion and integration impact
assessment (organisational change). Please go to section 4
If you have answered yes to the questions above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 3.
3. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected
We are conscious that we have a diverse team, and we continue to work to ensure we do
not disadvantage any individuals during this challenging process:
All staff will be in scope of the review and applications to all posts in any new
structure will be open to all those in scope.
• We will have and continue to engage and communicate with colleagues at all
stages, being open and transparent. We have used regular team meetings
backed up by sharing of wider corporate information on the financial challenge.
We have been clear about the process and timescales, explaining that formal
consultation is dependent on the Executive Board’s timescales.
• We have an ‘open door’ approach where we try and ensure an environment in
which colleagues can raise issues/concerns/questions with any member of the
management team.
EDCI Screening
Template updated January 2014
2
•

Page 98

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
•
•
•

Given that all the team are in scope, nobody should be more or less vulnerable
than anyone else.
We will respond positively to any/all interest in ELI or other voluntary measures.
We will follow corporate employment policy and practice throughout.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
•
•
•

Subject to Executive Board approval, as we implement the review consideration
will continue to be given to any adverse equality impacts.
We will continue to engage and consult with staff, explaining the process/options
as they are agreed.
Again we will strive to explore all options positively to reduce the incidence of
compulsory redundancies.

4. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
5. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Simon Foy
Head of Intelligence and
03/08/20
Policy
Date screening completed
03/08/20
6. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 99

3

making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent: 14/9/20
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 100

4

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Craig Simpson – Head of Leeds Building Services & Corporate Property Management
Report of: Neil Evans – Director of Resources & Housing
Portfolio: Executive member Housing, Communities and Environment
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Leeds Building Services

2021/22 savings from proposal

Initial Pressure £2.54m
Savings proposal £1.540m
Net £1m pressure

Who are you
expecting to consult
with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other
stakeholders?

No
Yes
Yes

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
Leeds Building Services (LBS) is the council’s internal service provider for building related activity which
operates as a traded service funded through income generation with the net surplus being returned to General
Fund to help fund other Council priorities.
LBS deliver building related services for many other council directorates/services, the majority of which is
generated through the Housing Revenue Account. The original business plan for 2020-21 (pre-covid) forecast
turnover in the region of £70m generating a return of £10.65m.
The service deliver the full range of building and associated trades and deliver works that encompass
everything from a minor housing repair through to multi-million pound refurbishment schemes.
The business plan for the service includes 183 officers and has a direct workforce of 436 operatives and 47
apprentices and is supported by a range of contractors and suppliers.
The forecast turnover for 2021-22 (excluding the insourcing of the South Repairs & Voids) is £59.288m which is
a reduction of 15.72% over 2020-21. This reduction in turnover would result in a pressure of £1.714m and to
achieve this position it would require a reduction in staffing overheads of £1.138m.
Prior to the service review there were a number of actions underway within LBS and £317.5k of savings
committed within the ‘Connect’ IT system implementation project. For clarity those savings are in addition to
the £1.138m associated with reduction in turnover meaning a required staffing reduction of £1.455m.
The proposals identified within this report are a suite of activities identified that are required to mitigate the
effect of the reduced turnover and ensure the current % return is maintained to help the council meet the

Page 101

financial challenge. The savings would be aligned to the start of the financial year 2021-22 and the proposals
are summarised below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Overhead reductions
Operative reductions
Reduction in material cost
Revised procurement strategy
Fleet
Productivity improvements
Review of LBS charging model
Additional income
New IT system

Impacts of proposal
The largest impact within these proposals relates to employees and sub-contractors due to the required level
of reduction to address the reduction in turnover and to minimise the pressure in LBS.
It is estimated that these proposals could affect 70-75 FTE 5 and to achieve this a full re-structure of LBS is
likely to be required to align roles and responsibilities in order to meet the future delivery model of LBS.
It is unknown at this stage whether the required savings will be met through ELI/Voluntary options therefore
compulsory measures cannot be ruled out at this stage as the alignment of roles will be heavily dependent on
specialist skills/experience.

Recommendation(s)
Members are requested to:
• Consider the proposals listed above totalling £1.54m to mitigate the impact of the reduced turnover
within LBS. Ensuring that the pressure from LBS can be minimised to a net £1m reduction in surplus.
• Approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s medium-term financial
strategy and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget.
• Note that the Director of Resources and Housing will be responsible for the implementation of this
proposal.

Page 102

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate: Resources & Housing

Service area: Leeds Building Services

Lead person: Craig Simpson

Contact number: 07712 216856

1. Title:
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

X

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
LBS Service Review

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 103

1

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

Yes

No
X
X

X
X
X

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 104

2

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
There are likely to be changes to structures and operating models within the service and
more detailed plans will be required along with extensive consultation with Staff and
Trade Unions.

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
Nothing specific has been identified as the proposed changes are across the service and
will be implemented in accordance with existing council policies and procedures to ensure
that EDCI is considered throughout.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
Improving the use of technology
Focus on income generating activity and value added activity
Clearer lines of responsibility and communication
Streamline activity

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 105

3

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Sarah Martin
Chief Officer
19/8/20
Date screening completed

19/8/20

7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent:
Governance Services
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 106

4

Service review report
Report to: Executive Board
Date of meeting: 24th September 2020
Report author(s): Mandy Snaith
Report of: Chief Officer CEL
Portfolio: Councillor Lewis
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? No
Proposal title:

Fleet Services

2021/22 savings from proposal

£ 480k

Who are you expecting to
consult with?

Service users?
Staff?
Other stakeholders?

Are there equalities implications?
If yes, have you attached a screening document?

Yes /
Yes /
Yes /
Yes
Yes

Executive Summary
Overview
This proposal relates to how Fleet Services will adapt its service delivery to support a changing fleet
which not only meets clean air zone requirements but has a reduced need for labour and parts during
the vehicle life, impacting upon this is how we operate our shifts, allocate labour hours and resource
replacement vehicles via hire companies. Furthermore our stores and impress stock processes will be
considered and rationalised. Extending vehicle lives where suitable also provides potential financial
benefits in terms of capital spend and future debt repayments.
There would be a number of positive outcomes for the authority if this proposal was successful, the
focus on reducing and realigning labour to income producing activities would see a reduction in spend
on a large proportion of the councils fleet of vehicles and an increased external income which will
offer benefits across the city to some of our external partners.
Impacts of proposal
The review of fleet will have impacts on service users, staffing and wider partners, this will take the
form of working with our customers to become more efficient, enabling our customers to reduce miles
on road by working closely together and reducing downtime of vehicles through smarter working
practices.
Focussing on 10 key areas the review will seek to implement efficiencies by reviewing staffing,
location, commercial income, spend on parts, efficiencies due to installation of Telematics, efficiencies
as a result of EV infrastructure, MOT commercial activity, client relationship management, IT
Infrastructure and the reduction of spend on hire vehicles.

Page 107

It is expected each one of the areas of review will impact staffing through either a redirection or
reduction in labour, other departments current ways of accessing fleet and our focus on making the
current location a commercially viable option for private MOT’s.
Recommendation(s)
1. Members are asked to consider the proposal to review working practices within Fleet Services as
a whole to both internal and external customers and review the proposed revised delivery models
for consultation as part of the council’s medium-term financial strategy and preparation for
setting the 2021/22 Budget.
2. Also to note that the Director of Resources and Housing will be responsible for the implementation
of this proposal.

Page 108

Appendix 1

As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
•
•
•

the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has
already been considered, and
whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate: Resources and Housing

Service area: Civic Enterprise Leeds – Fleet
Services

Lead person: Mandy Snaith

Contact number: 07958 454438

1. Title:
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

x

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify

2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening

Supporting inclusion and providing support for upskilling, increasing opportunity for care
responsibilities and increasing general capacity for improved technical solutions.

Page 109

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or
the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a greater/lesser
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions

Yes

No

Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?

x

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?

x

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?

x

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?

x

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on

x

•
•
•

Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
Advancing equality of opportunity
Fostering good relations

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
•
•

Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

Page 110

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
There are likely to be impacts on changes of shift working ad shift makeup. Consultation
with staff and trade unions will need to be undertaken on a planned regular basis.

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
The proposed changes will offer the opportunity for greater multi skilling and closer
working relationships within the business by moving sections of staff closer together to
support one another the operation it delivers.

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
Maximising technology
Building Team Collaboration
Support for upskilling and training

Page 111

The assessment will be regularly reviewed and updated and any impact of change
considered and acted upon as it occurs.

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

September 2020

Date to complete your impact assessment

October 2020

Lead person for your impact assessment (Include
name and job title)

Mandy Snaith, Head of Service

6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name

Job title

Date

Sarah Martin

Chief Officer

18.08.2020

Date screening completed

18.08.2020

7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision
making report:
•
•
•

Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.

Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Governance Services

Page 112

Date sent:

For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

Report author: Victoria Bradshaw
Tel: 0113 39 88540
Report of Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to Executive Board
Date: 24th September 2020
Subject: Capital Programme Review
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Main issues
1. This report sets out the results of the capital programme review process and latest
position for both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).
2. Whilst the Council has sought to deliver a large capital programme across the city,
Covid-19 has presented a number of financial challenges that will affect the size of the
programme in this and future years as the Council seeks to reduce its cost base.
3. The Council has sought to restrict further spending whilst the capital programme is
reviewed. The exception to these restrictions include essential health and safety work,
Covid-19 related spend and schemes where the Council has received external
income/grants. Where schemes are contractually committed they continue to progress.
4. The review has resulted in £131.5m of proposals that are forecast to deliver £8.6m of
revenue savings by 2024/25. The proposals still allow for schemes to come forward
that demonstrate through robust business cases that additional debt costs will be paid
for by additional income or reduction in costs.
5. An updated 10 year programme is included that shows the level of annual programmes
from 2025 onwards.
6. Best Council Plan Implications (click here for the latest version of the Best Council
Plan)

Page 115

Capital priorities were set out as part of the February 2020 budget process and the
capital programme approved in February 2020 is structured to show schemes under
these priorities.
Climate Emergency
There are no specific implications for the climate emergency resulting from this capital
report. Where there are specific climate emergency issues arising from individual
schemes these will be covered in the respective reports which are timetabled to be
reported to Directorates and Executive Board.
7. Resource Implications
The current cost of the capital programme is projected to remain within the 2020/21
budget envelope with a small saving forecast in the current year of £300k. The
proposals will deliver c£8.6m of savings by 2024/25.
8. Recommendations
Executive Board is asked to note:
a)

the Capital Programme review has identified a number of schemes which are
proposed to be stopped £81.989m, allow alternative funding £30.021m or
can be rephased into future years of £19.511m. Totalling £131.5m of
proposed changes. These are detailed in Appendix A;

b)

The aspiration to limit the increase in debt.

Executive Board is asked to approve the following injections into the capital
programme:
a)

£7.7m of CIL funding split £5.0m for Basic Need and £2.7m of CIL for flood
alleviation; and

b)

£8.58m of capital receipts to fund the Core Systems Review.

The above decision to inject funding of £16.28m will be implemented by the Chief
Officer Financial Services.

Page 116

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1.

This report provides an update on the current capital programme and provides the
outcome of the review of the capital programme which has been undertaken during
the summer. The aim of the review was to reduce the level of borrowing undertaken
by the Council in the short term to enable a revenue saving to be achieved helping
to help addressing the financial impact of Covid-19.

2.

Background information

2.1.

Full Council in February 2020 approved the Capital Programme including the
revenue implications of the programme. The programme was developed in line with
the Capital Programme principles and based upon delivering projects with the aim
of achieving the Council’s best council objectives. The Capital programme covers a
five year period which sought to deliver £1.64bn of investment to 2023/2024. The
Capital Programme considered by the July Executive Board Quarter 1 update report
covered the Capital programme to 2024/25.

2.2.

The review of the capital programme sought to identify those projects which were to
be funded by borrowing, and to establish if they could be stopped, reduced, or
delayed, this would reduce the amount of borrowing the Council was required to
undertake.

3.

Capital Programme Review

3.1.

Approach

3.1.1. In recognising the financial challenges that the Council is facing the Council has
sought to restrict further capital spending whilst the capital programme is reviewed.
The exception to these restrictions include essential health and safety work, Covid19 related spend and schemes where the Council has received external
income/grants.
3.1.2. The capital programme review has being undertaken by senior officers across the
Council under the direction of the Council’s Strategic Investment Board. The
process involved peer review and challenge with each directorate discussing the
proposals in their respective management teams.
3.1.3. The approach has primarily focused on schemes that have a borrowing element
and sought to consider reductions across:


Uncommitted schemes LCC borrowing - the Council has not entered into a
contractual commitment; and



Committed schemes LCC Borrowing - where there remains an element of the
scheme that the Council is not contractually committed to but does not
impact on the completion of a scheme/project.

3.1.4. The review has established a number of principles to determine which schemes
should remain. These include:




Statutory requirement
Health and Safety (Immediate)
Fully/part funded (where funding agreements are in place)
Page 117





Income protection
Future cost savings
Impact upon Council staffing and its trading services (e.g. Leeds Building
Services) and the impact on various partnership impacts (e.g. NPS).

3.1.5. The approach to reducing borrowing has sought to reprioritise existing schemes,
slip schemes and replace borrowing with external funding sources where possible.
3.1.6. The review was tasked with delivering revenue savings of up to £10m by 2024/25.
The borrowing requirements for the Capital Programme would be required to reduce
of c£150m. This represents a reduction in borrowing of 39% across corporate
borrowing schemes. The review excluded HRA borrowing and borrowing schemes
which deliver income generation or save costs. These type of schemes will only
progress where the business case demonstrate that the additional income or costs
savings can be delivered. Schemes that are impacted by Covid-19 are unlikely to
be progressed until there is greater clarity.
3.1.7. The outcome of the capital programme identified a number of schemes and this
have been considered with the revenue saving proposals to ensure that any
interdependencies between capital and revenue have been given due consideration
e.g. reduction in capital spend on the Council’s traded services.
3.2.

Proposals
The Capital Programme review is proposing that £131.5m of schemes are either
stopped, reduced or delayed. This is summarised as: £81.989m deletions;
£30.021m of funding swaps; and £19.511m of rephasing. Table 1 summarises the
proposals per directorate. Appendix A provides a high level summary with the
annexe providing full details and their impact.
Table 1

Adults and Health
Children and Families
City Development
Communities and Environment
Resources and Housing
Strategic Accounts
Grand Total

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£m
£m
£m
£m
‐0.4
0.2
0.2
‐1.8
‐0.3
‐1.5
‐21.0
‐1.2
‐28.5
‐35.7
11.3
‐4.2
‐1.0
‐3.1
‐0.7
‐0.7
‐7.6
‐7.3
‐4.0
‐3.1
‐0.8
‐0.9
‐0.1
0.2
‐38.6
‐48.3
‐14.4
‐10.7

2024/25
£m
‐1.8
‐23.9
‐57.1
‐5.6
‐22.0
‐1.5
‐112.0

3.2.1. Some of the main changes in directorates are highlighted below:
Adults & Health
Recognising that the better care fund was established on the basis of spend to
save, from 2023/24 it is proposed to reduce corporate borrowing by £1.8m as new
business cases will demonstrate repayment of borrowing. In 2020/21 and 2021/22
City Digital Integrated Health and care scheme fund proposals will be funded from
Better Care Fund grant.

Page 118

Children & Families
These reductions recognise that the Government has made available £65.2m of
basic need grant in 2021/22, allowing £20.0m of LCC Borrowing previously injected
for cash flow purposes to be repaid, along with an additional £2.7m in 2020/21 of
school condition allocation, allowing programmes of work to be re-prioritised within
the grant funding received. A third proposed reduction is to remove the Care Leaver
Hub scheme.
City Development
It is proposed that there is a reduction of £40.673m across the highways
maintenance (£3m annual reduction), bridges (£1.5m annual reduction) and traffic
programmes (£200k annual reduction). The approach recognises the greater use of
external funding and government grants. Regent Street flyover assumes that the
Council will be successful in securing £20.4m of grant from the West Yorkshire
Transport Fund together with a funding swap £3.5m to allow us to deliver Sovereign
Street Bridge through the governments getting building fund. A reduction of
£1.929m across reprioritised investment in sports centres, whilst the ongoing review
of the service continues. Pending a substantial review of the Local Centre
Programme, Town & District Regeneration (T&DR) programme and Townscape
Heritage Initiative programmes a potential £4.6m may be achievable. £3.2m
reduction in staffing capitalisations through a freeze on further recruitment to the
Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan development. The Fearnville leisure
redevelopment and Town Hall works have been slipped by a year so that the longer
term impact of Covid19 on the business case for investment can be assessed.
Communities & Environment
Proposals include a £2.5m reprioritisation of spend / reduction in the community
hubs programme, a £2.4m switch of funding to S106 developer contributions to
support other LCC borrowing schemes, the project support fund (Groundwork) and
other parks and countryside schemes and a £0.7m reduction to Library Book
Capitalisations.
Resources & Housing
Proposals include a £9.9m reduction in the vehicle replacement programme through
a comprehensive review of the Fleet to reflect the recent purchase of electric
vehicles, a £5.6m reduction in digital development reflecting reprioritisation of work
streams and a £2m reduction in demolitions reflecting historic spend and that
business cases supporting the rationalisation of assets will in future include
demolition costs.
Strategic Accounts
£1.5m reduction in changing the workplace spend reflecting that subsequent
business cases will provide for these costs.

Page 119

3.3.

Further Adjustments

3.3.1. Whilst undertaking the capital programme review, a number of specific injections
have also been identified. These are detailed in Table 2.
Table 2

Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme
Phase 2 ‐ CIL Strategic Fund
Allocation
Learning Places Programme ‐ CIL
Strategic Fund Allocation
Core Systems Review – Capital
Receipts Injection

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
2.7
2.7

5.0

5.0

5.0
2.3

5.0

1.4

8.6

2.3

5.0

1.4

13.6

3.3.2. The core systems review will generate savings over and above the immediate
capital investment highlighted in table 2. The detail of the business case can be
found elsewhere on this agenda.
3.3.3. In addition residual of £14,496.2k of major programmes have been included in
24/25 and £41,184.8k of annual programmes have been rolled into 24/25 and the
following years of the life of the proposed 10 year programme.
3.4.

Restated Capital Programme

3.4.1. The implementation of the proposals outlined above have been factored into the 10
capital programme and is summarised in Table 3.
Table 3
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30
Total
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
Annual programmes
64.7
55.6
55.9
49.0
43.0
39.1
35.2
31.4
31.4
31.4 436.3
Major programmes
436.1 409.1 317.6 223.0
45.2
15.8
16.3
16.8
17.3
17.8 1,515.2
500.8 464.7 373.4 272.0
88.2
54.8
51.5
48.2
48.7
49.2 1,951.5

3.4.2. Further detail of the 10 year plan is detailed in Appendix B and includes a
reconciliation to the position approved at Full Council February. Appendix C
provides details of the full programme, Appendix C(i) annual programmes and
appendix C(ii) major programmes.

Page 120

3.4.3. The funding of the restated capital programme is shown in Table 4
Table 4
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
General Fund
Grants/other
Borrowing ‐ Corporate
Borrowing ‐ Departmental
Total GF Borrowing
HRA
Grants/other
Borrowing
Total Grants/Other
Total Borrowing

Total
£m

252.2
127.1
46.2
173.3

150.9
135.3
18.7
154.1

54.3
121.6
8.7
130.3

29.2
71.5
22.8
94.4

17.6
47.1
5.0
52.1

10.6
44.3
0.0
44.3

10.6
40.9
0.0
40.9

10.6
37.6
0.0
37.6

10.6
38.1
0.0
38.1

10.6
38.6
0.0
38.6

557.2
702.2
101.5
803.7

70.8
4.4

105.1
54.6

113.9
75.0

90.8
57.6

18.2
0.3

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

398.8
191.8

323.0
177.7

256.0
208.6

168.1
205.3

120.0
152.0

35.8
52.4

10.6
44.3

10.6
40.9

10.6
37.6

10.6
38.1

10.6
38.6

956.0
995.5
1,951.5

3.4.4. Table 4 shows that general fund borrowing starts to reduce due to:

3.5.



major programmes begin to fall out the capital programme in future years;



annual programmes shown as corporate borrowing from 2024/25 onwards
reduce and start to use funding from other sources; and



Capitalisation of staffing costs is reduced. The recommended proposals to
reduce the Capital Programme do reduce the Councils level of debt however
there is additional borrowing of £995.5m over the next 10 years. £702.2m of
this relates to new corporate borrowing. This is offset by forecast debt
repayments (MRP) of £527m over the period.

Financial Impact of the proposals

3.5.1. The revised Impact on the debt budget is show in Table 5. The table compares the
reduced costs of debt against the assumptions contained in the medium term
financial strategy. Forecast full year savings of £8.6m are not realised until
2024/25. Whilst Table 1 shows that there are significant reductions in forecast
borrowing in 2020/21 and 2021/22 these have been largely offset by assumed
treasury borrowing slippage when setting the treasury budget in February. In
addition the budgeted cost of debt for new expenditure is assumed at the half year
point and MRP does not become applicable until the year after the asset becomes
operational.
Table 5

Page 121

2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
Forecast Debt Budget
27.3
58.8
74.8
76.5
78.9
80.6
80.9
82.4
83.9
84.2
Year on Year Increase
31.5
16.1
1.7
2.4
1.7
0.3
1.4
1.5
0.3
Cumulative Increase
31.5
47.6
49.2
51.6
53.4
53.7
55.1
56.6
56.9
Cumulative MTFS*
31.8
49.5
54.9
60.2
62.0
62.3
63.7
65.2
65.5
Cumulative Impact of Review Savings
-0.3
-1.9
-5.7
-8.6
-8.6
-8.6
-8.6
-8.6
-8.6
Annual Impact
-0.3
-1.6
-4.1
-4.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
*Green current MTFS assumptions 2021/22 to 2024/25. From 2024/25 assumption made that there is an increase in the MTFS base annual programme

3.5.2. As the committed major programmes are competed and a lower annual programme
funded by borrowing is forecast from 204/25 the level of overall debt starts to
plateau from 2024/25. The following graph illustrates since 2010/11 that significant
capital investment, funded by borrowing, has occurred which has led to an increase
in the quantum of debt and the cost of maintaining that debt. It should be noted that
the value of the Council’s assets has also increased to £5.6bn as at the end of
31/3/2020. The graph then shows that as a result of the proposals in this report
limiting the increase in borrowing from 2024/25 still results in an increasing forecast
cost of financing debt, due to anticipated increase in the cost of finance of new and
maturing debt.
Graph 1

3.5.3. To maintain sustainable and affordable capital investment in the future it is
proposed that that the Council work towards limiting the increase of debt in future
years. One way of achieving this is to limit the increase in new debt to the annual
debt repayment of existing debt (MRP payments). In 2024/25 the MRP is forecast to
be c£62m, therefore allowing new borrowing of an equal amount. This limit could be
flexed by generating capital receipts. However those capital receipts need to have
been received to apply them to proposed capital spend. Therefore it is suggested
Page 122

that capital receipts generated in the previous year is applied to programmes in
future years. In addition those schemes that generate additional income or produce
savings would still be allowed subject to a robust business case being approved.
Future reports to Executive Board will detail the progress made in achieving this
aspiration.

3.5.4. To illustrate the proposal:
Table 6
MRP Repayments
Estimated Capital Receipts
Total
Annual Programmes
Remaining Balance for priorities
In addition
Spend to save schemes

£m
62
5
67
-39
28
No limit

3.5.5. In the example at table 6 the choice would be whether to incur capital spend of up
to £28m in that year or choose to reduce the overall level of debt. To help shape
this decision the next stage of the review will concentrate on looking at the priorities
for capital investment over the life of the rolling 10 year programme against
affordability in the MTFS.
3.5.6. It is proposed to continue with the annual process of agreeing the level of capital
investment.
3.6.

Partial Vat exception

3.6.1. The Council recovers VAT on expenditure (capital and revenue) relating to the
council’s statutory functions and on activities which are charged for at the standard
rate of VAT. VAT incurred on expenditure relating to activities which are charged for
and which are exempt from VAT is only recoverable if the amount of such VAT does
not exceed 5% of the council’s total VAT on expenditure in any one year. Examples
of exempt activities are sport, culture, land & property transactions, and crematoria.
If the Council’s VAT on expenditure relating to its exempt activities exceeds the 5%
limit, all VAT on expenditure attributable to exempt activities is irrecoverable. This
would create an additional cost to the Council of at least £7m. In addition, the
Council would also have to bring into account a proportion of any VAT incurred in
the prior 10 years which was attributable to exempt activities and recovered in full at
the time. Future schemes will only be allowed to progress once the full impact of the
VAT implication has been assessed.
4.

Corporate Considerations

4.1.

Consultation and Engagement

4.1.1 Where appropriate, the decision to consult on aspects of the changes to the Capital
Programme will be subject to a separate consultation and engagement exercise.

Page 123

4.1.2 Following approval to consult on the Capital Programme changes they will in turn
be considered at the respective Scrutiny Boards.
4.1.3 The outcome and feedback of consultation with key stakeholders will be considered
by the Executive Board and where approved will be included in the Capital
Programme Report for Full Council.

4.2.

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration
The capital programme sets out a plan of capital expenditure over future years and
further spending decisions are taken in accordance with capital approval processes,
as projects are developed. This is when more detailed information will be available
as to where in the city capital spending will be incurred and the impact on services,
buildings and people. Service Directorates will include equality considerations as
part of the rationale in determining specific projects from capital budgets.

4.3.

Council Policies and Best Council Plan

4.4.

Capital priorities were set out as part of the February 2020 budget process and the
capital programme approved in February 2020 is structured to show schemes under
these priorities. The proposals are still in line with meeting these priorities but
recognise that the Council has less resources available.
Climate Emergency

4.5.

There are no specific implications for the climate emergency resulting from this
update. Where there are specific climate emergency issues arising from individual
schemes these will be covered in the respective reports which are timetabled to be
reported to Directorates and Executive Board.

4.6.

Resources and value for money

4.6.1. The implementation of the proposals will generate savings of £8.6m by 2024/25.
4.6.2. Uncommitted capital spend are being restricted whilst the review takes place and
the Chief Officer Financial Services will continue to ensure that:
 the introduction / start of new schemes will only take place after completion
and approval of a full business case and identification of the required
resources;
 promotion of best practice in capital planning and estimating to ensure that
scheme estimates and programmes are realistic;
 the use of departmental unsupported borrowing for spend to save schemes
is based on individual business cases and in the context of identifying the
revenue resources to meet the borrowing costs.
 Maximisation of external funding to deliver schemes that the Council has in
the past delivered through its own borrowing.
4.7.

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In
There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 124

4.8.

Risk Management

4.8.1. One of the main risks in managing the capital programme is that insufficient
resources are available to fund the programme. Given the Councils financial gap
this review has sought to reduce the size of the capital programme that is funded by
borrowing. There remains the risk that new essential works will arise and the
funding of these will have to be contained within existing borrowing approvals
priorities by switching schemes into and out of the programme. This process will be
overseen by the Council’s Strategic Investment Board.
4.8.2. In addition, the following measures are in place:






ensuring written confirmation of external funding is received prior to
contractual commitments being entered into;
quarterly monitoring of the council’s VAT partial exemption position to
ensure that full eligibility to VAT reclaimed can be maintained;
provision of a central contingency within the capital programme to deal with
unforeseen circumstances. Individual programmes and schemes will also
contain a risk provision for unexpected circumstances;
compliance with both financial regulations and contract procedure rules to
ensure the Council’s position is protected; and
ensuring all major programmes are supported by programme boards.

5

Conclusions

5.1

The Council has only recently sought to deliver a substantial capital programme and
as such remains affordable within the existing budget envelope. However, the
impact of Covid-19 has necessitated a further review of the capital programme
spend that aims to deliver savings alongside the revenue reviews that are also
being conducted.

6

Recommendations

6.1

Executive Board is asked to note:
a) The Capital Programme review has identified a number of schemes which
are proposed to be stopped £81.989m, allow alternative funding £30.021m
or can be rephased into future years of £19.511m. Totalling £131.5m of
proposed changes. These are detailed in Appendix A;
b) The aspiration to limit the increase in debt.

6.2

Executive Board is asked to approve the following injections into the capital
programme:

Page 125

a)

£7.7m of CIL funding split £5.0m for Basic Need and £2.7m of CIL for flood
alleviation; and

b)

£8.58m of capital receipts to fund the Core Systems Review

The above decision to inject funding of £16.28m will be implemented by the Chief
Officer Financial Services.
Appendices
A - Capital Programme Review – Savings proposals
Annexe 1 Detailed savings proposals
B - Annual & Major Programme Review
C - Summary of current capital programme
C(i) - Summary of Annual Programmes (current list of schemes)
C(ii) - Summary of Major Programmes (current list of schemes)
Background documents1 None

1

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 126

Appendix A
Capital Programme Review – Savings proposals
Directorate

Scheme

Adults and Health

05. Social Care & Health Fund

Adults and Health Total
Children and Families

09. Learning Places Programme / Basic Need Grant

08. Adults & Health (Other Schemes)

113. General Refurbishment Schools

13. Children & Families (Other Schemes)
Children and Families Total
City Development

‐394.0
‐394.0
0.0

0.0

‐300.0

150.0
200.0
150.0
200.0
0.0 ‐20,000.0

‐1,000.0

‐1,000.0

‐450.0

2023/24
£002
‐1,774.8

0.0
‐1,774.8
0.0

‐1,174.1

Page 127

0.0

0.0

101. Highways Maintenance

‐300.0
‐2,150.0

‐1,450.0 ‐21,000.0
‐3,000.0 ‐3,000.0

‐1,174.1
‐3,000.0

103. Highways Bridges & Structures

‐1,500.0

‐1,500.0

0.0

0.0

104. Traffic Management Programme

‐200.0

‐200.0

0.0

0.0

15. East Leeds Orbital Road (ELOR)

‐251.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

22. Network/Junction Improvements

0.0

‐2,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
‐12,000.0

‐657.0
‐8,400.0

657.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

38. Southbank Regeneration ‐ Sovereign Street Bridg ‐2,572.3

‐900.0

0.0

0.0

115. Sports Maintenance

‐729.1

‐400.0

‐400.0

‐400.0

124. Heritage Assets Parent

‐409.4

‐500.0

‐1,000.0

0.0

‐2,000.0
‐14.6
‐1,926.5

‐2,000.0
0.0
‐2,648.5

4,000.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
‐760.4
0.0

0.0

‐740.0

0.0

0.0

23. City Ctre Vehicle Access Restrictions
24. Regent Street Flyover

124. Heritage Assets Town Hall Refurb
30. Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
33. Supporting the Creative Sector
34. City Development Public Realm

0.0

‐250.0

0.0

0.0

35. Red Hall Demolition

‐700.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

36. Temple Works
40. Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan (LISM) & HS

‐570.0
‐200.0

0.0
‐2,500.0

0.0
‐500.0

0.0
0.0

‐2,194.6

‐9,959.4

12,154.0

0.0

‐57.1
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Highway ‐1,069.6
‐28,487.2 ‐35,712.0

‐654.0
11,257.0

0.0
‐4,160.4

41. Fearnville Leisure Centre

City Development Total

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£000
£000
£001
0.0
0.0
0.0

Total
Type of Reduction
£003
‐1,774.8 Reduction in LCC borrowing provision to alternative
departmental borrowing which in future will be
subject to spend to save business cases for each
digital development.
‐44.0 Deletion of residual uncommitted LC borrowing
‐1,818.8
‐20,000.0 This reduction is a swap in funding. LCC borrowing
injected will be repaid by additional grant anounced
for that year.

Explanation
2021/22 & 2022/23 digital developments are funded from the Better Care
Fund grant (see adaptations scheme below) the City Digital Integrated
health and care schemes are subject to spend to save business cases.
Direct contribution to savings target

£20m of LCC Borrowing previously injected into the capital programme to
cashflow this programme of works will be able to be repaid in 2021/22 from
the announced £65.2m Basic Need Grant Allocation to be received that
year.
‐3,174.1 This is a reduction in LCC funding with the programme This £1m pa annual programme supplements the Capital Maintenance
now being delivered through grant only.
Programme for which an annual grant allocation is received. In 2020/21 this
allocation amounted to £5.9m and the Government confirmed on 05/08/20
that an additional £2.7m would also be provided. C&F will re‐prioritise
future works programmes within the available external funding secured.
This is a proposed reduction to remove the Care Leaver Hub scheme that
‐750.0 This is a reduction and will contribute to the
directotes debt saving proposals.
was initially approved as part of the 20/21 budget decision.
‐23,924.1
While this reduction is needed as part of the overal directorate savings
‐11,150.0 23% reduction year on year however this could be
offset by bringing in additional work, government
target, securing new works and external funding could replace the
grant or other external funding.
reductions over future years. Reprioritise within existing funding.
‐3,000.0 This LCC borrowing reduction will leave the Local
While this reduction is needed as part of the overal savings target securing
Transport plan funding grant to enable works on
new works and external funding could replace the reductions over future
years.
bridges and structures year on year allowing us to
fulfill our statutory duties.
‐400.0 This is a reduction of LCC borrowing. Swap with other These schemes are small and targeted and we should be using other
funding alternatives.
funding alternatives to deliver.
‐251.1 A reduction of £251k in the ELOR discretionary land
A reduced amount of £2m to complete the purchase of discretionary land
purchase scheme leaving £2m to complete the
purchase remains in the scheme and we expect this provision will be
scheme.
enough to complete on all purchases. We have a statutory obligation to
meet compensation payments.
‐2,000.0 This reduction was attached to the challenge fund bid While works are needed to the scheme alternative funding must be found
for Stanningley bypass which was unsuccessful.
in order to complete these works.
Slippage only. Transfer to future years.
0.0 Slippage only. Transfer to future years.
‐20,400.0 This reduction is a WYCA grant funding swap with LCC This scheme is reliant on WYCA agreeing to release grant funding which will
borrowing of £20.4m.
allow us to take out the LCC borrowing of £20.4m. This scheme is the
number one priority of the West Yorkshire + Transport Fund.
‐3,472.3 This scheme is now funded from government grant as This reduction is for Sovereign Street bridge and we have recently received
part of the shovel ready schemes getting building
£3.7m of funding from the governments "getting building fund' which
fund.
allows us to take the borrowing out.
‐1,929.1 This reduction represents a reprioritisation of the
City development are reprioritising their programmes taking account of the
annual programme within City Development
target savings reductions asked of the directorate.
We will look at the provision for future years Heritage Asset programme
‐1,909.4 A reduction in the annual programme was proposed
and a review of our historic heritage buildings assets once the asset rationlisation workstream is complete.
will take place as part of the overall asset
rationalisation workstream.
0.0 Slippage only. Transfer to future years.
Slippage only. Transfer to future years.
‐775.0 Savings on scheme
‐4,575.0 This programme will undertake a substantial review
Programme under a detailed review with the actual savings figure to be
identified in the coming months.
which could potentially achieve up to £4.6m.
‐740.0 This reduction represents a reprioritisation of the
City development are reprioritising their programmes taking account of the
annual programme within City Development
target savings reductions asked of the directote.
City development are reprioritising their programmes taking account of the
‐250.0 This reduction represents a reprioritisation of the
annual programme within City Development
target savings reductions asked of the directote.
‐700.0 This scheme is complete and this is the estimated
This scheme is complete and this is the estimated savings from the scheme.
savings from the scheme.
‐570.0 Proposed
‐3,200.0 This reduction is based on the current staffing
Due to the current pandemic and finance position of the council no
vacancies will be filled for the forseeable future.
resources of the team so assumes no vacancies will
be filled.
0.0 Slippage only. Transfer to future years. However we
Slippage only. Transfer to future years.
need to establish how the business case stands up
given the COVID19 mitigation moving forward.
‐1,780.7 Deletion of residual uncommitted LC borrowing
Direct contribution to savings target
‐57,102.6

Directorate

Scheme

Communities and Environme 114. Library Books
116. Project Support Fund ‐ Groundwork
56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

57. Climate Emergency
59. Community Hubs Programme
Communities and Environment Total
Resources and Housing
109. Adaptations ‐ Disabled Facilities Grants

110. Vehicle Programme

‐70.0

‐70.0

‐70.0

‐70.0

‐600.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐190.0 ‐2,380.0
‐1,035.0 ‐3,125.0
‐1,800.0 ‐1,800.0

0.0
‐745.0
0.0

0.0
‐720.0
0.0

‐4,698.2 ‐3,000.0 ‐2,527.3

300.0

Page 128

118. Digital Development

‐300.0

119. Corporate Property Management

‐534.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

121. Capital Programme Management

‐34.0

‐34.0

‐34.0

‐68.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐33.6

‐25.0

‐25.0

‐77.2

0.0 ‐1,600.0

1,600.0

0.0

‐50.0

‐120.0

123. Demolition Programme
44. Energy Efficiency
45. Digital Information Service ‐ Full Fibre Network

47. Private Sector Renewal ‐ Equity Loans

49. Resources & Housing (Other Schemes)
Resources and Housing Total
Strategic Accounts
106. General Capitalisations
125. Capitalisation of Interest
50. Changing the Workplace

Strategic Accounts Total
Grand Total

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£000
£001
£002
£003
‐175.0
‐175.0
‐175.0
‐150.0

300.0

‐300.0 ‐2,500.0

‐50.0

‐22.7
0.0
0.0
‐7,623.0 ‐7,309.0 ‐4,036.3
0.0
0.0
0.0
‐29.6

‐100.0

‐100.0

‐750.0

‐750.0

0.0

‐779.6
‐850.0
‐100.0
‐38,618.8 ‐48,296.0 ‐14,424.3

‐2,500.0

Total
Type of Reduction
£004
‐675.0 25% reduction in provision from £700 to £525k in line
with revenue proposals
‐280.0 This reduction will reduce LCC funding. Fnding swap
to be identified.
‐600.0 This reduction represents a reprioritisation of some
schemes within P&C to contribute to debt savings
within the capital programme. Funding swaps to be
identified.
‐1,500.0 Alternative funding solutions to be found.
‐2,570.0 Reduction in programme
‐5,625.0
‐3,600.0 Transfer government grant funding to Adult & Social
Care Fund

‐9,925.5 The Fleet review has allowed us to reduce the
programme and reprioritise.

‐5,600.0 This is a 50% redcution in 22/23 and 23/24 to the
programme and has allowed us to reprioritise this
within the existing programme.

‐534.5 This is a reduction which wil mainly affect external
contractors and will contribute to the debt savings
target.
‐170.0 This is a reduction which will contribute to the debt
savings target.
‐2,000.0 This is a reduction to match historical spend and will
contribute to debt savings target.
‐160.8 This reduction is savings on two schemes.
0.0 Slippage only. Transfer to future years.

80.0 Net increase in budget of £80k

‐101.2
‐123.9 Deletion of residual uncommitted LC borrowing
‐3,066.4 ‐22,034.7
325.1
325.1 This is an increase in budget in 2023/24 needed to
match revenue assumptions.
‐100.0
‐329.6 A review of the scheme has led to reductions to
match revenue assumptions
‐1,500.0 This is a reduction which will affect LBS who mainly
0.0
deliver this programme however future schemes will
be spend to save based on roubust business cases.
225.1
‐1,504.5
‐10,670.6 ‐112,009.7

Explanation
Reduce the no. of libraries/hubs based on demand/geography. Cease
mobile library provision.
The scheme involves significant contributions from private sector into a
number of schemes around the city.
The proposal includes a number of schemes being deleted from the
programme in line with the prioritisation of C&Es current programme.

To identify existing schemes where S106 funding would substitute
corporate borrowing.
This reduction will reprioritise sites within existing investment
This is part of the Better Care Fund grant (£1.8m of the £7.3m annual grant)
received where in consultation with Leeds CCG we contribute to schemes
as part of the City Digital Integrated health and care schemes. These
schemes will be spend to save and this BCF grant will stay as part of the
adaptations scheme.
A full review has taken place of the fleet resulting in a new cashflow which
has allowed us to reprioritise when we replace the fleet. Future provision
is under review and will be reported once complete. All replacement
vehicles to be reviewed to identify only those which require significant
ongoing maintenance. Exercise is underway to identify net revenue savings
through non replacement.
Supporting the overall council programme to deliver efficiences and deliver
long term savings by the use of technology. The Applications/Compliance
programme will ensure all systems and applications are complient. Risk is
that new work does not materilase and staffing reductions have not
occurred.
To compensate the loss in income to LBS other work will be procured from
within the existing capital programme.
Reduction in staffing charges of the team that delivers the capital finance
across directorates.
This programe will now come in line with expected demolitions in year
with a review for future years taking place.
Historical funding that has been rolled forward and reprofiled due to
current demand.
Will be key to keeping city connected, hope is to grow the service and bring
in saving by providing services to schools and saving for health partners.
Will bring savings by reduced external connectivity charges. Full details on
business case. Will allow us to keep existing schools on ICT4Leeds and the
income they bring into DIS
Create a budget for the localities team in 2020/21 £350k and this team will
become a part of the Adaptations delivery from 2021 onwards. Also a
review of the empty home loans scheme has allowed us to reduce the
scheme by £270k based on demand.
Direct contribution to savings target
This is an increase in budget in 2023/24 needed to match revenue
assumptions.
A review of the scheme has led to reductions to match revenue
assumptions
This programme is mainly linked to our asset rationalisation programme
which will deliver savings across the drectorates. To compensate the loss in
income to LBS other work will be procured from within the programme.

Adults & Health
05. Social Care & Health Fund
08. Adults & Health (Other Schemes)
08. Adults & Health (Other Schemes)
08. Adults & Health (Other Schemes)

SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH FUND
BURMANTOFTS HEALTH CENTRE
REDEVELOPMENT
DEMENTIA INTENSIVE THERAPY UNIT
FEASIB
ASC COMMUNITY CAPACITY GRANT

0.0
‐200.0

0.0
0.0

‐150.0

150.0

‐44.0
‐394.0

0.0
150.0

Children & Families
09. Learning Places Programme / Basic Need GLEARNING PLACES: 21/22 BN GRANT

0.0

113. General Refurbishment Schools

0.0

13. Children & Families (Other Schemes)

MAJOR REFURBISH & GENERAL
BUILDING WORKS
CARE LEAVER HUB

‐300.0

Page 129

‐300.0
City Development
101. Highways Maintenance

103. Highways Bridges & Structures

HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE IMS
2020/21
HWYS MAINTENANCE IMS/LRS
2021/22
HWYS MAINTENANCE IMS/LRS
2022/23
HWYS MAINTENANCE IMS/LRS
2023/24
BRIDGES & STRUCTURES

104. Traffic Management Programme

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 2020/21

104. Traffic Management Programme

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT CAP PROG
2021/22
SPORT MAINTENANCE ANNUAL
PROG 2019/20
SPORTS MAINT ANNUAL
PROGRAMME 2020/21
SPORT MAINTENANCE 2021/22

101. Highways Maintenance
101. Highways Maintenance
101. Highways Maintenance

115. Sports Maintenance
115. Sports Maintenance
115. Sports Maintenance
115. Sports Maintenance
115. Sports Maintenance

SPORTS MAINTENANCE ANNUAL
PROG 2022/23
SPORTS MAINTENANCE ANNUAL
PROG 2023/24

0.0 ‐1,774.8
200.0
0.0

Comments

Impact on revenue
spend
If Y, + or -

Potential capital
receipt
Y/N

Reduction Type1

Total
£000,

Cabinet Support

2023/24
£000,

Impact on other LCC
services Y/N

2022/23
£000,

CLT Support

2021/22
£000,

Exec Mbr Support

2020/21
£000,

Political Acceptability

Scheme Title

Impact on Outcomes

Directorate & Proposal Number

Ease of Deliverability

Annexe 1
Annexe 1 Detailed savings proposals

‐1,774.8 3. Alternative Funding Utilised
0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

G
G

Y
N

N
N

N
Y

Proposals that come fwd will be funded from BCF Grant
Slippage ‐ delay in implementation

0.0

0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0
0.0
200.0 ‐1,774.8

‐44.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐1,818.8

G

G

G

N

N

N

Slippage ‐ delay in implementation. Departmental
business case will be required.
Historical funding that has been rolled fwd previous years

0.0

‐20,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

‐1,000.0 ‐1,000.0 ‐1,174.1

‐3,174.1 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

G

A

A

N

N

N

Potential revenue costs would be incurred if scheme
progressed in staffing the hub

Proposal may be swapped. Prioritisation of works to be
undertaken but external funding stream exists.
Prioritisation of works to be undertaken but external
funding stream exists
Prioritisation of works to be undertaken but external
funding stream exists
Prioritisation of works to be undertaken but external
funding stream exists
Prioritisation of works to be undertaken but external
funding stream exists
Where works identified other funding streams should be
prioritised.
Where works identified other funding streams should be
prioritised.
Assumption is that Gyms cannot retern to pre Covid
income levels and investment could be reduced
Assumption is that Gyms cannot retern to pre Covid
income levels and investment could be reduced
Assumption is that Gyms cannot retern to pre Covid
income levels and investment could be reduced
Assumption is that Gyms cannot retern to pre Covid
income levels and investment could be reduced
Assumption is that Gyms cannot retern to pre Covid
income levels and investment could be reduced

0.0

0.0 ‐20,000.0

‐450.0

0.0

0.0

‐1,450.0 ‐21,000.0 ‐1,174.1

‐750.0 1. Reduction

Repayment of previous funding provided ‐ repayment to
be made in 21/22 but reduction in Capital Programme
taken from 22/23
Internal Service Providers being utilised

‐23,924.1

‐2,150.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐2,150.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

R

N

N

Y

0.0

‐3,000.0

0.0

0.0

‐3,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

0.0

0.0 ‐3,000.0

0.0

‐3,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

0.0

0.0

0.0 ‐3,000.0

‐3,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

‐1,500.0

‐1,500.0

0.0

0.0

‐3,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

‐200.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐200.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

0.0

‐200.0

0.0

0.0

‐200.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

‐329.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐329.1 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

A

G

G

N

N

Y

‐400.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐400.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0

‐400.0

0.0

0.0

‐400.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0

0.0

‐400.0

0.0

‐400.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐400.0

‐400.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

124. Heritage Assets Parent
124. Heritage Assets Town Hall Refurb
15. East Leeds Orbital Road (ELOR)

HERITAGE ASSET ANNUAL
PROGRAMME
LEEDS TOWN HALL RESTORATION
EAST LEEDS EXT VAR DISCR LAND
PURCHASES

‐409.4

‐500.0 ‐1,000.0

Comments

Impact on revenue
spend
If Y, + or -

Potential capital
receipt
Y/N

Reduction Type1

Cabinet Support

Total
£000,

Impact on other LCC
services Y/N

2023/24
£000,

CLT Support

2022/23
£000,

Exec Mbr Support

2021/22
£000,

Political Acceptability

2020/21
£000,

Impact on Outcomes

Scheme Title

Ease of Deliverability

Directorate & Proposal Number

0.0

‐1,909.4 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

Y

Y

Prioritisation of works required

0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐251.1 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

R
A

N
N

N
N

Y
N

R

R

R

N

Y

Y

G

G

G

N

N

Y

R

R

R

y

N

Y

‐2,000.0
‐251.1

‐2,000.0
0.0

4,000.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐760.4

G

G

G

N

N

N

Slippage ‐ delay in implementation
Not all funds may be required given status of CPO, but
impacts of reducing will need further consideration, and
being checked whether all budget is still needed
This was matched funding for Bid that was not approved.
If works required, reprioritisation or business case needs
to come forward.
Slippage ‐ delay in implementation. Departmental
business case will be required.
Cannot swap funding streams without agreement by
WYCA. Current proposal is a loan.
Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐12.9
‐1.7

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

‐12.9 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐1.7 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

G
G

N
N

N
N

N
N

Residual Programme now complete
Residual funding take as savings

‐1,474.2
‐300.0
‐5.8

‐2,648.5
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

‐4,122.7 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐300.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐5.8 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G
G

G
G
G

R
G
G

Y
Y
N

N
N
Y

Y
Y
Y

Await the review.
Prioritisation of works required within area
Saving arising from scheme proposals

‐5.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 07 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐111.5
‐15.7
‐3.9
‐9.7
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
‐840.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

‐111.5 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐15.7 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐3.9 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐9.7 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐840.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G
G

Y
Y
Y
Y
N

N
N
N
N
N

Y
Y
Y
Y
N

Residual Programme now complete
Residual Programme now complete
Residual Programme now complete
Residual Programme now complete
Funding unallocated on parent scheme identified as
reduction

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

100.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

0.0
‐800.0
100.0
‐570.0

‐250.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

‐250.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐800.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
100.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐570.0 4. Other

G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G

N
N
N
N

N
Y
Y
N

Y
Y
Y
Y

38. Southbank Regeneration ‐ Sovereign StreeSOVEREIGN STREET BRIDGE

‐2,572.3

1,672.3

900.0

0.0

0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

38. Southbank Regeneration ‐ Sovereign StreeSOVEREIGN STREET BRIDGE

0.0

‐2,572.3

‐900.0

0.0

G

G

A

Y

N

Y

Funding unallocated on parent scheme identified as
reduction
£74k left on scheme to deliver some enhancements
Saving arising from scheme proposals
Reinstates funding from original £104m savings proposal
Sub 04 ‐ unlocks £25m ‐ supported borrowing business
case
Slippage ‐ delay in implementation. Departmental
business case will be required. Alternative funding via
shovel ready scheme , getting building fund.
Original proposal was to slip ‐ now to remove. Alternative
funding via shovel ready scheme, getting building fund.

22. Network/Junction Improvements

STANNINGLEY BYPASS

0.0

‐2,000.0

0.0

0.0

23. City Ctre Vehicle Access Restrictions

CITY CTRE VEHICLE ACCESS RESTRICTS
PH2
REGENT STREET FLYOVER

0.0

‐657.0

657.0

0.0

‐12,000.0

‐8,400.0

0.0

0.0

24. Regent Street Flyover
30. Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions
30. Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions
30. Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions

Page 130

32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
32. Local Centre Programme, TDR & THI
33. Supporting the Creative Sector

33. Supporting the Creative Sector
34. City Development Public Realm
35. Red Hall Demolition
35. Red Hall Demolition
36. Temple Works

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FUND
ACQUISITIONS
HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
ACQUISITION OF 17 ACRE TERRACE
MIDDLETON
LOCAL CENTRES PROGRAMME
GRAND QUARTER THI PROGRAMME
CHAPELTOWN THI COMMITTED
GRANTS
CHAPELTOWN THI COMMITTED
GRANTS
DEWSBURY ROAD T&DC2
HAREHILLS LANE T&DC2
BELLBROOKS CAR PARK HLN T&DC2
KIRKSTALL ROAD T&DC 2
SUPPORTING GROWTH IN CREATIVE
SECTOR

SUPPORTING GROWTH IN CREATIVE
SECTOR
CITY CENTRE ENHANCEMENTS
REDHALL DEMOLITION
REDHALL DEMOLITION
TEMPLE WORKS CAPITAL GRANT

‐2,000.0 1. Reduction

0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐20,400.0 3. Alternative Funding Utilised
‐760.4 4. Other

‐5.8 4. Other

‐3,472.3 3. Alternative Funding Utilised

40. Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan (LISMLEEDS STATION JOINT VENTURE
40. Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan (LISMLEEDS STATION MASTERPLAN & HS2
FEES
FEARNVILLE LEISURE CENTRE

41. Fearnville Leisure Centre

43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ELLAND ROAD GRANT

Page 131

43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi EAST LEEDS EXTENSION ‐ LAND
ACQUISITION
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi BATH ROAD ‐ HOLBECK ‐ SITE
REMEDIATION
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ASSET MANAGEMENT SITE
DEVELOPMENTS
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi MIDDLETON PARK COMPLEX
RELOCATION
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi SOVEREIGN SQ GREENSPACE PH3
ACCESS ROAD
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi DERELICT & NUISANCE SITES
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi DERELICT & NUISANCE SITES
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi EXTRA CARE GEN FUND SITES
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi NOISE REDUCTION WORKS ‐ ROAD
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ACQUISITION OF TRIBECA HOUSE
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ACQUISITION OF UNIT 2 KILLINGBECK
COURT
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi RELOCATION OF MED NEEDS
TEACHING SERVICE
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ACQUISITION 27 WAKEFIELD ROAD
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi ACQUISITION 27 WAKEFIELD ROAD
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi SPRINGFIELD D.C. & STRAWBERRY
C.C.
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi SOUTH EAST GOLF COURSE
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi SWINEGATE MULTI STOREY CAR PARK

0.0
‐200.0
‐2,194.6

Comments

Impact on revenue
spend
If Y, + or -

Potential capital
receipt
Y/N

Reduction Type1

Cabinet Support

Total
£000,

Impact on other LCC
services Y/N

2023/24
£000,

CLT Support

2022/23
£000,

Exec Mbr Support

2021/22
£000,

Political Acceptability

2020/21
£000,

Impact on Outcomes

Scheme Title

Ease of Deliverability

Directorate & Proposal Number

‐2,000.0

0.0

0.0

‐2,000.0 4. Other

G

G

G

N

N

Y

Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐500.0

‐500.0

0.0

‐1,200.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

External funding streams to be sought

‐9,959.4 12,154.0

0.0

0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

N

N

Y

‐500.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Slippage ‐ delay in implementation. Departmental
business case will be required.
Sub 04 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 14 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

0.0

0.0

‐500.0

0.0

‐82.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

6.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

6.1 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Overspend

‐212.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐212.4 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐82.4 4. Other

‐1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐1.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Saving arising from scheme

‐5.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐5.2 4. Other

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 14 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

0.0
0.0
‐44.0
‐17.9
‐17.6

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

‐229.0
75.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

G
G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G
G

G
G
G
G
G

N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N

Historical funding that has been rolled previously
Reinstates funding from original £104m savings proposal
Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving
Sub 04 ‐ Saving arising from scheme
Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐61.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐8.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 04 ‐ Saving arising from scheme

0.0
0.0
‐181.8

‐42.2
‐1.9
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

‐42.2 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐1.9 4. Other
‐181.8 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G
G

G
G
G

G
G
A

N
N
Y

N
N
Y

N
N
Y

Saving arising from scheme
Sub 03 ‐ Saving arising from scheme
Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

0.0
‐3.6

‐13.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

‐13.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐3.6 4. Other

G
G

G
G

G
G

N
N

N
N

N
N

Saving arising from scheme
Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐11.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐11.0 4. Other

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐182.9

43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi WESTMINSTER BUILDING REFURB
(GSR)
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi VG2 / MABGATE/ QHILL
CONNECTIVITY
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi REDHALL RELOCATION STRATEGY
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi DEWSBURY ROAD COMMUNITY
MARKET
43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi LEEDS MEDIA CENTRE GRANT & LOAN

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐25.9
‐1.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

‐300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi LEEDS MEDIA CENTRE GRANT & LOAN

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

43. City Development (Other Schemes Non‐Hi LOGIC LEEDS SPINE ROAD (ENT ZONE)

‐218.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐28,487.3

‐35,712.0 11,257.0 ‐4,160.4

‐229.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
75.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐44.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐17.9 4. Other
‐17.6 4. Other
‐61.5 4. Other
‐8.9 4. Other

‐182.9 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

G
G

G
G

G
G

N
N

N
N

N
N

‐300.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

300.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

G

G

G

N

N

N

Sub 04 ‐ Saving arising from scheme
Sub 01 ‐ Return to WBI. Re‐prioritisation undertaken
identified the saving
Scheme also includes £0.5m departmental borrowing
(loan) also back‐ended
Scheme also includes £0.5m departmental borrowing
(loan) also back‐ended
Sub 37 ‐ Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving

‐25.9 4. Other
‐1.1 4. Other

‐218.5 4. Other
‐57,102.7

Communities & Environment
114. Library Books

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

LIBRARY BOOKS CAPITALISATION
2020/21
LIBRARY BOOKS CAPITALISATION
2021/22
LIBRARY BOOKS CAPITALISATION
2022/23
LIBRARY BOOKS CAPITALISATION
2023/24
PROJECT SUPPORT FUND PARENT
PROJECT SUPPORT FUND FOR FEB
2020
MIDDLETON PARK LANDSCAPE IMPS

‐6.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐6.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

REPAIR OF WAVE WALL YEADON

‐18.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐18.2 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

‐11.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐11.4 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

PARKS RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY
WORKS
ROUNDHAY PARK CHANGING ROOMS

‐332.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐332.2 3. Alternative Funding Utilised

G

G

A

N

N

Y

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

KIRKSTALL ABBEY CAR PARK

‐80.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐80.0 3. Alternative Funding Utilised

G

G

G

N

N

N

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

‐152.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

G

G

G

N

N

N

56. Parks & Countryside Schemes

LAWNSWOOD CREMATORIA
REPLACEMNT
SECTION 106 UTILISATION

59. Community Hubs Programme

COMMUNITY HUBS PHASE 3 YEAR 3

114. Library Books
114. Library Books
114. Library Books
116. Project Support Fund ‐ Groundwork
116. Project Support Fund ‐ Groundwork

Page 132

‐175.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐175.0 1. Reduction

G

A

A

N

N

Y

0.0

‐175.0

0.0

0.0

‐175.0 1. Reduction

G

A

A

N

N

Y

25% reduction in provision from £700 to £525k in line with
revenue proposals
further reduction in line with revenue proposals

0.0

0.0

‐175.0

0.0

‐175.0 1. Reduction

G

A

A

N

N

Y

further reduction in line with revenue proposals

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐150.0

‐150.0 1. Reduction

G

A

A

N

N

Y

further reduction in line with revenue proposals

‐70.0
0.0

‐70.0
0.0

0.0
‐70.0

0.0
‐70.0

‐140.0 3. Alternative Funding Utilised
‐140.0 3. Alternative Funding Utilised

A
A

G
G

G
G

N
N

N
N

Y
Y

Swap for S106 to be identified ‐ levers in other funding
Swap for S106 to be identified ‐ levers in other funding
Can scheme still be delivered by de‐scoping / swapping
for S106
Can scheme still be delivered by de‐scoping / swapping
for S106
Can scheme still be delivered by de‐scoping / swapping
for S106
Can scheme still be delivered by de‐scoping / swapping
for S106
Can scheme still be delivered by de‐scoping / swapping
for S106
15% cut leaving £847.8k

‐152.2 1. Reduction

0.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐1,500.0 3. Alternative Funding Utilised

A

G

G

N

N

N

‐190.0
‐1,035.0

‐2,380.0
‐3,125.0

0.0
‐745.0

0.0
‐720.0

‐2,570.0 1. Reduction
‐5,625.0

G

G

A

Y

Y

Y

Resources & Housing
109. Adaptations ‐ Disabled Facilities Grants DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS

‐1,800.0

‐1,800.0

0.0

0.0

‐3,600.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

A

Y

N

Y

110. Vehicle Programme

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME

‐4,698.2

‐3,000.0

0.0

0.0

‐7,698.2 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

110. Vehicle Programme

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME
22/23
CONVERSION OF REFUSE FLEET
VEHICLES
DIGITAL DEVELOPMENTS
PROGRAMME

0.0

0.0

‐527.3

300.0

‐227.3 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0

0.0 ‐2,000.0

0.0

‐2,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

Y

0.0

‐600.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

Y

N

Y

0.0 ‐2,500.0 ‐2,500.0

‐5,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

Y

N

Y

110. Vehicle Programme
118. Digital Development

118. Digital Development

DIGITAL DEVELOPMENTS
PROGRAMME

Comments

Impact on revenue
spend
If Y, + or -

Potential capital
receipt
Y/N

Reduction Type1

Impact on other LCC
services Y/N

Total
£000,

Cabinet Support

2023/24
£000,

CLT Support

2022/23
£000,

Exec Mbr Support

2021/22
£000,

Impact on Outcomes

2020/21
£000,

Political Acceptability

Scheme Title

Ease of Deliverability

Directorate & Proposal Number

‐300.0

0.0

‐300.0

0.0

To identify existing schemes where S106 funding would
substitute corporate borrowing.
Re‐priorisation of sites within existing investment

Saving arising from previous years adjustments but A&H
pressure through BCF proposals
Previous investment ensured fleet CAZ compliant ‐
review undertaken to realise these reductions
Previous investment ensured fleet CAZ compliant ‐
review undertaken to realise these reductions
Previous investment ensured fleet CAZ compliant ‐
review undertaken to realise these reductions
Other investment in Core Systems allowing reductions,
with future developments being prioritised where invest
to save
Other investment in Core Systems allowing reductions,
with future developments being prioritised where invest
to save

119. Corporate Property Management
121. Capital Programme Management

123. Demolition Programme

CPM BACKLOG MAINTENANCE
CAPITAL PROG MANAGEMENT
2019/20
CAPITAL PROG MANAGEMENT
2020/21
CAPITAL PROG MANAGEMENT
2021/22
CAPITAL PROG MANAGEMENT
2022/23
CAPITAL PROG MANAGEMENT
2023/24
DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS 2020/21

123. Demolition Programme

Comments

Impact on revenue
spend
If Y, + or -

Potential capital
receipt
Y/N

Reduction Type1

Cabinet Support

Total
£000,

Impact on other LCC
services Y/N

2023/24
£000,

CLT Support

2022/23
£000,

Exec Mbr Support

2021/22
£000,

Political Acceptability

2020/21
£000,

Impact on Outcomes

Scheme Title

Ease of Deliverability

Directorate & Proposal Number

‐534.5
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
‐34.0

‐534.5 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐34.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

G
G

N
N

N
N

Y
N

Re‐prioritisation undertaken identified the saving
Smaller team being capitalised

‐34.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐34.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Smaller team being capitalised

0.0

‐34.0

0.0

0.0

‐34.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Smaller team being capitalised

0.0

0.0

‐34.0

0.0

‐34.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Smaller team being capitalised

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐34.0

‐34.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Smaller team being capitalised

‐500.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐500.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

Y

Y

Y

DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS 2021/22

0.0

‐500.0

0.0

0.0

‐500.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

Y

Y

Y

DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS 22/23 &
23/24
44. Energy Efficiency
FREE HOME INSULATION
PROGRAMME
44. Energy Efficiency
FUEL POVERTY FUND
45. Digital Information Service ‐ Full Fibre Net LOCAL FULL FIBRE NETWORK BIDS

0.0

0.0

‐500.0

‐500.0

‐1,000.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

Y

Y

Y

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐47.4

‐47.4 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Reprofiling may be required from additional sites
identified for disposal
Reprofiling may be required from additional sites
identified for disposal
Reprofiling may be required from additional sites
identified for disposal
Historical funding that has been rolled forward previously

‐33.6
0.0

‐25.0
‐1,600.0

‐25.0
1,600.0

‐29.8
0.0

‐113.4 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
0.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

A
G

N
Y

N
N

N
Y

47. Private Sector Renewal ‐ Equity Loans
47. Private Sector Renewal ‐ Equity Loans

‐50.0
350.0

‐50.0
0.0

‐50.0
0.0

‐120.0
0.0

‐270.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
350.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G
G

G
G

A
G

N
N

N
N

N
Y

‐22.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐22.7 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Historical funding that has been rolled forward previously

0.0

0.0

0.0

‐101.2

‐101.2 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

G

G

G

N

N

N

Historical funding that has been rolled forward previously

G
G
G

G
G
G

G
G
G

N
N
N

N
N
N

Y
N
N

Budget realignment requiring injection
Future proposals should be self funding
Smaller LCC funded capital programme so can be reduced

121. Capital Programme Management
121. Capital Programme Management
121. Capital Programme Management
121. Capital Programme Management

123. Demolition Programme

Page 133

49. Resources & Housing (Other Schemes)
49. Resources & Housing (Other Schemes)

LEEDS EMPTY HOMES LOANS
LOCALITIES TEAM Leeds
Neighbourhood approach
CAPITALISATION
SMART CITIES ‐ PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT
ICT DEVELOPMENTS EQUIPMENT
FUND

‐7,623.0
Strategic & Central
106. General Capitalisations
125. Capitalisation of Interest
50. Changing the Workplace

GENERAL CAPITALISATIONS 2023/24
CHANGING THE WORKPLACE G 1 & 2
CAPITALISATION OF INTEREST

Total Capital Programme Proposals

0.0
‐750.0
‐29.6
‐779.6
‐38,618.9

‐7,309.0 ‐4,036.3 ‐3,066.4
0.0
‐750.0
‐100.0

0.0
0.0
‐100.0

325.1
0.0
‐100.0

Reduction based on demand
Slippage ‐ Contractor delayed as working on Covid‐19
national proposals but scheme will improve digital
infrastructure
Reduction based on demand
Realignment in 20/21 but future years will be funded from
DFG

‐22,034.7
325.1 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐1,500.0 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation
‐329.6 2. Achievable reductions / reprioritisation

‐850.0
‐100.0
225.1
‐1,504.5
‐48,296.0 ‐14,424.3 ‐10,670.6 ‐112,009.8

Appendix B
Annual Programme Capital Review

Page 134

Highways Maintenance
Highways Maintenance - supported by external funding
Highways Maintenance Capitalisations
Highways Bridges & Structures
Highways Bridges & Structures - supported by external funding
Traffic Management Programme
Highways Section 278
Highways Section 278 - external contributions / supported by external funding
General Capitalisation
Schools Capital Expenditure
Childrens Centres
Adaptations - Disabled Facilities Grants
Adaptations - supported by external funding
Vehicle Programme
Vehicle Programme - supported by external funding
Adaptation to Private Homes
Telecare ASC
General Refurbishment Schools
General Refurbishment Schools - supported by external funding
Library Books
Sports Maintenance
Project Support Fund (Groundwork)
Project Support Fund (Groundwork) - supported by external funding
Essential Services Programme
Digital Development
Corporate Property Management
Fire Risk Assessments
Capital Programme Management
Civic Hall Backlog Maintenance
Demolition Programme
Heritage Assets
Capitalisation of Interest

Total Annual Programmes
Climate Emergency
Climate Emergency - supported by external funding
Transformational Change to LCC (excl Core Systems Review)
PFI Lifecycle Capitalisations

Total Continuing Major Programmes Programmes
Total

2020/21
£000,

2021/22
£000,

2022/23
£000,

2023/24
£000,

2024/25
£000,

2025/26
£000,

2026/27
£000,

10,000.0
83.2
4,600.0
362.1
43.4
6.6
5,503.8
7.5
4,100.0
2,500.0
76.4
1,913.1
4,958.2
3,632.2
981.2
532.6
479.6
308.4
340.7
525.0
102.3
65.9
70.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

4,600.0
1,499.9
1,300.1
0.0
4,158.6
82.7
4,100.0
3,500.0
50.0
1,069.0
4,649.0
1,000.0

4,600.0

4,022.1

2,800.0

1,800.0

900.0

2,700.0

2,656.6

2,700.0

2,700.0

2,700.0

3,550.0
0.0
4,100.0
3,500.0
50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7
2,000.0

4,495.0
700.0
3,300.0
2,800.0
50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7
2,000.0

2,100.0
1,400.0
2,700.0
2,100.0
50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7
1,200.0

1,400.0
2,100.0
1,800.0
1,400.0
50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7
800.0

700.0
2,800.0
900.0
700.0
50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7
400.0

470.0
600.0
385.0
219.9
525.0
100.0
0.0
70.0

470.0
600.0
235.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

525.0
100.0
0.0
70.0

450.0
100.0
0.0
70.0

300.0
100.0
70.0

5,883.9
5,187.3
4,848.9
710.4
541.4
403.8
1,383.5
4,059.3
500.0

4,210.0
5,150.0
1,500.0
750.0
541.4

4,210.0
2,500.0
1,500.0
750.0
541.4

3,400.0
2,500.0
1,500.0

500.0
4,250.0
300.0

64,710.7

2027/28
£000,

2028/29
£000,

2029/30
£000,

Total
£000,

10,000.0

10,000.0

10,000.0

100,000.0
83.2
23,322.1
1,862.0
22,900.1
6.6
21,907.4
17,590.2
21,000.0
16,500.0
526.4
11,534.1
70,028.8
11,032.2
981.2
4,762.6
5,879.6
928.4
560.6
2,625.0
1,002.3
485.9
280.0

2,700.0

2,700.0

2,700.0

3,500.0

3,500.0

3,500.0

50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7

50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7

50.0
1,069.0
7,552.7

470.0
600.0
0.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

470.0
600.0
0.0

200.0
100.0
70.0

100.0
100.0
70.0

100.0
70.0

100.0
70.0

100.0
70.0

2,500.0
2,500.0
1,500.0

1,700.0
2,500.0
1,500.0

800.0
2,500.0
1,500.0

2,500.0
1,500.0

2,500.0
1,500.0

2,500.0
1,500.0

541.4

541.4

541.4

541.4

541.4

541.4

541.4

500.0
4,538.3
200.0

500.0

500.0

500.0

500.0

500.0

500.0

500.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

22,703.9
30,337.3
18,348.9
2,210.4
5,414.0
403.8
5,883.5
12,847.6
2,400.0

55,580.6

55,861.4

48,976.8

42,953.1

39,053.1

35,153.1

31,353.1

31,353.1

31,353.1

436,348.1

830.2
50.0
1,500.0
9,389.4

100.0
600.0
1,500.0
8,677.8

100.0
650.0
1,500.0
11,462.0

100.0
700.0
1,500.0
11,980.0

600.0
250.0
1,500.0
12,895.0

600.0
300.0
1,500.0
13,395.0

600.0
350.0
1,500.0
13,895.0

600.0
350.0
1,500.0
14,395.0

600.0
350.0
1,500.0
14,895.0

600.0
350.0
1,500.0
15,395.0

4,730.2
3,950.0
15,000.0
126,379.2

11,769.6

10,877.8

13,712.0

14,280.0

15,245.0

15,795.0

16,345.0

16,845.0

17,345.0

17,845.0

150,059.4

76,480.3

66,458.4

69,573.4

63,256.8

58,198.1

54,848.1

51,498.1

48,198.1

48,698.1

49,198.1

586,407.5

Major Programme Capital Review

LCC RES
2020/21
£000,

LCC RES
2021/22
£000,

LCC RES
2022/23
£000,

LCC RES
2023/24
£000,

LCC RES
2024/25
£000,

LCC RES
2025/26
£000,

LCC RES
2026/27
£000,

LCC RES
2027/28
£000,

LCC RES
2028/29
£000,

Total LCC
RES
£000,

City Development
Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme Phase 2 - CIL Strategic Fund Allocation
Chidrens and Families
Learning Places Programme - CIL Strategic Fund Allocation
Resources and Housing
Core Systems Review
General Contingencies

5,000.0

Total

5,000.0

2,250.0

7,680.0

1,350.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

16,280.0

0.0
5,000.0

2,250.0
0.0

4,980.0
2,700.0

1,350.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

8,580.0
7,700.0

5,000.0

2,250.0

7,680.0

1,350.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

16,280.0

LCC Borrowing Injections

8,580.0

LCC Borrowing
External Funding

Total

2,700.0

2,700.0
5,000.0

2,250.0

4,980.0

1,350.0

8,580.0
0.0

0.0

Specific Resources Injections

7,700.0

Major Programme Injections

16,280.0

Page 135

Summary/Key
Supported Bids - LCC Borrowing
Supported Bids - External Funding

69,946.1
11,534.2

61,786.7
6,921.7

63,580.7
13,672.7

52,927.5
11,679.3

46,295.4
11,902.7

42,195.4
12,652.7

38,095.4
13,402.7

34,095.4
14,102.7

34,595.4
14,102.7

35,095.4
14,102.7

478,613.4
124,074.1

81,480.3

68,708.4

77,253.4

64,606.8

58,198.1

54,848.1

51,498.1

48,198.1

48,698.1

49,198.1

602,687.5

63,132.1

59,782.1

56,332.1

53,032.1

53,532.1

54,032.1

339,842.6

Highways Maintenance
Highways Bridges & Structures - supported by external funding
Demolition Programme
General Refurbishment Schools
Library Books
Sports Maintenance
Digital Development
Capital Programme Management
Capitalisation of Interest

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0
-100.0
-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0
-100.0
-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0

-3,000.0
2,700.0
-500.0
-1,000.0

-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-400.0
-2,500.0
-34.0
-100.0

-18,000.0
16,200.0
-3,000.0
-6,000.0
-200.0
-2,400.0
-15,000.0
-204.0
-600.0

Total Capital Review 2020/21 to 2029/30

58,198.1

54,848.1

51,498.1

48,198.1

48,698.1

49,198.1

310,638.6

Total Capital Review 2020/21 to 2029/30

Reconciliation of Future Changes since reported to February '20 Executive Board
Reported to February '20 Executive Board
Changes
Annual Programmes

Appendix C
Summary of current capital programme
2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

142,480
165,340
57,081
13,300
20,946
21,400

101,935
104,476
56,779
12,850
9,651
17,069

73,316
47,910
25,953
8,330
1,628
19,803

47,087
7,101
30,128
5,930
1,132
30,867

14,042
0
0
0
0
0

378,859
324,827
169,940
40,410
33,356
89,139

TOTAL ESTIMATED SPEND ON GF
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
IMPROVING OUR ASSETS - COUNCIL HOUSING

420,546

302,760

176,940

122,245

14,042

1,036,532

75,237

159,667

188,814

148,371

18,480

590,570

TOTAL ESTIMATED SPEND ON HRA

75,237

159,667

188,814

148,371

18,480

590,570

495,783

462,427

365,754

270,616

32,522

1,627,102

224,950
22,242
9

143,764
7,182
0

49,103
2,470
0

26,057
3,184
0

7,072
0
0

450,946
35,078
9

127,109
46,237

133,068
18,746

116,654
8,714

70,195
22,809

1,969
5,000

448,995
101,505

CAP. RESOURCES REQD FOR GF
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
Specific Resources
HRA SELF FINANCING
R.T.B. CAPITAL RECEIPTS
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
RCCO / RESERVES
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
BORROWING - Departmental

420,546

302,760

176,940

122,245

14,042

1,036,532

52,837
11,851
145
240
5,768
4,396

70,701
30,258
450
321
3,363
54,575

68,043
42,917
0
300
2,599
74,956

50,280
34,419
5,738
300
15
57,620

17,825
383
0
0
5
268

259,686
119,827
6,333
1,160
11,749
191,814

CAP. RESOURCES REQD FOR HRA

75,237

159,667

188,814

148,371

18,480

590,570

495,783

462,427

365,754

270,616

32,522

1,627,102

177,742
1.25%

206,389
1.50%

200,323
1.75%

150,624
2.25%

7,237
2.50%

742,314

EXPENDITURE
GENERAL FUND (GF)
IMPROVING OUR ASSETS
INVESTING IN MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE
SUPPORTING SERVICE PROVISION
INVESTING IN NEW TECHNOLOGY
SUPPORTING THE LEEDS ECONOMY
CENTRAL & OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE

TOTAL ESTIMATED SPEND
RESOURCES
GENERAL FUND (GF)
Specific Resources
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
RCCO / RESERVES
Corporate Resources
BORROWING - Corporate
BORROWING - Departmental

TOTAL CAP. RESOURCES REQD

BORROWING REQUIRED TO FUND THIS PROGRAMME
Average Interest rate (subject to change)

Page 136

Appendix C(i)
Summary of Annual Programmes

Annual Programmes
Improving Our Assets
Highways Maintenance
Section 278
Highways Maintenance Capitalisations
Schools Capital Expenditure
Heritage Assets
Corporate Property Management
Highways Bridges & Structures
Demolition Programme
Fire Risk Assessments
Library Books
General Refurbishment Schools
Civic Hall Backlog Maintenance
Sports Maintenance
Traffic Management Programme
Supporting Service Provision
Adaptations - Disabled Facilities Grants
Telecare ASC
Adaptation to Private Homes
Childrens Centres
Investing In New Technology
Essential Services Programme
Digital Development
Supporting The Leeds Economy
Project Support Fund - Groundwork
Central & Operational Expenditure
General Capitalisations
Vehicle Programme
Capital Programme Management
Capitalisation of Interest

Total Annual Programmes 2020-2025

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25 Total
£000
£000

10,083

10,000

10,000

10,000

0

40,083

5,511

4,241

3,550

5,195

0

18,498

4,600

4,600

4,600

4,022

0

17,822

2,500

3,500

3,500

2,800

1,768

14,068

4,059

4,250

4,538

0

0

12,848

4,849

1,500

1,500

1,500

0

9,349

406

2,800

2,700

2,657

0

8,562
2,884

1,384

500

500

500

0

710

750

750

0

0

2,210

525

525

525

450

0

2,025

649

605

235

0

0

1,489

404

0

0

0

0

404

102

100

100

100

0

402

7

0

0

0

0

7

35,789

33,371

32,498

27,224

1,768

130,650

6,871

5,718

8,622

8,622

0

29,833

480

600

600

600

0

2,280

533

470

470

470

0

1,943

76

50

50

50

0

226

7,960

6,838

9,742

9,742

0

34,281

5,884

4,210

4,210

3,400

0

17,704

5,187

5,150

2,500

2,500

0

15,337

11,071

9,360

6,710

5,900

0

33,041

136

70

70

70

0

346

4,100

4,100

4,100

3,300

0

15,600

4,613

1,000

2,000

2,000

0

9,613

541

541

541

541

0

2,166

500

300

200

200

0

1,200

9,755

5,941

6,841

6,041

0

28,579

64,710.7

55,580.6

55,861.4

48,976.8

1,768.3

226,897.8

Page 137

Appendix C (ii)
Summary of Major Programmes
2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25 Total
£000
£000

62,041
13,195

81,735
77,932

81,735
107,079

81,735
66,636

18,097
383

325,344
265,226

20,952
15,000
6,456
5,727
13,748
282
5,582
2,854
6,968
2,415
5,087
4,396
4,521
2,152
2,165
880
1,166
600
823
4,917
181,928

16,020
11,954
7,616
5,750
3,902
2,195
7,211
2,500
2,050
1,721
0
500
193
725
1,830
700
250
500
0
2,948
228,231

8,601
700
5,129
5,750
0
12,154
0
2,500
0
1,358
0
0
0
1,400
0
750
1,400
500
0
575
229,632

5,916
0
2,909
5,818
0
0
0
2,160
0
1,358
0
0
0
0
0
800
0
0
0
903
168,235

5,916
0
5,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,358
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
30,753

57,404
27,654
27,110
23,045
17,651
14,631
12,793
10,014
9,018
8,210
5,087
4,896
4,713
4,277
3,995
3,130
2,816
1,600
823
9,343
838,779

34,277
62,206
21,144
33,214
7,498
3,782
950
1,578
558
132
165,340

45,832
23,395
27,723
3,000
500
1,356
1,037
964
500
170
104,476

21,000
0
25,678
0
0
75
657
0
500
0
47,910

0
0
6,974
0
0
127
0
0
0
0
7,101

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

101,109
85,601
81,520
36,214
7,998
5,341
2,645
2,541
1,558
301
324,827

34,030
1,715
5,284
3,710
4,382
49,121

47,712
750
350
0
1,128
49,941

14,457
750
350
0
654
16,211

847
18,263
783
0
493
20,386

0
0
0
0
0
0

97,047
21,478
6,767
3,710
6,657
135,659

0
2,229
2,229

2,000
1,490
3,490

1,600
20
1,620

0
30
30

0
0
0

3,600
3,769
7,369

5,439
4,038
2,971
2,382
907
1,011
180
3,882
20,810

2,890
100
352
100
350
0
0
5,789
9,581

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,558
1,558

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,062
1,062

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

8,329
4,138
3,323
2,482
1,257
1,011
180
12,291
33,010

9,389
0
2,233
23
11,645

8,678
0
2,450
0
11,128

11,462
0
1,500
0
12,962

11,980
10,597
2,249
0
24,826

0
0
0
0
0

41,509
10,597
8,432
23
60,560

Total Major Programmes & Other Directorate schemes

431,072

406,846

309,893

221,640

30,753

1,400,204

Annual Programmes - See Appendix A (i)
Total Annual & Major Programmes

64,711

55,581

55,861

48,977

1,768

226,898

495,783

462,427

365,754

270,616

32,522

1,627,102

Improving our assets - Council Housing
HRA Housing Leeds & BITMO & Other
HRA Council Housing Growth Programme

Improving our assets - General Fund
Capital Maintenance / School Condition Allocation
Regent Street Flyover
Streetlighting Replacement LEDs
Highways Maintenance LTP Grant
Parklife Programme
Aireborough (Ph2) and Fearnville Leisure Centres
Strategic Investment Fund Acquisitions
Highways Transport Package
Parks & Countryside Schemes
Devolved Formula Capital Grant
Armley Gyratory
Bridges and Structures
Network/Junction Improvements
Assisted Living Leeds
Community Hubs Programme
Climate Emergency
Changing the Workplace
Telecare Analog to Digital
Albion House Purchase & Red Hall Demolition
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Investing in Major Infrastructure
East Leeds Orbital Road (ELOR)
Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme (LPTIP)
Flood Alleviation Schemes
Clean Air Zone
Cycle Superhighway
District Heating Network & Energy Efficiency
City Centre Vehicle Access Restrictions & Electric Charge Points
UTMC Works
Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan (LISM) & HS2
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Supporting Service Provision
Learning Places Programme / Basic Need Grant
Social Care & Health Fund
Private Sector Renewal - Equity Loans
Waste Depot
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Investing in New Technology
Digital Information Service - Full Fibre Network
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Supporting the Leeds Economy
Kirkgate Market Strategy
T&D & THI & LOCAN
Supporting the Creative Sector & Tech Hubs
City Development Public Realm
Southbank Regeneration
West Yorkshire Playhouse
Temple Works
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Central & Operational Expenditure
PFI Lifecycle Capitalisations
General Contingencies
Transformational Change
Other smaller schemes within the objective

Page 138

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Rob Clayton
Tel: 3788790
Report of Head of Democratic Services
Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
Date: 12th October 2020
Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry into the reduction of energy consumption in Council
buildings – formal response to recommendations.
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

This report presents a formal response to the recommendations arising from last
year’s Scrutiny Inquiry into the reduction of energy consumption in Council buildings.
This is set out in Appendix 1.

2.

Background information

2.1

Climate Change provides one of the greatest challenges to humanity today, having
detrimental impacts on both society and the environment internationally, nationally and
locally.

2.2

At Full Council on 27 March 2019, the Council passed a motion declaring a “Climate
Emergency”. This is recognised as a significant milestone that requires the Council
and the city to act at a faster pace.

2.3

At the beginning of the 2019/20 municipal year, the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny
Board particularly acknowledged the role of the Council in demonstrating leadership in
this field. In accordance with its remit, the Board therefore agreed to review how the
Council is reducing energy consumption levels within its own corporate buildings in
order to minimise both cost and carbon impact.

Page 139

2.4

The Board undertook this Inquiry during October and November 2019 in accordance
with the agreed terms of reference. A report summarising the conclusions and
recommendations of the Scrutiny Board was then agreed on 18th November 2019 (see
Appendix 2).

3.

Main issues

3.1

In accordance with the Council’s Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, a formal response
to the recommendations arising from this Scrutiny inquiry has been provided by the
relevant Directorate for Members’ consideration (see Appendix 1).

3.2

This item was scheduled to come to the March 2020 Strategy and Resources Scrutiny
Board but due to the emerging Covid-19 pandemic the March meeting and a number
of subsequent meetings were cancelled.

3.3

The pandemic has been extremely challenging to the Council with many of the issues
raised being unprecedented in terms of scale and possible implications on how the
Council operates. The reduced use of Council buildings since March 2020 has
impacted energy consumption and the Board does plan to look in more detail at how
Covid-19 has changed ways of working and the impact on council office
accommodation at its November meeting.

3.4

Members may wish to also look at how energy consumption has changed from a
Council perspective but also take a holistic view of this as staff continue to use energy
in different ways and often from home as opposed to the office.

4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 Details of those engaged in the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry when compiling the
recommendations are set out within the Board’s Inquiry report at Appendix 2.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1 Where consideration has been given to the impact on equality areas, as defined in the
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme, this will be referenced within the Scrutiny
Board’s Statement and also as part of the formal response outlined in Appendix 1.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 This inquiry provided an opportunity for Scrutiny to influence the development of the
Council’s new Asset Management Strategy and to also consider the principles and
proposals linked to Phase 2 of the CTW Programme in terms of improving the overall
sustainability and efficiency of the Council’s estate. There are also strong links with
the Best Council ambition to be an Efficient, Enterprising and Healthy Organisation.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 The key objectives of this inquiry are closely linked to the Council’s Climate
Emergency declaration.

Page 140

4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 Any financial implications associated with the implementation of the relevant
recommendations will be reflected as part of the formal response in Appendix 1.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.
4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 There are no risk management implications arising from this report.
5

Conclusions

5.1

In accordance with the Council’s Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, a formal response
to the recommendations arising from the recent Scrutiny Inquiry into the reduction of
energy consumption in Council buildings has been provided by the relevant
Directorate for the Board’s consideration.

6

Recommendation

6.1

Members are asked to consider the formal response to the recommendations arising
from the Scrutiny Inquiry into the reduction of energy consumption in Council
buildings.

7

Background documents1

7.1

None.

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they contain
confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 141

Page 142

Appendix 1 – Response to the recommendations arising from the Scrutiny Inquiry into the reduction of energy
consumption in Council buildings.

Scrutiny Recommendations

Directorate Response

Desired Outcome – That the Council is able to capture a true
picture surrounding its energy consumption levels.

We can report on energy consumption on a building by building
basis.

Recommendation 1
That the Director of Resources and Housing ensures that the
data we capture in terms of the Council’s electricity
consumption levels separates out any consequential
increases linked to actions that are intended to have a positive
impact on the environment, such as the expansion of the
Council’s electric vehicle fleet or enabling more energy
systems to be powered by electricity rather than gas.

As new electric charging points are installed, we can collect data
on their usage at each site and offset this against the buildings
energy consumption. This includes the new home charging points
that are being installed.
We are also able to run reports on the electricity generated
through solar

Page 143

We will work to develop a process to capture when heating
systems within buildings are changed from gas to electricity so
that we can assess the impact.
Desired Outcome – That all of the Council’s operational
buildings, including heritage buildings, are being considered as
part of the asset rationalisation programme linked to the new
Asset Management Strategy.
Recommendation 2
That the Executive Board supports the need to include all of
the Council’s Heritage buildings as part of the asset
rationalisation programme and implementation plan linked to
the new Asset Management Strategy.

All operational buildings are now being considered as part of the
Estate Rationalisation programme and this is detailed in an
Executive Board report considered by Executive Board on 24th
September with building details to be reported back to Executive
Board.
Approval of the draft Estate Management Strategy was paused to
allow the strategy to be updated in light of the Council’s financial
position and long term changes we will see as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic and will be reported back to Executive Board
later in the year.

Desired Outcome – That the Council’s Asset Management
Strategy reflects the role of the Council in leading the way to
promote sustainable and efficient buildings aimed at reducing
the city’s overall carbon footprint.

The updated draft Estate Management Strategy identifies the
importance of sustainability to inform decision making around
the future shape and size of our estate. As part of the ongoing
work to identify estate rationalisation opportunities, the carbon
footprint of properties is a key consideration.

Recommendation 3
That the Executive Board supports the need for the Council to
lead the way through its new Asset Management Strategy to
make the Council’s estate as sustainable and efficient as
possible and also encourage proposals being brought forward
for land and buildings being disposed by the Council to help
reduce the city’s overall carbon footprint.

Page 144

Desired Outcome – That the Council is able to capture data
to help correlate the carbon impact of staff working from
home.

Detailed modelling has been undertaken to consider the carbon
footprint of journeys to work versus the carbon footprint of
heating houses.

Recommendation 4
That the Director of Resources and Housing leads on exploring
ways to help correlate the carbon impact of staff working from
home.

We have used a housing database (Uno) that models heating
across 50% of the city’s housing stock against two different
profiles:




Standard – assumes 9 hrs heating weekdays & 16hrs
weekends
Extended – assumes 16 hrs heating on both weekdays &
weekends

In both cases, it is assumed that the house is heated to 21 degrees
C. We have then looked at the difference between the two patterns
to ascertain the additional carbon footprint if a member of staff
were to heat their home due to working from home.
We have then profiled the carbon footprint of the journeys to work
based on the staff travel survey.

We have taken the average from both of these datasets to
ascertain the average carbon footprint for a commute versus the
additional home heating and have determined that working from
home still provides greater carbon savings overall.
For an average employee the saving will equate to circa 1kg of
CO2e/day.
When we are out of the heating season the carbon saving will be
greater as the full carbon of the commute will be saved. On
average this will equate to circa 1.72kg of CO2e per employee.

Page 145

There are also several factors that would reduce the carbon impact
of working from home further that aren’t reflected in the figures
above i.e. members of staff only heat the specific room rather than
the whole house, the house would already have been heated due
to other members of the household being at home, some members
of staff may choose to work at a coffee shop, library etc. rather
than working from their own home etc.
Desired Outcome – That the Council is maximising
appropriate investment opportunities aimed at supporting
significant energy efficient measures.
Recommendation 5
As well as maximising the use of the SALIX Finance funding
stream, the Director of Resources and Housing is
recommended to lead on exploring alternative investment
programmes which can help finance improvements which
have a longer payback period.

The Sustainable Energy & Air Quality (SEAQ) team have been
preparing for a potential bid for an expansion of renewable
energy and other energy efficiency measures across the
corporate estate in anticipation of substantial grant funding
becoming available from Government during Autumn 2020 for
the decarbonisation of heat. Measures could include solar,
ground/air source heat pumps, insulation, glazing, etc. Work on
this includes compiling energy consumption, cost and technical
feasibility data on the Council’s portfolio of sites, as well as
identifying appropriate procurement routes to enable delivery of
a potentially significant range of schemes in very short
timescales.

Page 146

Reducing Energy Consumption in
Council Buildings
Inquiry Report

Page 147

Contents

Page(s)

1

1.

Desired Outcomes and Recommendations Summary

2

2.

Introduction and Scope

3-5

3.

Conclusions and Recommendations

6 - 13

4.

Evidence

14

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 148

Desired Outcomes and
Recommendations
Desired Outcome – That the Council is able to capture a true picture surrounding its
energy consumption levels.
Recommendation 1 – That the Director of Resources and Housing ensures that the data we
capture in terms of the Council’s electricity consumption levels separates out any
consequential increases linked to actions that are intended to have a positive impact on the
environment, such as the expansion of the Council’s electric vehicle fleet or enabling more
energy systems to be powered by electricity rather than gas.

Desired Outcome – That all of the Council’s operational buildings, including heritage
buildings, are being considered as part of the asset rationalisation programme linked
to the new Asset Management Strategy.
Recommendation 2– That the Executive Board supports the need to include all of the
Council’s Heritage buildings as part of the asset rationalisation programme and
implementation plan linked to the new Asset Management Strategy.

Desired Outcome – That the Council’s Asset Management Strategy reflects the role of
the Council in leading the way to promote sustainable and efficient buildings aimed at
reducing the city’s overall carbon footprint.
Recommendation 3 – That the Executive Board supports the need for the Council to lead the
way through its new Asset Management Strategy to make the Council’s estate as
sustainable and efficient as possible and also encourage proposals being brought forward
for land and buildings being disposed by the Council to help reduce the city’s overall carbon
footprint.

Desired Outcome – That the Council is able to capture data to help correlate the
carbon impact of staff working from home.
Recommendation 4 – That the Director of Resources and Housing leads on exploring ways
to help correlate the carbon impact of staff working from home.
Desired Outcome – That the Council is maximising appropriate investment
opportunities aimed at supporting significant energy efficient measures.
Recommendation 5 – As well as maximising the use of the SALIX Finance funding stream,
the Director of Resources and Housing is recommended to lead on exploring alternative
investment programmes which can help finance improvements which have a longer payback
period.

2

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 149

Introduction and Scope
Introduction.
1.

The Climate Change provides one of
the greatest challenges to humanity
today, having detrimental impacts on
both society and the environment
internationally, nationally and locally. A
landmark report from the United Nations
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) has warned that the
window to limit world temperatures to
under 1.5 °C and avoid the worst
climate change impacts could close
within the next 12 years.

2.

It is estimated that if we are to have a
good chance of avoiding dangerous
climate change – that is average
warming above 1.5°C, the world can
emit no more than 420 giga-tonnes of
greenhouse gases by 2050. Leeds’
share of this on a per capita basis is
estimated at 42 mega-tonnes – this is in
effect our city’s carbon budget to 2050.
If we were to carry on at our current rate
of emissions, we would have used our
total budget for the period to 2050
within 9 years.

3.

4.

3

The District has achieved a reduction of
43% in emissions from its 2005
baseline. The Leeds Climate
Commission have advised that to stay
within our carbon budget we must
achieve a further reduction of 27% by
2025 and an additional 15% by 2030,
equating to an overall reduction of 85%
from our 2005 baseline.

stations and the increases in
renewables (especially off-shore wind
farms). While the trend towards
greener energy will continue, due to
the speed and size of reduction
required it is unlikely that it can be
achieved by changes to national
energy infrastructure alone. Such a
significant reduction will require action
across every sector including transport,
housing, commercial property, industry
and agriculture. Importantly, it will
therefore require reduction in energy
consumption levels, achieved in part
by enormous investment in energy
efficiency, but it will also require major
behavioural change.
5.

At Full Council on 27 March 2019, the
Council passed a motion declaring a
“Climate Emergency”. This is
recognised as a significant milestone
that requires the Council and the city to
act at a faster pace.

6.

At the beginning of the municipal year,
we particularly acknowledged the role
of the Council in demonstrating
leadership in this field. In accordance
with the remit of the Strategy and
Resources Scrutiny Board, we agreed
to review how the Council is reducing
energy consumption levels within its
own corporate buildings in order to
minimise both cost and carbon impact.

7.

We acknowledged that a key element
of the Council’s approach will be
focused around asset rationalisation in
order to improve the overall
sustainability and efficiency of the
Council’s estate. A new Asset
Management Strategy was therefore in
the process of being prepared covering
every aspect of the estate.

To date, the vast majority of carbon
reduction realised in the District has
been achieved through reductions in the
carbon emissions from electricity
generation in the national grid. These
have been achieved mainly though the
shift away from coal burning power

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 150

Introduction and Scope
8.

9.

However, reducing the size of the
Council’s office estate would also be
linked to future phases of the Changing
the Workplace (CTW) Programme in
terms of delivering both asset
rationalisation and cultural workforce
changes.

Scope of the inquiry.
12. The purpose of our inquiry was to
make an assessment of and, where
appropriate, make recommendations
on the following areas:
 The scale and impact of the Council’s
energy consumption levels across its
corporate buildings;

Through the CTW programme, the
Council has already consolidated 13
city centre buildings into just 4,
delivering a reduction in energy
consumption levels as well as achieving
financial savings and an improved staff
and customer experience.

 The process to prepare the new Asset
Management Plan;
 The associated links and aims of the
Council’s Changing the Workplace
Programme, including achievements to
date;

10. Beyond the city centre, in large part, the
same benefits have not been realised.
The CTW programme therefore
continues to be rolled out in a phased
approach to ensure that the Council has
an affordable and sustainable estate
which provides fit for purpose, good
quality accommodation in the right
locations.
11. The timeliness of our inquiry provided
an opportunity for Scrutiny to consider
the principles and proposals linked to
Phase 2 of the CTW Programme as it
continues to be rolled out across
localities. In doing so, we also set out
to consider the potential implications
and challenges associated with this
next phase of the programme in terms
of trying to minimise energy costs and
carbon impact, with a particular focus
around the promotion of flexible and
mobile ways of working and aiming to
reduce car usage and facilitate clean
transport choices.

 The guiding principles, work streams
and timeline associated with future
phases of the Changing the Workplace
Programme;
 Potential implications and challenges
linked to the future roll out of the
Changing the Workplace programme in
terms of trying to minimise energy
costs and carbon impact, with a
particular focus around the promotion
of flexible and mobile ways of working
and the aim to reduce car usage and
facilitate clean transport choices.

Desired Outcomes,
Added Value and
Anticipated Service
Impact.
13. We have welcomed the opportunity to
share our views surrounding the
potential implications and also
challenges associated with the Phase

4

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 151

Introduction and Scope
2 roll out of the CTW programme in
terms of trying to minimise the energy
costs and carbon impact associated
with the Council’s estate. Our
recommendations therefore aim to help
towards the successful delivery of this
programme as well as informing the
development of the Council’s new Asset
Management Strategy.

Equality and Diversity.
14. The Equality Improvement Priorities
2016 to 2020 have been developed to
ensure that the Council meets its legal
duties under the Equality Act 2010. The
priorities will help the council to identify
work and activities that help to reduce
disadvantage, discrimination and
inequalities of opportunity to achieve its
ambition to be the best city in the UK.
15. Equality and diversity issues have been
considered throughout this scrutiny
inquiry and the individual, organisation
or group responsible for implementation
or delivery of the recommendations
arising from this inquiry should also give
due regard to equality and diversity and
where appropriate, an equality impact
assessment will be carried out.

5

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 152

Conclusions and
Recommendations
Acknowledging the
scale of the challenge.

also increase in the future in terms of
this becoming a more energy efficient
pathway. As such, we will need to be
able to correlate any future increases
in our electricity consumption levels
with actions that are intended to have
a positive impact on the environment.

16. Every year we capture our energy
data to see what the trend is and to
also identify any particular patterns.
However, as we compare one year to
another year, it is important to be
mindful that gas usage in particular
can vary dramatically depending on
the winters that we have and therefore
the data we do capture will require a
level of normalisation.
17. As a Council we have over 900
operational properties ranging across
offices, museums, leisure centres,
community hubs, libraries and depots.
The latest figures in relation to our
operational properties showed we had
used 155,893 MWh of gas, equating
to 28,618 tonnes of CO2 emissions;
and 65,815 MWh of electricity,
equating to 18,107 tonnes of CO2
emissions. This accounted for two
thirds of the Council’s total emission
levels, with the remaining levels being
attributed to street lighting and
travel/fleet.
18. Whilst this review was not specifically
focusing on these other two
contributing factors, we did recognise
the need to ensure that the data we
capture in terms of the Council’s
electricity consumption levels
separates out any consequential
increases linked to the Council’s
commitment towards expanding its
fleet of electric vehicles in order to
reduce the use of diesel and petrol
fuelled vehicles.
19. More broadly, we recognise that the
electrification of energy systems may

6

Recommendation 1
That the Director of Resources and
Housing ensures that the data we
capture in terms of the Council’s
electricity consumption levels
separates out any consequential
increases linked to actions that are
intended to have a positive impact on
the environment, such as the
expansion of the Council’s electric
vehicle fleet or enabling more energy
systems to be powered by electricity
rather than gas.
20. Whilst we understand that the building
figures do include some schools that
the Council is responsible for
maintaining, it is clear that our
operational buildings play a really
significant role in terms of the way we
address climate emergency if we are
to achieve net zero carbon emissions
as a Council.
21. However, we do acknowledge that any
building that is heated by gas will still
have a carbon footprint at the end of it.
Similarly with buildings that are
powering lighting and computers, we
accept that there is only so far we can
get to in terms of achieving net zero at
the moment.
22. Moving forward, we are pleased that
there are plans nationally to get the
whole of the UK down to a net zero
electricity grid. However, such a

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 153

Conclusions and
Recommendations
commitment is unclear in relation to
the national gas grid and yet it is our
gas usage in terms of our heating
which is generating a bigger carbon
footprint than our electricity.

the climate emergency, in relation to
sustainability and energy use, will also
be at the heart of this Strategy as well
as the implementation plan that will sit
behind it.

23. In terms of trying to find a solution
locally, we welcome the positive steps
being made by the Council to extend
the existing city-wide district heating
scheme to our corporate buildings
within the Civic quarter, which will
include the Civic Hall, Town Hall,
Leeds City Museum, Art Gallery,
Library and St George House. This
will allow such buildings to be heated
by a much lower carbon heat, which is
the waste heat product coming out of
the Recycling and Energy Recovery
Facility (RERF).
24. In terms of the broader estate, we
accept that a more radical approach is
now needed in order to deliver an
affordable and sustainable estate
which provides fit for purpose, good
quality accommodation in the right
locations.

A recognised need for
more robust asset
rationalisation.
25. The development of a new Asset
Management Strategy provides the
opportunity to consider how we move
forward in rationalising our existing
assets.
26. This Strategy is to cover the period
2020 to 2025 and whilst cost and
value for money will continue to be a
significant driver in terms of estate
planning, we are pleased to note that

7

27. As a Council we have already come
out of 110 properties so far, equating
to 1.2m sq ft of floor space. Whilst we
accept that a lot of those properties
will have had a large carbon footprint,
linked to this new Strategy we are
pleased that efforts are now being
made to model what the future
rationalisation programme might look
like in terms of the carbon savings that
we are able to generate, particularly in
view of the future potential to reduce
our office space by at least a further
200,000 sq ft on top of the space we
have already saved.
28. We are also pleased to learn that any
future asset rationalisation review will
not be undertaken in isolation as the
direction of travel is very much about
how we support service transformation
too. Linked to this, we are pleased
that the new Asset Management
Strategy aims to continue the good
work that the Council is already doing
through its Changing the Workplace
(CTW) programme, whilst also
supporting economic growth.
29. There are a number of key principles
that sit behind the CTW programme
which we understand will feed into the
Asset Management Strategy itself.
These cover a range of opportunities
and considerations such as how
people are working, the flexibility they
are given and the way in which
services can be delivered.

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 154

Conclusions and
Recommendations
30. We appreciate that the asset
rationalisation review will therefore
warrant a robust data heavy exercise
so that we are able to understand fully
what our buildings are being used for;
if they are occupied by staff as office
space; what the numbers of staff are
and how they are working; and
crucially taking into account building
conditions and carbon footprint. Such
data will assist in determining future
use opportunities, particularly for
those that are to be retained by the
Council.
31. We recognise that such work will also
be very much informed by
directorates’ asset management
plans, which are picked up as part of
the void management process, as
such plans will already identify the
way in which services want to change
the way in which they are working and
the impact that will have on the assets
themselves. As a Scrutiny Board, we
undertook a separate review last year
which aimed to improve the overall
void management process.
32. We particularly recognise the value of
working collaboratively across the
Council to facilitate change and
different ways of working in terms of
process mapping so that we can try
and make our service deliveries as
efficient as possible. That will then
have a direct correlation on the
amount of work space we actually
need and the impact on a reduction of
the carbon footprint that the Council
has.

8

Managing heritage
buildings effectively.
33. There will inevitably be some buildings
which have a high energy use that the
Council will need to retain such as the
Town Hall and Civic Hall. Here the
focus will very much be on exploring
what the art of the possible is in terms
of reducing the energy use of these
buildings.
34. We therefore welcome the work being
commissioned to undertake deep dive
energy audits. By selecting a
representative sample of heritage
buildings or buildings that are quite
different in characteristic, the Council
will be able to see how far we can take
down the energy consumption levels
in such buildings. We understand that
the deep dive energy audits will
commence with the Town Hall and
Civic Hall initially and then include the
Leeds City Museum, Killingbeck Court,
Tribeca House, Waterside and John
Charles Centre for Sport.
35. Separate to these we acknowledge
that the Council will still have a large
collection of heritage assets ranging
from civic buildings, museums,
libraries and cemetery chapels and
that not all of these will be very well
used and remain expensive to
maintain.
36. Moving forward, we are supportive of
the need to include such properties as
part of the planned asset
rationalisation programme. In doing
so, the Council will be able to review
their potential future use, which may
involve questioning whether the
Council remains best placed to be the

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 155

Conclusions and
Recommendations
custodians and owners of some of
these properties.

standards that are set nationally as
part of the Building Regulations, which
will include the sustainability
standards of a building.

Recommendation 2
That the Executive Board supports
the need to include all of the
Council’s Heritage buildings as part
of the asset rationalisation
programme and implementation plan
linked to the new Asset Management
Strategy.

39. Linked to our duty to achieve best
consideration for property disposals,
we believe that the Council should be
leading the way through its new Asset
Management Strategy in terms of
encouraging proposals being brought
forward for land and buildings being
disposed by the Council to help
reduce the city’s overall carbon
footprint.

A need to mitigate
against any potential
offloading of carbon.
37. It is important that an appropriate
solution is found for any buildings that
the Council disposes of due to them
being surplus to requirements,
particularly if such buildings are also
producing a large carbon footprint.
However, as we strive towards saving
our own carbon tonnage, there would
be no net carbon reduction if we
simply offloaded this carbon onto
someone else without any assurance
that appropriate action would be taken
to address the carbon footprint of that
building or land.
38. As a Council we have a duty to
achieve best consideration for
property disposals and in recent years
we acknowledge that where we have
come out of buildings and disposed of
them, these have either been replaced
by new buildings or had significant
modern refurbishment work done by
the new owners. Such development
work is required to meet the minimum
design, construction and alteration

9

Recommendation 3
That the Executive Board supports
the need for the Council to lead the
way through its new Asset
Management Strategy to make the
Council’s estate as sustainable and
efficient as possible and also
encourage proposals being brought
forward for land and buildings being
disposed by the Council to help
reduce the city’s overall carbon
footprint.

40. Linked to the principles of the CTW
programme, we acknowledge the
positive benefits to be gained in terms
of changing the way our workforce
works through the use of technology,
including the impact on reduced travel
demands which will also help towards
reducing their carbon footprint.
41. However, we are mindful that those
that are aided to work at home for
longer periods of time will still be
generating carbon in terms of the
heating and electricity being used in
their own homes.

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 156

Conclusions and
Recommendations
42. Whilst we acknowledge the complexity
of trying to find a way to correlate the
carbon impact of staff working from
home, particularly as homes will be
heated outside of work hours anyway,
we believe that this still warrants
further consideration and research.
Recommendation 4
That the Director of Resources and
Housing leads on exploring ways to
help correlate the carbon impact of
staff working from home.

Enabling sustainable
travel options for staff.
43. Linked to the CTW programme, one of
the key principles is around the
flexibility of the entire office portfolio or
where we have office space. We
acknowledge that some people, for
whatever reason, cannot easily work
from home, and so they should also
be assisted in avoiding unnecessarily
travel into the city centre or across the
city to reach their office location.
44. Linked to this, we recognise the
importance of ensuring there is a good
availability of touch down spaces
across the city so people can use the
council facilities and have access to a
desk or work space within a locality.
45. Historically there has been a pattern of
working which involves traveling from
an office to a site location where there
might be a meeting and then travelling
back to their home office before
leaving for home at the end of the day.

10

46. Such journeys could potentially be
reduced if staff are assisted to either
work at home or from an office base
not too far away from their home and
travel from there to meetings.
47. Linked to this, it is also crucial that
staff are able to travel sustainably as
we need to avoid a situation whereby
we retain buildings that are not on
public transport routes or very difficult
to get to by public transport or
sustainable modes of travel. This will
therefore underpin a lot of the decision
making around the buildings that we
will retain as ultimately we want to
ensure that people can get between
our buildings as sustainably as
possible. It is also vital that the
Council seeks to provide more
sustainable transport options for those
staff that do have to travel around the
city for work purposes and therefore
we will be undertaking a separate
piece of work this year to look at this in
more detail.
48. Another key success factor will be
around ensuring that staff are made
aware of all of these workplace
opportunities too.

Encouraging the
workforce to adopt
positive practices.
49.

More broadly, we recognise that in
order to successfully deliver the CTW
programme in accordance with the
new Asset Management Strategy, it is
vital that we support staff to improve
their own working practices.

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 157

Conclusions and
Recommendations
50.

Linked to this, we welcome plans to
set up a new staff climate energy
group which aims to recruit passionate
members of staff and empower them
to provide that challenge back in terms
of what they are seeing within their
own workplace, as well as helping to
identify solutions and embed more
positive energy efficient practices
within the workforce.

51.

We also see the merit in extending
such advice and support to those that
are working from home in terms of
considering how they can reduce their
own carbon footprint within the home.

52.

Linked to this, we understand there
are plans to undertake this
engagement work through the Big
Leeds Climate Conversation as well
as utilising the Leeds by Example
website that is to be delivered citywide
to help give people hints and tips
about what they can be doing in their
own life. However, we welcome that
this resource is to be rolled out
internally to the workforce too.

Maximising investment
opportunities.
53. In terms of investing in our existing
stock, it is vital that the Council
remains fully committed to invest in
more energy efficient measures as
part of any future maintenance or
building/refurbishment work.
54. In helping to deliver this, particular
reference was made to Salix Finance
which provides interest-free
government funding to the public
sector to improve their energy

11

efficiency, reduce carbon emissions
and lower energy bills. This is a
revolving fund, with up to £400k
currently being allocated to the
Council to be match funded, thereby
generating £800k of available
resource. Any service using the fund
for energy efficiency measures is
required to pay that money back.
However, the energy cost savings
generated by such efficiency
measures should help towards paying
back the loan rather than to the
energy supplier. This should therefore
generate a cost neutral outcome to
help improve the carbon efficiency of a
building.
55. Woodhouse Lane Car Park is cited as
a particularly good example of this
working in practice in terms of
replacing the existing lighting to LEDs
which will help to reduce the energy
demand of that building by 85% from
£70k at an investment cost of £291k
that will be paid back in less than 5
years.
56. We acknowledge that the deep dive
energy audits and asset rationalisation
review are primarily aimed at seeing
where we think we are going to get to
in terms of reducing our carbon
footprint without the need to do other
additional things to offset whatever
carbon we may be left with. However,
the reality is that we will be left with
something for as long as we remain
dependant on the existing gas
network. It is therefore important that
we also start to look at investment
opportunities linked to appropriate
solutions, which might include larger
scale renewables, tree planting or the
development of more green ‘living’
walls that provide vital bio-diversity.

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 158

Conclusions and
Recommendations
60. Whilst we appreciate that schools may
have become more risk averse in
terms of taking on loans, particularly
within the current economic climate,
we welcome the continued efforts of
the Council towards encouraging
greater investment in energy efficiency
measures.

57. Linked to the above, whilst we note
that particular attention has been
around maximising the use of the
SALIX Finance funding stream, we
recognise the importance of also
exploring alternative investment
programmes which can help finance
improvements which have a longer
payback period.
Recommendation 5
As well as maximising the use of the
SALIX Finance funding stream, the
Director of Resources and Housing is
recommended to lead on exploring
alternative investment programmes
which can help finance
improvements which have a longer
payback period.

Working proactively
with schools.
58. We welcome that the Council’s
Sustainability and Air Quality Team is
continuing to work closely with
Children’s Built Environment Team to
look at utilising SALIX funding within
part of the annual maintenance
programme to deliver energy saving
technologies as well as the general
maintenance/expansion work that will
be delivered over the school holidays.
59. As a result, we learned that 37
maintained schools (mainly primary
schools) have now taken up this
investment opportunity generating a
saving of around £170k a year in
energy, with an overall investment of
£950k in terms of energy efficiency.

12

61. We welcome that the Council has also
started doing a lot of targeted work
with schools, not just about what they
can do with their buildings, but in
terms of the influence they can have
with the students.
62. Linked to this, help is provided to
schools to help them navigate around
existing training courses and resource
tools, as well as offering advice on
practical measures in terms of access
to funding, particularly as not all
schools can access all types of
funding. Whilst the Council is
maximising the use of existing
communication channels, such as the
‘Leeds for Learning’ website, to point
schools in the right direction, we were
pleased to learn that efforts are also
being made to try and reflect all the
different strands of work into one
package for schools in order to make
it easier for them to access.
63. We also recognise the valuable role
that Elected Members can play,
particularly in their capacity as school
governors, in terms of encouraging
more positive action and signposting
schools to available support and
advice.

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 159

Conclusions and
Recommendations
Maintaining an
overview of the
implementation
processes.
64. Whilst the recommendations set out
within this particular report aim to
assist the successful delivery of the
next phase of the CTW programme
and the development of the new Asset
Management Strategy, we also
recognise the value of this Scrutiny
Board and the relevant successor
Scrutiny Board, to maintain an
overview of the implementation
processes associated with the CTW
programme and the Asset
Management Strategy.

13

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 160

Evidence
Monitoring arrangements
Standard arrangements for monitoring the outcome of the Board’s recommendations will
apply.
The decision-makers to whom the recommendations are addressed will be asked to submit a
formal response to the recommendations, including an action plan and timetable, normally
within two months.
Following this the Scrutiny Board will determine any further detailed monitoring, over and
above the standard quarterly monitoring of all scrutiny recommendations.

Reports and Publications Submitted
Session 1 - Scrutiny Board Meeting on 14th October 2019
 Presentation on the reduction of energy usage in council buildings.
Session 2 - Scrutiny Working Group on 4th November 2019
 Verbal clarification surrounding the use of the SALIX Finance funding stream.

Dates of Scrutiny
Scrutiny Board Meeting – Agreeing terms of reference/Session 1 – 14th October 2019
Scrutiny Working Group Meeting (Session 2) – 4th November 2019

Witnesses Heard
Councillor James Lewis – Executive Member for Resources
Neil Evans – Director of Resources and Housing
Polly Cook – Chief Officer for Sustainable Energy and Air Quality
Mark Mills – Head of Asset Management
Lisa Thornton – Executive Manager, Strategic Asset Management

14

Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
Draft Inquiry Report - November 2019

Page 161

Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
Reducing Energy Consumption in Council Buildings
November 2019
Report author: Angela Brogden
www.scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk

Page 162

Agenda Item 9
Report author: Rob Clayton
Tel: 0113 37 88790
Report of the Head of Democratic Services
Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
Date: 12th October 2020
Subject: Scrutiny review of the management and financial implications of void
properties in Council ownership – recommendation tracking update.
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

1

Purpose of this report

1.1

This report sets out the progress made in responding to the recommendations arising
from the previous Scrutiny review of the management and financial implications of void
properties in Council ownership.

2

Background information

2.1

The Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board has previously considered the Council’s
2017/18 Financial Outturn Report and agreed to undertake further scrutiny surrounding
the management and financial implications of void properties in Council ownership.

2.2

The Board decided to consider this matter via a working group meeting, which took
place on 29th October 2018. A formal Statement setting out the Scrutiny Board’s
conclusions and recommendations was then agreed in February 2019.

2.3

In July 2019, the Scrutiny Board received a formal response to the recommendations
arising from this review.

Page 163

2.4

This item was scheduled to be considered at the March 2020 meeting of the Strategy
and Resources Scrutiny Board. However, due to the emergence of the Covid-19
pandemic the meeting was cancelled which has resulted in a delay in this report
coming back for consideration.

3

Main issues

3.1

The Scrutiny recommendation tracking system allows the Scrutiny Board to consider
the position status of its recommendations in terms of their on-going relevance and the
progress made in implementing the recommendations based on a standard set of
criteria. The Board will then be able to take further action as appropriate.

3.2

This standard set of criteria is presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1. The
questions in the flow chart should help to decide whether a recommendation has been
completed, and if not whether further action is required. Details of progress against
each recommendation are set out within the table at Appendix 2.

4 Corporate Considerations
4.1

Consultation and Engagement

4.1.1 Where internal or external consultation processes have been undertaken with regard
to responding to the Scrutiny Board’s recommendations, details of any such
consultation will be referenced against the relevant recommendation within the table at
Appendix 2.
4.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

4.2.1 Where consideration has been given to the impact on equality areas, as defined in the
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme, this will be referenced against the relevant
recommendation within the table at Appendix 2.
4.3

Council Policies and Best Council Plan

4.3.1 In accordance with the Best Council ambition to be an efficient, enterprising and healthy
organisation, this particular Scrutiny review sought to explore ways in which to improve
the overall void management process in recognition of the potential benefits to be gained
by the Council financially.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 There are no specific implications in relation to the climate emergency agenda.
4.4

Resources and Value for Money

4.4.1 Details of any significant resource and financial implications linked to the Scrutiny
recommendations will be referenced against the relevant recommendation within the
table at Appendix 2.

Page 164

4.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information.
4.6

Risk Management

4.6.1 Any specific risk management implications will be referenced against the relevant
recommendation within the table at Appendix 2.
5 Conclusions
5.1

The progress made in responding to the recommendations arising from the Scrutiny
Board’s earlier review of the management and financial implications of void properties
in Council ownership planning is set out within Appendix 2 of this report for the Board’s
consideration.

6

Recommendations

6.1

The Board is requested to:



7.

Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring;
Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine the
action the Board wishes to take as a result.

Background documents1

7.1 None

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, unless
they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published
works.
1

Page 165

Appendix 1

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:
Questions to be considered by Scrutiny Boards
Is this recommendation still relevant to the
associated desired outcome?
No
1 - Stop monitoring
or determine
whether any further
action is required.

Yes
Has the recommendation been fully
implemented?

Yes

No
Has the set
timescale passed?

No

Has the desired
outcome been
achieved?
Yes

No

Yes
Is there an
obstacle?

6 - Not for review this
session

2 – Achieved

Yes

No

3 - Not fully
implemented
(obstacle). Scrutiny
Board to determine
appropriate action.

Is progress
acceptable?

Yes
4 - Not fully
implemented
(Progress made
acceptable.
Continue
monitoring.)

Page 166

No
5 - Not fully implemented
(progress made not
acceptable. Scrutiny
Board to determine
appropriate action and
continue monitoring)

Appendix 2
Position Status Categories
123456-

Stop monitoring or determine whether any further action is required
Achieved
Not fully implemented (Obstacle)
Not fully implemented (Progress made acceptable. Continue monitoring)
Not fully implemented (Progress made not acceptable. Continue monitoring)
Not for review this session

Recommendation 1 – That the Director of City Development leads on proceeding with
proposals to allocate an appropriate timeframe associated with the proposed re-use of a
void property/land by another service to ensure that sufficient progress is being made,
otherwise options for the future use of the property/land will once again be considered.
Formal response (July 2019):
To ensure that asset requirements are better understood, each directorate has prepared an
asset forward plan, setting out likely service changes and asset implications and updates
are presented to Asset Management Board on a monthly basis. This will not only provide
clearer visibility of properties which may become vacant in the future, but also the range of
requirements across the Council against which properties can be assessed.
The process of undertaking an options appraisal for each property becoming void is now
embedded, this being the process through which potential future uses for land and buildings
are reviewed. The process continues to be refined, and stronger links are being
incorporated between the Capital Programme and the options appraisal process to ensure
that there is a clear funding strategy for proposals being promoted by services, therefore
ensuring that properties are not allocated to services if there is no funding available to
support delivery. The options appraisals are presented to Asset Management Board before
services can proceed with any detailed feasibility/ design/ implementation work.
Once a property has been allocated to a particular service/ use, progress is reviewed via
the void working group which reviews all void properties on a quarterly basis to ensure
progress is made and blockages resolved. This ensures that a responsive approach can be
taken rather than providing a fixed timescale for review. Equally, there are mechanisms in
place to recharge void management costs to services if a property is allocated to a service
for re-use and the building is not reoccupied within 6 months of such an allocation.
Current Position:
Given the increased financial pressure that the Council is under work has focused on
accelerating the release of properties held in Void Management. This has identified a
series of additional properties to be disposed via Auction and 1 to 1 disposals.
It is acknowledged that the estate rationalisation programme has the potential to increase
the number of properties entering void management. To address this, there is a high level
of engagement between Strategic Asset Management and Directorates to understand
service review proposals as well as programming to ensure that the period between close
down of the building and disposal is as short as possible.
The process of each Directorate preparing and updating their Asset Forward Plans through
their Directorate Asset Management Groups is now well established and are being updated
Page 167

to reflect service review opportunities. These are reported to Estate Management Board on
a Quarterly basis. This provides increased resilience in the process by allowing early sight
of potential asset changes/ requirements such as where services no longer have a need to
be in certain buildings or have a requirement to change the way that they deliver services
and therefore the space/ buildings required.
To determine the most appropriate future use/ release strategy for individual properties the
Strategic Development Group process is embedded to allow early planning and highway
due diligence. Subject to the issues identified through this group work is undertaken to
resolve, manage or acknowledge the issues raised to ensure that when properties do
become vacant, any major blockages are already understood and are being managed.
Finally, the void working group continues to meet to review progress around void properties
and unblock issues limiting progress. There are a number of good examples where quick
progress has been made to dispose of buildings as they come into void management.
Armley Grange was disposed at auction within 2 months of the building becoming vacant
and Micklefield House at Rawdon was marketed prior to the building becoming vacant.
This has allowed the early sale of the Annex which is currently undergoing refurbishment
and development with contracts exchanged for the main building with completion subject to
satisfactory determination of the submitted planning application. Building on the additional
work and approaches outlined in this update, it is hoped that this can become the norm and
potentially improved upon.
Position Status (categories 1 – 6) This is to be formally agreed by the Scrutiny Board

Page 168

Recommendation 2 – That the Director of City Development ensures that appropriate
‘upfront work’ is undertaken to ensure that key information and any particular stipulations
associated with a void property/land is made clear to interested parties from the outset,
thereby ensuring that these are reflected in proposals from an early stage.
Formal response (July 2019):
In bringing forward sites for disposal, a view is taken about the most appropriate marketing
approach, which then informs the amount of early work required and nature of supporting
technical information necessary. Properties to be disposed of at auction tend to be smaller
in scale, lower in value and more straight forward, and as such the level of information
required to support marketing is often less. However, for more strategic sites, the volume of
information must be greater given the complexity of the site and can include drainage
assessments, desktop and intrusive ground condition surveys, and planning briefs.
Through engagement with ward members and where appropriate the local community,
particular local issues and sensitivities can be identified. Where this is the case these are
set out within the marketing particulars to ensure that potential purchasers can submit
appropriate schemes and fully consider their response to these important issues.
Where appropriate Ward Member aspirations/ comments will be included within marketing
details, but the Council is obliged under S123 of the Local Government Act 1972 to obtain
best consideration unless agreed otherwise by Executive Board. S85 of the Housing Act
1985 also gives the power to dispose of land Subject to Secretary of State consent at
market value. As such, any specific site/ development requirements are determined
through the statutory planning process. The Council does however have the option to
choose how it spends the Capital Receipt and if there is a valid case to meet the wishes of
ward members, then part of a capital receipt could be ring fenced subject to the appropriate
approvals.

Current Position:
The approach set out in the update provided in July 2019 continues to be adopted as sites
come forward for disposal. This is evidenced in some of the key sites which have been
marketed over the course of the last year including Red Hall and the former International
Pool site at Lisbon Street. This same approach will be adopted as new sites come forward
for disposal. In particular, through the estate rationalisation work, there will be early
dialogue with ward members not only about the principle of coming out of buildings but also
about their release and future use. We are ever conscious of local sensitivities particularly
about locally significant buildings and need to work closely with ward members in these
cases. Where brownfield sites or significant properties are being brought to the market, the
Council procures appropriate surveys which are shared with bidders with a duty of care,
avoiding the need for each bidder to undertake surveys whilst also ensuring that there is a
baseline set of consistent data for bidders to form offers around. These surveys include
ground condition, building condition, measured and topographical surveys.
Whilst the Council intends to have greater use of auctions, where formal tenders are
sought, there is a significant amount of due diligence work undertaken when offers are
received, to ensure that they are realistic and deliverable. This includes seeking early
views from Planning and Highways officers about any development proposals as well as a
comparison of the bids to ensure that appropriate considerations have been made around
Page 169

site abnormalities including ground conditions, contamination and utility works. This gives
the Council greater confidence of the offer proposed to be accepted and ultimately achieved
and provides an understanding of any risk in progressing with a particular bidder, limiting
the potential of sales falling through.
Position Status (categories 1 – 6) This is to be formally agreed by the Scrutiny Board

Page 170

Recommendation 3 – That the Director of City Development leads on ensuring that local
Ward Councillor engagement is embedded into the void management and decision making
process and particularly in the early stages of determining the future use/disposal of a site.
Formal response (July 2019):
The process of ward member engagement is more robust and includes earlier discussion
with ward members about the future use of properties before or at the time a property
enters void management. Five properties have entered void management since the last
report to Scrutiny Board. In all cases engagement has taken place with ward members to
inform decisions about the future use and next steps in relation to the properties.
Current Position:
Engagement with ward members is now undertaken as part of the estate rationalisation
process ensuring that ward members are involved from an early stage of a building coming
into void management. This ensures that ward members are sighted on the intention to
come out of buildings, change their use or where necessary progress demolition works.
This is helping to identify any local sensitivities at an early stage. Early engagement with
ward members is particularly important with prominent and more sensitive buildings in local
communities. In the case of Pudsey Town Hall, there have been a number of discussions
with ward members about the building and their desire to retain public access to the former
Council Chamber and other rooms of significance whilst recognising the potential to bring
the building back into use. The Council has also supported open days to help shape
options.
Position Status (categories 1 – 6) This is to be formally agreed by the Scrutiny Board

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Report author: Rob Clayton
Tel: 0113 3788790
Report of Head of Democratic Services
Report to Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
Date: 12 October 2020
Subject: Work Schedule

Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the
municipal year 2020/21.

2. Background Information
2.1

All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule
for the municipal year. In doing so, the work schedule should not be considered a
fixed and rigid schedule, it should be recognised as a document that can be adapted
and changed to reflect any new and emerging issues throughout the year; and also
reflect any timetable issues that might occur from time to time.

3.

Main issues

3.1

A draft work schedule is attached for consideration at Appendix 1. Already included
within the draft work schedule are traditional items of Scrutiny work. These involve
recommendation tracking of work previously undertaken by the Strategy and
Resources Scrutiny Board; performance monitoring reports and any Budget and
Policy Framework Plans.

3.2

On 16 March 2020, in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, Leeds City Council took the
necessary steps to cancel a number of planned meetings of various Committees,
Page 173

3.3

Boards and Panels. This included all Scrutiny Board meetings and any joint scrutiny
arrangements where the Council acts as the lead authority.
In June 2020 public sessions of all Scrutiny Boards re-started, albeit remotely. It was
agreed with Scrutiny Chairs that the first two sessions for each Board will be in a
more streamlined format than traditional committee meetings. This is in recognition of
the fact that new remote ways of conducting public meetings need to be tested and
adapted, and many services are also continuing to respond to the consequences of
Covid-19 and the subsequent easing of lockdown restrictions.

3.4

This will be the third meeting of the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board delivered
under this format. At its July meeting Scrutiny Board Strategy and Resources
considered the work schedule for the year and a number of suggestions were made.
These focussed on the budgetary implications of Covid-19 including Council Tax
collection, the impact the pandemic is having on ways of working, including home
working, and on how the council manages its assets. Further consideration of the
Work Schedule took place at the September meeting of the Board and members
identified continued interest in Business Rate and Council Tax recovery rates for
2020/21 and how these have been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and also
further interest in grant allocations to Welcome to Yorkshire. These items are
included in the work schedule and will be picked up as the municipal year
progresses.

3.5

Printed draft minutes from the Executive Board meeting held on 24 September are
attached at Appendix 2. The Scrutiny Board is asked to consider and note the
Executive Board minutes, insofar as they relate to the remit of the Scrutiny Board;
and identify any matter where specific scrutiny activity may be warranted, and
therefore subsequently incorporated into the work schedule.
Developing the work schedule

3.6

When considering any developments and/or modifications to the work schedule,
effort should be undertaken to:
 Avoid unnecessary duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums
already having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue.
 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add value
and can be delivered within an agreed time frame.
 Avoid pure “information items” except where that information is being received as
part of a policy/scrutiny review.
 Seek advice about available resources and relevant timings, taking into
consideration the workload across the Scrutiny Boards and the type of Scrutiny
taking place.
 Build in sufficient flexibility to enable the consideration of urgent matters that may
arise during the year.

3.7

In addition, in order to deliver the work schedule, the Board may need to take a
flexible approach and undertake activities outside the formal schedule of meetings –
such as working groups and site visits, where necessary and appropriate. This
flexible approach may also require additional formal meetings of the Scrutiny Board.

Page 174

4. Consultation and engagement
4.1.1 The Vision for Scrutiny states that Scrutiny Boards should seek the advice of the
Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director(s) and Executive Member(s) about available
resources prior to agreeing items of work.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules state that, where appropriate, all terms of
reference for work undertaken by Scrutiny Boards will include ‘to review how and to
what effect consideration has been given to the impact of a service or policy on all
equality areas, as set out in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme’.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a strategic and outward
looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the best council objectives.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 When considering areas of work, the Board is reminded that influencing climate
change and sustainability should be a key area of focus.
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 Experience has shown that the Scrutiny process is more effective and adds greater
value if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial inquiries running at
one time and focus its resources on one key issue at a time.
4.4.2 The Vision for Scrutiny, agreed by full Council also recognises that like all other
Council functions, resources to support the Scrutiny function are under considerable
pressure and that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be met.
Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should:

4.5



Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive
Member about available resources;



Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue;



Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add
value and can be delivered within an agreed time frame.

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 This report has no specific legal implications.
4.6

Risk Management

4.6.1 This report has no specific risk management implications.

Page 175

5. Conclusions
5.1

All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule
for the municipal year. The latest iteration of the Board’s work schedule is attached
as Appendix 1 for consideration and agreement of the Scrutiny Board – subject to
any identified and agreed amendments.

6. Recommendations
6.1

Members are asked to consider the matters outlined in this report and agree (or
amend) the overall work schedule (as presented at Appendix 1) as the basis for the
Board’s work for the remainder of 2020/21.

7. Background Documents1
7.1

None

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.
1

Page 176

Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
Work Schedule for 2020/2021 Municipal Year
June

July

Meeting Agenda for 10th June 2020
*REMOTE SESSION*

West Yorkshire Devolution Deal –
Consultation on the published Scheme
(PDS)

August

Meeting Agenda for 1st July 2020
and 22nd July 2020
*REMOTE SESSION* - Agenda for 1st July 2020

West Yorkshire Devolution Deal – Consultation on the
published Scheme (PDS)
*REMOTE SESSION* - Agenda for 22nd July 2020

Financial Performance – 2019/20 Outturn (PM)
Page 177

Treasury Management – 2019/20 Outturn (PM)
Impact of Coronavirus (COVID-19) upon Leeds City
Council's 2020/21 Financial Position and Update on
the Forecast Budget Position for 2021/22 (PM)

Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled.

Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
Work Schedule for 2020/2021 Municipal Year

Page 178

September

October

November

Meeting Agenda for 7th September 2020

Meeting Agenda for 12th October 2020.

Meeting Agenda for 16th November 2020.

Annual Corporate Risk Management Report
(PM)

Budget Saving Proposals – Consideration of 24
September Executive Board Report

Impact of Covid-19 on Ways of Working/Home
Working/Staff wellbeing including impacts on
Council office accommodation and assets

Business Continuity Plans – Overview of
Council response to Covid-19 pandemic

Inquiry into the reduction of energy consumption
in Council buildings – Formal Response (RT)

Scrutiny review of resilience and emergency
planning – recommendation tracking (RT)

Scrutiny review on the management and
financial implications of council owned void
properties – recommendation tracking (RT)

Welcome to Yorkshire financial update
Council Tax and Business Rates Recovery
following Covid-19

Working Group Meetings
Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
Work Schedule for 2020/2021 Municipal Year

December

January

February

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled.

Meeting Agenda for 11th January 2021

Meeting Agenda for 15th February 2021

Performance report (PM)
Financial Health Monitoring (PSR)
2021/22 Initial Budget Proposals (PDS)
Page 179

Best Council Plan Refresh – Initial Proposals
(PDS)
Impact of Covid-19 on Ways of Working/Home
Working/Staff wellbeing including impacts on
Council office accommodation and assets

Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

To be determined.

Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
Work Schedule for 2020/2021 Municipal Year
Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

March

April

May

Meeting Agenda for 22nd March 2021

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled.

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled.

Council Tax and Business Rates Recovery
following Covid-19 - Update
Page 180
Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:

Scrutiny Board (Strategy & Resources)
Work Schedule for 2020/2021 Municipal Year
PSR
PDS

Policy/Service Review
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

EXECUTIVE BOARD
THURSDAY, 24TH SEPTEMBER, 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor J Blake in the Chair

(REMOTELY)

Councillors A Carter, R Charlwood,
D Coupar, S Golton, J Lewis, L Mulherin,
J Pryor, M Rafique and F Venner

32

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt from
publication on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information
so designated as follows:(A)

33

That Appendix 2 to the report entitled, ‘Estate Realisation and
Accelerated Capital Receipts’, referred to in Minute No. 46 be
designated as being exempt from publication in accordance with
paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act
1972 on the grounds that it contains information relating to the financial
and business affairs of the Council. It is considered that the release of
such information would, or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s
commercial interests in relation to other similar transactions. It is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at this point
in time. (Minute No. 46 refers).

Late Items
Agenda Item 10 - Update on Coronavirus (Covid-19) Pandemic - Response
and Recovery Plan
With the agreement of the Chair, a late item of business was admitted to the
agenda entitled, ‘Update on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic – Response
and Recovery Plan’.
Given the scale and significance of this issue, it was deemed appropriate that
a further update report be submitted to this remote meeting of the Board.
However, due to the fast paced nature of developments on this issue, and in
order to ensure that Board Members received the most up to date information
as possible, the report was not included within the agenda as originally
published on 16th September 2020. (Minute No. 40 refers).

34

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 183

35

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meetings held on 20th July
2020 and 1st September 2020 be approved as a correct record.
LEARNING, SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT

36

Design and Cost Report for the Allerton Grange School Permanent
Expansion of 60 Places for September 2021
Further to Minute No. 11, 24th June 2020, the Director of Children and
Families and the Director of City Development submitted a joint report which
set out the context regarding the proposed permanent expansion of Allerton
Grange School and which sought approval for the necessary authority to
spend and to incur related expenditure to facilitate the delivery of works for
the permanent expansion of Allerton Grange School from September 2021.
In response to a Member’s enquiries, the Board received further information
regarding the extent of the PFI and other associated fees which would be
incurred as a result of the proposals and also in respect of the level of costs
for the project.
With regard to the highways considerations associated with the scheme and
the finalised details regarding fees incurred, officers respectively undertook to
provide the Member in question with further information on these matters.
In addition, Members also discussed the approach nationally towards the
provision of schools and school places.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That authority to spend and incurring expenditure of £5,051,606 from
Capital Scheme number 33177/AGR/000 for the redevelopment and
expansion of Allerton Grange School for September 2021, be
approved;
(b)

That the overall scheme costs of £7,202,806, which incorporates the
existing approval of £2,151,200.80 for the bulge expansion for
September 2020, be noted;

(c)

That it be noted that the expenditure for the construction of the
permanent expansion works are subject to planning approval;

(d)

That it be noted that the former CLC building is in the ownership of
Leeds City Council and not part of the PFI; with it also being noted that
the extension to the former CLC building will be subject to a deed of
variation to remove this section of the site from the PFI agreement
such that the extended building remains wholly in Leeds City Council
ownership. Finally, it be noted that a further deed of variation will be
required for PFI approval to undertake remodelling works within the
main school building;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 184

(e)

That the implementation of a City Council Change under the PFI
contract, be approved, and that approval also be given to the entering
in to of any associated documentation, including without limitation a
deed of variation (as required), with the Head of Service, Learning
Systems being authorised to review and approve any such
documentation;

(f)

That the programme dates, as identified in section 3.2 of the submitted
report, in relation to the implementation of this decision, be noted, with
it also being noted that this represents the critical path for project
success and must be adhered to where possible;

(g)

That it be noted that the officer responsible for the implementation of
such matters is the Head of Service Learning Systems in Children’s
and Families Directorate.

HEALTH, WELLBEING AND ADULTS
37

Asset Based Community Development and Asset Based Approaches
The Director of Adults and Health submitted a report which provided an
update on Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) activity in Leeds,
highlighting achievements and challenges experienced to date. The report
also detailed the importance of ABCD in supporting the city’s response to
Covid-19 and community resilience and which presented an outline plan for
the further proliferation of ABCD, with details also being provided on the
potential for this way of working to further deliver the Council’s ambitions.
As part of the introduction to the report, the Executive Member for Health,
Wellbeing and Adults introduced the newly appointed Chief Officer for
Transformation and Innovation.
Responding to a Member’s enquiries, it was noted that a further report to the
Board presenting the outcomes from the evaluation work being undertaken by
Leeds Beckett University would be submitted either in December 2020 or
early in 2021.
A Member highlighted the importance of the approach being further embraced
by other services within the Council, such as the Communities team, in order
to maximise the benefits from the initiative. In response to this, the Board was
provided with further detail on the actions being taken to develop the ABCD
approach in the short to medium term, specifically with regard to greater
partnership working both internally and with external organisations.
In conclusion, Members highlighted how this work was crucially important in
helping to address the issues being faced across the city during the current
time.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the positive impact that Asset Based Community Development
and asset based approaches have made across the city, be noted
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 185

together with the important role that they have played in the Covid-19
response;
(b)

That the outline plan for the development of Asset Based Community
Development in Leeds, be noted;

(c)

That agreement be given to work with key partners across the city in
order to develop Asset Based Community Development and asset
based approaches as a key vehicle for meeting the city’s priority
outcomes;

(d)

That it be noted that the officer responsible for the development of
ABCD is the Chief Officer for Transformation and Innovation in Adults
and Health, working with key partners within the Council and externally.

ENVIRONMENT AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES
38

Temple Newsam Indoor Play Barn
The Director of Communities and Environment submitted a report highlighting
an opportunity to conserve and transform heritage buildings to develop an all
year round visitor attraction at Home Farm, Temple Newsam, which would be
achieved by creating an indoor play barn, café and retail facility within the
heart of the existing farm attraction. The report also set out the business case
to achieve a financially sustainable future for the buildings, improve the visitor
experience as well as continue to conserve rare breeds.
A Member raised concerns regarding the timing of the proposal given the
current financial challenges being faced by the Council, the potential impact
on such a scheme by restrictions introduced in response to the pandemic and
whether the matter would be further considered by the Board. In response,
Members received further detail regarding the business case for the proposals
and also an undertaking that the proposals would be reviewed in February
2021, to ensure that it remained financially viable before an award of tender
was progressed.
During the discussion it was emphasised that local Ward Councillors were
supportive of the proposals.
Responding to a specific enquiry, officers undertook to provide the Member in
question with information regarding the interest that would be charged on the
proposed £3.68m prudential borrowing.
RESOLVED (a)
That approval be given to implementing the proposals as contained
within the submitted report, subject to a review being conducted before
the award of tender (anticipated in February 2021) in order to assess
the potential impact of COVID-19;
(b)

That agreement in principle be given to inject £3.68 million investment
into the Capital Programme, with approval also being given to delegate
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 186

the authority to spend approvals for the full scheme to the Director of
Communities and Environment following the associated review in
February 2021;
(c)

That it be noted that the Chief Officer Parks and Countryside will be
responsible for implementation of this scheme.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions referred to within
this minute)
39

Proposals for Road Safety Park, Family Cycle Trails, Children's Play
Area, Cafe, Remodelled Golf Provision and Landscape Improvements at
Temple Newsam
Further to Minute No. 86, 16th October 2019, the Director of Communities and
Environment submitted a report outlining the findings of the recent public
consultation exercise undertaken in respect of proposals for the land currently
occupying the golf course at Temple Newsam Estate, with the report making
proposals for the future of this area of land based upon the consultation
findings.
Responding to a Member’s enquiries, officers provided an update on the
liaison which had taken place to date with Temple Newsam Golf Club
regarding the golf course layout proposals, and with a view to progressing
such matters and provide the club with any further clarification as necessary,
it was requested that dialogue between the Council and the club continued.
Also, officers undertook to provide Board Members with the associated plans
which had been shared with the club for their consideration.
As part of the discussion on such matters, the Board was provided with further
details of the consultation exercise which had taken place.
A Member highlighted the vital role played by community parks throughout the
city, especially during the current pandemic, with it being noted that the work
in the community parks across Leeds would continue.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the following changes to the area of Temple Newsam that is
currently a golf course be approved:(i) A reduction in the size of Temple Newsam golf course from 27 to 18
holes;
(ii) The re-development of the building which currently serves as the golf
clubhouse to include an attractive and accessible café, toilets and
other supporting recreational facilities alongside golf provision;
(iii) The development of a road-safety park, children’s play area, walking
and cycling trails and other historical, educational and
environmental landscape improvements;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 187

(b)

That approval be given to inject £1.2m into the Capital Programme for
the delivery of the scheme;

(c)

That the necessary ‘authority to spend’ approvals for the full scheme
be delegated to the Director of Communities and Environment, subject
to consultation with the Executive Member for Environment and Active
Lifestyles;

(d)

That it be noted that the Chief Officer Parks and Countryside will be
responsible for the implementation of the scheme.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)
INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND CULTURE
40

Update on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic - Response and Recovery
Plan
Further to Minute No. 21, 20th July 2020, the Chief Executive submitted a
report which provided an update on the continued Coronavirus (COVID-19)
work being undertaken across the city including the recovery approach,
outbreak management, and current issues and risks. The report also noted
that the city’s multi-agency command and control arrangements continued to
be used alongside the Response and Recovery plan with the aim of mitigating
the effects of the outbreak on those in the city, especially the most vulnerable,
and to help prepare for the longer term stages of recovery planning.
With the agreement of the Chair, the submitted report had been circulated to
Board Members as a late item of business prior to the meeting for the reasons
as set out in section 9 of the submitted report, and as detailed in Minute No.
33.
By way of introduction to the report, the Chair paid tribute on behalf of the
Board to Council officers, all partners, the community and Councillors for the
continued work being undertaken right across the city to address the
challenges continuing to be faced as a result of the pandemic.
Members were provided with an update on the latest developments, both
locally and nationally which had occurred since the publication of the
submitted report, which included the introduction of new national restrictions,
the launch of the NHS Covid-19 App and the current position regarding testing
provision. The Board also received an update regarding the latest infection
rates in Leeds, with it being noted that Members and relevant parties would
continue to be kept informed of any developments or announcements from
Government which impacted upon the city.
Emphasis was also placed upon the unprecedented challenges that the
Council and the city continued to face and the ‘asks’ such as funding,
improved testing and more local contact tracing, which were being made to
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 188

Government to help address such challenges. Members also reiterated the
crucial role played by local government and partners in such circumstances
and the benefits that a localised approach could often provide. Regarding the
approach being taken in Leeds, emphasis was placed upon the need to
ensure that the correct balance was struck between preventing infection whilst
at the same time also looking to maintain people’s broader health and
wellbeing needs.
In addition, it was noted that communication continued with neighbouring
Local Authorities in order to ensure that a partnership approach was being
taken, whilst Members also received information on the work being
undertaken across a range of sectors, including care homes, schools and
work places to address the specific challenges within those settings.
In conclusion, the Chair reiterated the unprecedented financial challenges that
the Council continued to face and the importance of a cross-party approach
being taken when making representations to Government for further support.
Also, emphasis was placed upon the key importance of ensuring that clear
communications and messaging on the current regulations to all communities
in Leeds was consistently delivered.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the updated context, progress and issues as we move into a new
phase of dealing with the Covid-19 pandemic, as detailed within the
submitted report, be noted;
(b)

That the emerging issues for consideration during the next phase of
recovery, including the new school and university term, winter
pressures, and the concurrent pressure of EU exit, be noted;

(c)

That the need for new levels of engagement with the public, and
everybody taking ownership of the need to be safe and responsible in
order to reduce levels of transmission and avoid further restrictions, be
recognised;

(d)

That in respect of the financial implications for the Council arising from
the Coronavirus pandemic, the contents of the submitted report be
used as context when the Board considers the more detailed financial
health monitoring report, as detailed at Minute No. 41.

RESOURCES
41

Financial Health Monitoring 2020/21 - Month 4
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report providing the
projected financial health position of the Authority for 2020/21, as at month 4
of the financial year.
As part of the introduction to the report, the Board received an update on the
ongoing discussions which continued with Government regarding the
provision of further financial support for the current financial year, with it being
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 189

noted that the Government’s response was expected in mid-October, and it
would be at this point when it would be known whether or not the Council
would need to consider an emergency budget.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with further
information regarding the proportion of the current year’s deficit which related
to the Minimum Revenue Provision and the proportion which could be
attributable to the impact of Covid-19.
Members discussed a number of issues relating to the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Strategy and also regarding the approaches being made to
Government for further support. Members also discussed whether the
Government could potentially be approached in relation to support for the
Council’s loss of income, whilst emphasis was placed upon the key ‘ask’ of
spreading the unprecedented costs associated with the pandemic over a
longer term, an approach which it was noted, would be consistent with much
of the public sector.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the projected financial position of the Authority, as at Month 4 of
the financial year, be noted, together with the projected impact of
COVID-19 on that position;

42

(b)

That it be noted that the remaining gap will still require significant
savings and further support from Central Government;

(c)

That it be noted that the Authority is awaiting confirmation of further
Government financial support this year, which will inform the action the
Council will need to take in terms of how a balanced budget position
can be delivered.

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22-2025/26
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report which presented an
updated Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period 2021/22 to 2025/26,
together with the budget assumptions underlying that Strategy.
Members discussed the uncertainty around the funding basis for Local
Authorities moving forward, and highlighted the importance of a Spending
Review announcement by the Government in order to provide the Council
with as much certainty as possible.
A Member highlighted the need for the Council to approach the financial
challenges which it continued to face in an agile way, so that it could adapt as
required.
RESOLVED – That the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22
to 2025/26, as detailed within the submitted report, be noted.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 190

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)
43

Revenue Budget Update 2021/22 and Budget Savings Proposals
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report detailing the actions
underway and proposed to address the financial gap for 2021/22, currently
estimated at £118.76m. The report presented a series of savings proposals
to contribute towards the Council achieving a balanced budget for 2021/22
Budget and where appropriate, sought agreement to begin meaningful
consultation with staff, trade unions, service users and the public as required.
The report also outlined the budget savings proposals that will contribute
towards the Housing Revenue Account delivering a balanced budget position
for 2021/22.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member for Resources highlighted
that the proposals in the submitted report were the first step in a process
towards the submission of the initial budget proposals later in the year.
In response to a Member’s enquiries, the Board was provided with further
information on the anticipated reduction in the workforce as part of the
proposals in terms of the number of full time equivalent posts, received an
update on the Early Leavers initiative ahead of the deadline for employees to
reaffirm their expression of interest, and in response to an enquiry regarding
the provision of funding for the ‘Year of Culture 2023’ initiative, it was noted
that such matters would be taken into consideration as part of the budget
setting process moving forward.
Members also discussed the approach being taken across directorates
towards meeting the financial challenges being faced in each respective area
and how that formed part of the budget setting process.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the financial position for 2021/22, as outlined within the submitted
report, be noted, with it also being noted that further savings are
required to deliver a balanced budget position;
(b)

That it be noted that the ‘Business as Usual’ savings and decisions to
give effect to them shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief
Officer in accordance with the Officer delegation scheme (Executive
functions);

(c)

That agreement be given that consultation is commenced with regard
to the ‘Service Review’ proposals, and that it be noted that the
decisions to give effect to them shall be taken by the relevant Chief
Officer, following the consultation period, in accordance with the Officer
delegation scheme (Executive functions);

(d)

That the savings proposals in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account, be noted.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 191

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)
44

Capital Programme Review
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report providing the
outcome of the review of the Capital Programme which had been undertaken
during the summer. The aim of the review was to reduce the level of
borrowing undertaken by the Council in the short term in order to enable a
revenue saving to be achieved which would help to address the financial
impact of Covid-19.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding details in the submitted report
which noted that since 2010/11 significant capital investment, funded by
borrowing, had occurred which had led to an increase in the quantum of debt
and the cost of maintaining that debt, officers undertook to provide the
Member in question with details of the quantum of that debt and the cost of
the related interest payments per year.
In addition, the Board noted a Member’s comments highlighting the
importance of continuing to invest in local town and district centres during the
current time.
Also, by way of a correction to the submitted report, it was noted that section
57 within Appendix A should read, ‘Section106 Schemes’ rather than ‘Climate
Emergency.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That subject to the correction as detailed above, the contents of the
submitted report, together with the following be noted:(i) That the Capital Programme review has identified a number of
schemes which are proposed to be stopped £81.989m; allow
alternative funding £30.021m; or can be re-phased into future years
of £19.511m. Totalling £131.5m of proposed changes, which are
detailed within Appendix A to the submitted report;
(ii) That the aspiration is to limit the increase in debt.
(b)

That the following injections into the Capital Programme be approved:(i) £7.7m of CIL funding split £5.0m for Basic Need and £2.7m of CIL
for flood alleviation; and
(ii) £8.58m of capital receipts to fund the Core Systems Review;

(c)

That the above resolution to inject funding of £16.28m will be
implemented by the Chief Officer (Financial Services).
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 192

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)
45

Annual Performance Management Report
The Director of Resources and Housing submitted a report presenting a yearend review, both looking back on how the Council has performed during
2019/20 in delivering the Best Council Plan, but also signposting to future
performance challenges. The report also considers how the Council’s
performance has, and will continue to be, affected by the COVID-19
pandemic.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the annual performance report, as submitted, be noted, together
with the progress made during 2019/20 in delivering the ambitions and
priorities set out in the Best Council Plan;
(b)

46

That the details in the submitted annual performance report indicating
how performance has, and will be affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
be noted.

Estate Realisation and Accelerated Capital Receipts
The Director of City Development submitted a report which sought support for
the estate rationalisation and remodel approach, as detailed, in addition to the
accelerated capital receipt programme through a series of targeted auction
disposals. By way of background, the report also provided details around the
Council’s home working approach, given that this underpinned the Council’s
core office estate rationalisation.
In considering the submitted report, a Member highlighted the need to ensure
that local Ward Members were kept informed and included in dialogue as part
of any proposals relating to this programme which affected their respective
Wards.
Also, a Member highlighted the importance of maintaining the city’s heritage
assets.
Following consideration of Appendix 2 to the submitted report designated as
being exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of
the public part of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the approach proposed within the submitted report to rationalise
and remodel the estate, be supported;
(b)

That the acceleration of the Capital Receipt Programme through a
targeted number of disposals by auction and through one to one
negotiations, be agreed, with agreement also being given for the first
tranche of properties, as set out in exempt Appendix 2 to the submitted
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 193

report, being taken to auction in October 2020; with it being noted that
a further report detailing additional properties to be included in the
Capital Receipt Programme will be brought back to Executive Board for
consideration;

47

(c)

That the work ongoing to explore opportunities to extract additional
value from the Council’s estate, as set out within exempt Appendix 2 to
the submitted report, be noted;

(d)

That it be noted that the draft Estate Management Strategy will be
brought to Executive Board at a later date;

(e)

That it be noted that the rationalising workstream is ongoing and that
further reports will be presented throughout the course of the
workstream;

(f)

That it be noted that the disposal of properties and bringing forward an
updated Estate Management Strategy which reflects the Council’s
future operational requirements is the responsibility of the Director for
City Development;

(g)

That the engagement work undertaken so far with staff on both current
and future working from home, which is being overseen by the Director
for Resources and Housing, be noted.

Core Business Transformation: Technology Refresh
The Director of Resources and Housing submitted a report which sought
approval to proceed with the Core Business Transformation programme to the
next stage, which would be the procurement phase, and in doing so the report
also sought approval to provide the necessary ‘authority to spend’ in order to
enable the required procurement activity.
In considering the proposals detailed within the submitted report, it was
suggested that the Chief Digital and Information Officer be included in this
process, in order to maximise the benefit of the initiative.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That approval be given for the Core Business Transformation
programme to proceed to the next stage, which is the procurement
phase, and in doing so, approval also be given to the authority to
spend £1.01M on the required procurement activity;
(b)

That it be noted that the Chief Officer (Financial Services) is
responsible for this matter (such as supporting the programme to the
next stage and steering the £1.01m spend), together with adhering to
any timescales involved;

(c)

That a report be brought back to Executive Board in 12 months’ time
(September 2021), prior to the awarding of a contract to the successful
bidder.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 194

DATE OF PUBLICATION:
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS:

MONDAY, 28TH SEPTEMBER 2020

5.00 P.M. ON MONDAY, 5TH OCTOBER
2020

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 21st October, 2020

Page 195

This page is intentionally left blank

